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Content index required
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statement (NFS)

PROVISIONS OF LAW 11/2018 STANDARD PAGE REPORT /
ON NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION USED ANSWER
Business Description of A brief description of the group's busi-  GRI 2-1,2-6,2-7  8-17,137-143,164,
model the Group's ness model, including the business envi- 165-172
business model ronment, organisation and structure,
the markets where the group oper-
ates, its objectives and strategies, and
the main factors and trends that could
affect its performance.
Policies Policies pursued by the group, including GRI 2-1, 2-6 8-18, 164, 173
due diligence processes implemented Quality, Health and
to identify, assess, prevent and mitigate Safety, Energy and
significant risks and impacts and for Environment Policy.
assurance and control, and the steps
that have been taken.
Main risks The principal risks related to those GRI 2-23,3-3, 94-102, 118-119,
matters linked to the group's opera- 2-12,201-2 128-129, 165-173,
tions including, where relevant and 220-225
proportionate, its business relation- ACGR C.1.17, C.1.18,
ships, products or services which are E3
likely to cause adverse impacts in those Sustainability Policy
areas, and how the Group manages Risk management
those risks, explaining the processes policy.
undertaken to detect and assess them
in accordance with national, EU-based
or international frameworks for each.
Disclosures should be included on the
impacts detected, with a breakdown
of the risks, in particular the principle
short-, medium- and long-term risks.
General Current and foreseeable impacts of the GRI 2-12 102, 118-119,
disclosures undertaking's activities on the environ- 134-135, 151-152
ment and, as appropriate, on health Quiality, Health and
and safety. Safety, Energy and
Environment Policy.
Environmental assessment or certifica- GRI 2-23, 3-3, 134-135,151-152
tion procedures. 2-12
Resources dedicated to the prevention GRI 2-12 94-102, 118-135, 152,
of environmental risks. 165-172, 220-224
Application of the precautionary prin- GRI2-23, 3-3 94-98, 118-135, 152

ciple.
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ON NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION USED ANSWER
Business General Provisions and guarantees for environ- GRI307-1 As at 31 December
model disclosures mental risks. 2022, the Company
did not have any signif-
icant  environmental
assets on its statement
of financial position.
Pollution Measures to prevent, reduce or repair GRI 3-3, 2-25, 125-129, 134-135,
carbon emissions that seriously affect 302-4, 305-5, 220-225
the environment; taking into account 305-7 With regard to noise
any type of air pollution specific to an pollution, OHLA's
activity, including noise and light pollu- teams follow various
tion. good practices when
carrying out their proj-
ects in order to reduce
the intensity of the
noise generated during
the execution phases
and, therefore, the
resulting noise pollu-
tion. Light pollution is
considered non-mate-
rial.
Circular Waste prevention, recycling, reuse, and GRI 3-3, 2-25, 130-132, 196-197
economy other forms of recovery and disposal of 301-1, 301-2, Not applicable
and waste waste. Actions to combat food waste. 303-3, 306-1, regarding actions to
prevention and 306-2 combat food waste.
management
Sustainable Water consumption and water supply in GRI303-1, 132,192-193
use of accordance with local limits. 303-3
resources
Consumption of raw materials and GRI 3-3, 2-25, 130-132, 194-195
measures taken to make more efficient 301-1, 301-2
use of them.
Energy: Direct and indirect energy GRI 3-3, 2-25, 118-129, 190-191
consumption; Measures taken to 302-1, 302-3,
improve energy efficiency; and Use of 302-4
renewable energies.
Climate Greenhouse gas emissions. GRI305-1, 125-129, 190-191
change 305-2, 305,3,
305-4
Measures taken to adapt to the conse- GRI 3-3, 2-25-2, 125-129, 196-198,
quences of climate change. 305-5 220-224
Voluntary medium- and long-term GRI 3-3, 2-25 118
targets in place to reduce GHG emis-
sions and the resources implemented
to that end.
Protection of Measures in place to preserve or restore GRI 3-3, 2-25 132-133, 194-195
biodiversity biodiversity.
Impacts caused by activities or opera- GRI304-1 200-201

tions in protected areas.
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PROVISIONS OF LAW 11/2018 STANDARD PAGE REPORT /
ON NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION USED ANSWER
Disclosures Policies Policies pursued by the group, including GRI 3-3, 2-25, 76-79, 92-94, 136-137
on social and due diligence processes implemented 2-15 Annual Report on
employee- to identify, assess, prevent and mitigate Director Remunera-
related significant risks and impacts and for tion.
matters assurance and control, and the steps Financial statements:
that have been taken. Note 4.8.
Code of Ethics
Human Resources
Policy
Main The principal risks related to those GRI 2-12 IAGCC.1.17,C.1.18,
risks matters linked to the group’s operations E3
including, where relevant and propor- Sustainability Policy
tionate, its business relationships, prod- Risk management
ucts or services which are likely to cause policy
adverse impacts in those areas, and
how the Group manages those risks,
explaining the processes undertaken to
detect and assess them in accordance
with national, EU-based or international
frameworks for each. Disclosures should
be included on the impacts detected,
with a breakdown of the risks, in partic-
ular the principle short-, medium- and
long-term risks.
Employment Total number and breakdown of GRI 2-6, 2-7, 137-143, 176-180
employees by gender, age, country and 2-8, 405-1 b)
employee category.
Total number and distribution of types GRI 137-143, 176-180
of employment contract. 2-7,2-8
Average annual number of permanent, GRI 137-143, 176-180
temporary and part-time contracts by 2-7,2-8
gender, age and employee category.
Number and breakdown of dismissals GRI 180
by gender, age, and employee category. 401-1b)
Average pay and trend broken down GRI 182-187
by gender, age, employee category or 405-2
equivalent metric.
Pay gap. GRI 405-2 181
Remuneration per equivalent job or GRI202-1 182-187, 241
average at the company.
Average remuneration of directors and GRI 2-19, 2-20 186-187
managers, including variable remuner- Annual  report on
ation, per diem allowances, severance director remuneration
pay, long-term retirement plans and any Financial statements:
other amounts received, broken down Note 4.8
by gender.
Implementation of policies on discon- GRI 3-3,2-25 146
necting from work.
Employees with disabilities. GRI 405-1 b) 137, 141-142

Message from We are We are About Appendices Non-financial
the Chairman OHLA sustainable this report statement (NFS)
PROVISIONS OF LAW 11/2018 STANDARD PAGE REPORT /
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Disclosures Organisation Organisation of working hours. GRI2-8,3-3 137-146, 171-172
on social and of work
employee-
related Number of hours of absenteeism. GRI 403-2 a) 180
matters
Measures aimed a facilitating work-like GRI 3-3,2-25, 145-146
balance and encouraging the equal 401-3
enjoyment by both parents.
Health Health and safety conditions in the GRI 3-3,2-25 146-151
and safety workplace.
Workplace accidents (frequency and GRI403-2, 148-149
severity), broken down by gender. 403-3
Occupational diseases (frequency and GRI403-2, 148-149
severity), broken down by gender. 403-3
Employment Organisation of dialogue between the GRI 2-29, 402-1, 144,248
relations company and employees, including 403-1
procedures for informing, consulting
and negotiating with employees
Percentage of employees covered by GRI 2-30 144, 189
collective bargaining agreements by
country
Description of collective bargaining GRI403-1, 143-151
agreements, particularly in the field of 403-4
occupational health and safety
Training Policies in place in relation to training. GRI 3-3,2-25 138-141, 187-188
Total number of training hours by GRI404-1 187-188
employee category
Accessibility Universal accessibility for people with GRI 3-3,2-25 130-132, 141-142
disabilities
Equal Measures taken to foster equal treat- GRI 3-3,2-25 137-146
opportunities ment and opportunities for men and
women
Equality plans GRI 3-3,2-25 141-142
Measures taken to promote employ- GRI 3-3,2-25 137-141, 154-155,
ment 176-178
Protocols against sexual and gender- GRI 3-3,2-25 89, 250
based harassment
Integration of and accessibility for GRI 3-3,2-25 134-135, 141-142
persons with disabilities
Anti-discrimination policy and, where GRI  3-3,2-25, 89, 141-143
applicable, diversity management policy 406-1 Code of Ethics

Human Resources
Policy.
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% ON NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION USED ANSWER ON NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION USED ANSWER
Qo . .
% Information Policies Policies pursued by the group, including GRI 3-3,2-25, 89-94, 152-153 Information Main The principal risks related to those GRI2-12, 205-1 92-102
> on the respect due diligence processes implemented 3-3,410-1, Group Human on risks matters linked to the group's opera-
" for human to identify, assess, prevent and mitigate 412-2 Rights Policy anti-corruption tions including, where relevant and
é_ rights significant risks and impacts and for and proportionate, its business relation-
2 assurance and control, and the steps - ships, products or services which are
= anti-bribery : : :
o that have been taken. likely to cause adverse impacts in those
% matters areas, and how the Group manages
° Main risks The principal risks related to those GRI 2-12 89-94, 102 those risks, explaining the processes
© matters linked to the group’s opera- undertaken to detect and assess them
if tions including, where relevant and in accordance with national, EU-based
i= proportionate, its business relation- or international frameworks for each.
ships, products or services which are Disclosures should be included on the
likely to cause adverse impacts in those impacts detected, with a breakdown
areas, and how the Group manages of the risks, in particular the principle
those risks, explaining the processes short-, medium- and long-term risks.
undertaken to detect and assess them
in accordance with national, EU-based Corruption Medidas adoptadas para prevenir la GRI 3-3,2-25 89-93
or international frameworks for each. and bribery corrupcion y el soborno
Disclosures should be included on the
impacts detected, with a breakdown Medidas para luchar contra el blanqueo ~ GRI 3-3,2-25 89-93
of the risks, in particular the principle de capitales
short-, medium- and long-term risks.
Aportaciones a fundaciones y entidades GRI 3-3,2-25, 89-91, 154-161, 251
Human rights Human rights due diligence procedures. GRI 3-3,2-25 93-94 sin 4nimo de lucro 201-1, 203-2,
415-1
Measures to prevent the risk of human GRI 3-3,2-25, 93-94 :
rights abuses and, where appropriate, ~ 412-1 Human Rights Policy Information Policies Policies pursued by the group, including ~ GRI  3-3,2-25, 136-137, 154-155
measures to mitigate, manage and about the due diligence processes implemented 3-3 Sustainability Policy
redress any abuses committed. company to identify, assess, prevent and mitigate Responsible Procure-
significant risks and impacts and for ment Policy
Reports of human rights abuses. GRI 2-26, 3-3,2- 93-94 assurance and control, and the steps Tax policy
25,411-1,419-1 that have been taken.
Promotion of and compliance with the GRI 3-3,2-25 89-93, 152-153 Main The principal risks related to those GRI 2-12 136-137, 154-155,
provisions contained in the ILO’s funda- risks matters linked to the group’s opera- 167-172
mental conventions on the freedom tions including, where relevant and
of association, the right to collective proportionate, its business relation-
bargaining, the elimination of work- ships, products or services which are
place discrimination and of all forms likely to cause adverse impacts in those
of forced or compulsory labor and the areas, and how the Group manages
abolition of child labor. those risks, explaining the processes
: undertaken to detect and assess them
Information Policies Policies pursued by the group, including GRI 3-3,2-25, 89-91 in accordance with national, EU-based
on due diligence processes implemented 3-3,205-2 Code of Ethics or international frameworks for each.
anti-corruption to identify, assess, prevent and mitigate Anti-corruption Policy Disclosures should be included on the
and significant risks and impacts and for Crime Prevention impacts detected, with a breakdown
- assurance and control, and the steps Policy. of the risks, in particular the principle
anti-bribery that have been taken. short-, medium- and long-term risks.
matters
236

237



Management report 2022

Integrated annual report

238

— 5 -> 0 M0

Message from We are Our We are About Appendices Non-financial
the Chairman OHLA strategy sustainable this report statement (NFS)

Content index required by the

PROVISIONS OF LAW 11/2018 STANDARD PAGE REPORT /
ON NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION USED ANSWER
Information Commitment of Impact of the undertaking’s activities GRI203-1, 154-161, 176-178
about the the Company on society in terms of employment and 203-2,204-1,
company to sustainable local development. 413-1
development
Impact of the undertaking's activities on GRI203-1, 119-125, 154-161
society in terms of local communities 203-2,413-1
and territories.
Relations maintained with local commu- GRI 2-29, 413-1 80-83, 154-161,
nity agents and forms of dialogue with 165-167, 226-229
those agents.
Association or sponsorship actions. GRI 2-28, 201-1, 16-17, 154-161
203-1
Subcontracting Embedding social, gender equality and GRI 3-3 152-153
and suppliers environmental concerns in the procure-
ment policy.
Consideration of social and environ- GRI 3-6, 3-3 152-153
mental responsibility concerns in rela-
tions with suppliers and subcontractors.
Supervision and audit systems and their GRI 308-1 152-153
outcomes.
Consumers Consumer health and safety measures. GRI' 3-3, 2-25, 151-152
416-1
Whistle-blowing mechanisms, concerns GRI' 3-3, 2-25, 91, 151-152
reported and their resolution. 2-26
Tax information Profit or loss by country. GRI201-1 115-116
Financial statements:
Note 4.1
Income tax paid. GRI 201-1 115-116
Financial statements:
Note 3.22
Government grants received. GRI 201-4 141, ACGR C

Global Reporting Initiative (GRI)

GRI

STANDARD

GENERAL CONTENT

GRI 2:
General
disclosures
2021

CONTENT

LOCATION

OMISSSION REASON EXPLANATION

2-1 Organizational details. 8-9, 164, 173
2-2 Entities included in the 164
organization’s sustainability

reporting.

2-3 Reporting period, 164,173

frequency and contact point.

2-4 Restatements of
information.

Those data that have
been restated have
been identified and
commented on in the
report.

2-5 External assurance.

245

2-6 Activities, value
chain and other business
relationships.

8-17

2-7 Employees.

137-143,176-179

2-8 Workers who are not
employees.

137-143,176-179

2-9 Governance structure
and composition.

85-89

Regulations of the Board
of Directors

ACGR, sections C.1.2
and C.1.14

2-10 Nominating and 85-88
selecting the highest

governance body.

2-11 Chair of the highest 85

governance body.

2-12 Role of the highest
governance body in

overseeing the management

of impacts.

ACGR, sections C.1.17
yC.1.18

Sustainability Policy
Risk management policy
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LOCATION OMISSSION REASON EXPLANATION

GENERAL CONTENT

GRI2: 2-13 Delegation of Regulations of the
General responsibility for managing Board of Directors
disclosures impacts. Sustainability Policy.
2021

2-14 Role of the highest
governance body in
sustainability reporting.

76
Sustainability Policy.

2-15 Conflicts of interest.

88

Regulations of the
Board of Directors
Anti-corruption Policy.

2-16 Communication of
critical concerns.

86-88

ACGR

Financial statements:
Note 4.6

2-17 Collective knowledge
of the highest governance
body.

https://media.ohla-group.com/wp-con-
tent/uploads/2022/03/03095610/
Cv_consejeros_ESP.pdf

2-18 Evaluation of the
performance of the highest
governance body.

ACGR, section C.1.15

2-19 Remuneration policies.

182-187

Financial statements:
Note 4.8

Annual Report on
Director Remuneration
Regulations of the
Board of Directors

of Obrascon Huarte
Lain, S.A, Chapter VIII
Director remuneration
Remuneration policy

2-20 Process to determine
remuneration.

182-187

Financial statements:
Note 4.8

Annual Report on
Director Remuneration
Regulations of the
Board of Directors

of Obrascon Huarte
Lain, S.A, Chapter VIII
Director remuneration
Remuneration policy.
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OMISSSION REASON EXPLANATION

GENERAL CONTENT

GRI 2: 2-21 Annual total
General compensation ratio.
disclosures

2021

Confi-
dentiality
restric-
tions

This indicator is
not reported as
the information
is confidential

2-22 Statement on
sustainable development
strategy.

45

2-23 Policy commitments.

89-94, 226-229

2-24 Embedding policy
commitments.

75-79, 89-93, 138-141,
152-153, 187-188,
226-229

2-25 Processes to remediate
negative impacts.

80-83, 89-94, 165-170,
189, 226-229

2-26 Mechanisms for
seeking advice and raising
concerns.

89-93

2-27 Compliance with laws
and regulations.

Financial statements:
Notes 3.19, 4.6

2-28 Membership
associations.

In 2022, OHLA collab-
orated with 21 asso-
ciations: ATC, ACEX,
ACHILLES, Asociacion
Cientifica Técnica
Hormigdn Estruc-
tural, FEPECO, AETOS,
GAESCO, AECOM,
APECCO, SEOPAN,
Cambra Oficial de
Contractistes D'Obres
de Catalunya, ACP,
PTEC, Asociacién de
Emisores Espafioles,
Conocimiento y Creativ-
idad S.L.N.E, Forética,
Instituto de Auditores
Internos, ATPYC,
ASCONGI, ASCOBI.

2-29 Approach to
stakeholder engagement.

80-83, 151-152,
165-172, 226-229

2-30 Collective bargaining
agreements.

143-145, 189
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OMISSSION REASON EXPLANATION

GRI 3: 3-1 Process to determine 76-79, 165-172,
Material material topics. 226-229
topics

2021 3-2 List of material topics. 225

ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE

GRI 3: 3-3 Management of material 76-79, 165-172,
Material topics. 226-229
topics 2021

GRI 201: 201-1 Direct economic value 155
Economic generated and distributed.

performance

2016

201-2 Financial implications
and other risks and
opportunities due to climate

128-129, 220-224

change.

201-3 Defined benefit 143-146
plan obligations and other

retirement plans.

201-4 Financial assistance 141, IAGCC

received from government.

MARKET PRESENCE

GRI 3: 3-1 Process to determine 75-85, 165-173,
Material material topics. 226-229

topics 2021

GRI 201: 202-1 Ratios of standard OHLA employees who
Economic entry level wage by gender are under the collective
performance compared to local minimum agreement receive the
2016 wage. wages set out in the

collective agreement or
in some cases exceed
those wages, so for
similar positions they
have the same or a
higher remuneration
package than the one
established in the
collective agreement.

202-2 Proportion of senior
management hired from the
local community.

Of OHLA’s managers
abroad, 93.59% are
natives of the same
country.
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INDIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACTS

GRI 3: 3-1 Process to determine 76-79, 165-172,
Material material topics. 226-229

topics 2021

GRI 203: 203-1 Infrastructure 154-161
Indirect investments and services

economic supported.

impacts

2016 203-2 Significant indirect 154-161, 167-172

economic impacts.

PROCUREMENT PRACTICES

GRI 3:_ 3-1 Process to determine 76-79, 165-172,
Material material topics. 226-229
topics 2021

GRI 204: 204-1 Proportion of 152-153

Procurement spending on local suppliers.
practices 2016

ANTI-CORRUPTION

GRI 3: 3-1 Process to determine 76-79, 165-172,
Material material topics. 226-229
topics 2021

GRI 205 205-1 Operations assessed 89-94

Anti- for risks related to corrup-

corruption tion.

2016

205-2 Communication and
training about anti-corrup-
tion policies and procedures.

89-94, 152-153,
187-188

ACGR

Anti-corruption Policy

205-3 Confirmed incidents
of corruption and actions
taken.

89-93
ACGR

ANTI-COMPETITIVE BEHAVIOR

GRI 3: 3-1 Process to determine 76-79, 165-172,
Material material topics. 226-229

topics 2021

GRI 206: Anti- 206-1 Legal actions for Financial statements,
competitive anti-competitive behaviour, Note 4.6

behavior 2016  anti-trust, and monopoly

practices.
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TAXATION

GRI 3:. 3-1 Process to determine 76-79, 165-172,
Material material topics. 226-229
topics 2021

GRI 207: 207-1 Approach to tax. 115-116

Tax 2019

207-2 Tax governance,
control, and risk manage-

94-98, 115-116

ment.

207-3 Stakeholder engage- 114-117
ment and management of

concerns related to tax.

207-4 Country-by-country 116

reporting.

MATERIALS

GRI 3: 3-1 Process to determine 76-79, 118-119,
Material material topics. 165-172, 226-229
topics 2021

GRI 301: 301-1 Materials used by 130-132, 194-195
Materiales weight or volume.

2016

301-2 Recycled input mate-
rials used.

130-132, 196-197

301-3 Reclaimed products
and their packaging

N/A

materials.
ENERGY
GRI 3: 3-1 Process to determine 76-79, 118-119,
Material material topics. 165-172, 226-229
topics 2021
GRI 302: 302-1 Energy consumption 125-129, 190-191
Energy 2016 within the organization.

302-2 Energy consumption
outside the organization.

125-129, 190-191

302-3 Energy intensity.

190-191

302-4 Reduction of energy
consumption.

125-129, 190-191

302-5 Reductions in energy
requirements of products
and services.

134-135
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WATER AND EFFLUENTS

GRI 3: 3-1 Process to determine 76-79, 118-119,

Material material topics. 165-172, 226-229

topics 2021

GRI 303: 303-1 Interactions with 132,192-193

Water and water as a shared resource.

effluents

2018 303-2 Management of water 132,192-193
discharge-related impacts.
303-3 Water withdrawal. 132,192-193
303-4 Water discharge. 132,192-193
303-5 Water consumption. 132,192-193

BIODIVERSITY

GRI 3: 3-1 Process to determine 76-79,118-119,
Material material topics. 165-172, 226-229
topics 2021

GRI304: 304-1 Operational sites 132-133, 194-195,
Biodiversity owned, leased, managed 200-201

2016 in, or adjacent to, protected
areas and areas of high
biodiversity value outside
protected areas.

304-2 Significant impacts

132-133, 194-195,

of activities, products, and 200-201
services on biodiversity.

304-3 Habitats protected or 200-201
restored.

304-4 IUCN Red List species 200-201

and national conservation
list species with habitats in
areas affected by operations.

GRI 3: 3-1 Process to determine
Material material topics.
topics 2021

76-79, 118-119,
165-172, 226-229
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GRI 305: 305-1 Direct (Scope 1) GHG
Emissions emissions.
2016

125-129, 196-199

305-2 Energy indirect
(Scope 2) GHG emissions.

125-129, 196-199

305-3 Other indirect
(Scope 3) GHG emissions.

125-129, 196-199

305-4 GHG emissions
intensity.

125-129, 196-199

305-5 Reduction
of GHG emissions.

125-129, 196-199

305-6 Emissions of ozone-
depleting substances (ODS).

Informa-
tion not
avail-
able/
incom-
plete.

305-7 Nitrogen oxides (NO,),
sulfur oxides (SO,) other
significant air emissions.

125-129, 196-199

WASTE

76-79, 118-119,
165-172, 226-229

GRI 3: 3-1 Process to determine
Material material topics.

topics 2021

GRI 306: 306-1 Waste generation and
Waste significant waste-related
2020 impacts.

130-132, 196-197

306-2 Management of
significant waste-related

130-132, 196-197

impacts.

306-3 Waste generated. 196-197
306-4 Waste not destined 196-197
for disposal.

306-5 Waste destined for 196-197

disposal.

SUPPLIER ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT

GRI 3:. 3-1 Process to determine
Material material topics.
topics 2021

79-84, 118-119,

165-172, 226-229
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SUPPLIER ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT

GRI 308:

308-1 New suppliers that 152-153
Supplier were screened using
environmental environmental criteria.
assessment
2016 308-2 Negative 152-153

environmental impacts in

the supply chain and actions

taken.
EMPLOYM ENT
GRI 3:_ 3-1 Process to determine 76-79, 136-137,
Material material topics. 165-172, 226-229
topics 2021
GRI401: 401-1 New employees hires 136-137, 176-179
Employment and employee turnover.
2016

401-2 Benefits provided to 143-146
full-time employees that are

not provided to temporary

or part-time employees.

401-3 Parental leave. 180

LABOR/MANAGEMENT RELATIONS

GRI 3: 3-1 Process to determine

76-79, 136-137,

Material material topics. 165-172, 226-229
topics 2021

GRI 402: 402-1 Minimum notice There is no minimum
Labor/ periods regarding opera- notice period at OHLA.
management tional changes. In any case, operational
relations changes are always
2016 carried out in accor-

dance with the law and
regulations of each
country.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

GRI 3: 3-1 Process to determine 76-79, 136-137,
Material material topics. 165-172, 226-229
topics 2021
GRI 403: 403-1 Occupational health 146-151
Occupational and safety management
health and system.
safety 2018

403-2 Hazard identification, 147-150

risk assessment, and
incident investigation.
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GRI
STANDARD

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

GRI 403:
Occupational
health and
safety 2018

TRAINING AND EDUCATION

CONTENT

403-3 Occupational health
services.

LOCATION

146-151

— 5 -> 0 M0

OMISSSION REASON EXPLANATION

403-4 Worker participation,
consultation, and
communication on
occupational health and
safety.

146-151

403-5 Worker training on
occupational health and
safety.

148

403-6 Promotion of worker
health.

146-151

403-7 Prevention and
mitigation of occupational
health and safety impacts
directly linked by business
relationships.

146-151

403-8 Workers covered by
an occupational health and
safety management system.

All OHLA employees
are represented on
the health and safety

committees.
403-9 Work-related injuries. 148-149
403-10 Work-related ill 148

health.

GRI 3: 3-1 Process to determine 76-79, 136-137,
Material material topics. 165-172, 226-229
topics 2021

GRI 404: 404-1 Average hours 138-141, 187-188
Training and of training per year per

education employee.

2016

404-2 Programs for
upgrading employee skills
and transition assistance
programs.

138-141, 187-188

404-3 Percentage of
employees receiving regular
performance and career
development reviews.

In 2022, 29% of
employees received
performance reviews
(the performance
evaluation model was
not included in the first
launch-USA- nor were
senior managers or
manual workers).

Message from
the Chairman

GRI
STANDARD

DIVERSITY AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

We are Our
OHLA strategy
CONTENT

We are About
sustainable this report
LOCATION

OMISSSION REASON EXPLANATION

GRI 3: 3-1 Process to determine 76-79, 136-137,
Material material topics. 165-172, 226-229
topics 2021

GRI 405: 405-1 Diversity of 141-143, 176-179
Diversity governance bodies and ACGR C

and equal employees.

opportunity

2016 405-2 Ratio of basic salary 181-186

NON-DISCRIMINATION

and remuneration of women
to men.

GRI 3: 3-1 Process to determine 76-79, 136-137,
Material material topics. 165-172, 226-229
topics 2021

GRI 406: 406-1 Incidents of OHLA expresses its
Non- discrimination and corrective

discrimination
2016

FREEDOM OF ASSOCIATION AND COLLECTIVE BARGAINING

actions taken.

absolute rejection and
zero tolerance of any
behaviour or action that
might constitute any
form of sexual, moral or
gender-based harass-
ment, and undertakes
to collaborate actively,
effectively and firmly to
prevent, detect, correct
and punish any such
conduct.

OHLA has a procedure
in place to prevent

or take action against
sexual and/or gender-
based harassment,
which is governed by
the principles of speed,
confidentiality, trans-
parency, objectivity,
impartiality and respect
for the privacy and
dignity of employees.

It also has a guide
offering assistance and
protection for victims of
gender-based violence.

GRI 3: 3-1 Process to determine 76-79, 84-85, 165-172,
Material material topics. 226-229

topics 2021

GRI 407: 407-1 Operations and 93-94, 144-145, 189
Freedom of suppliers in which the right

association
and collective
bargaining
2016

to freedom of association
and collective bargaining
may be at risk.
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GRI CONTENT
STANDARD
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LOCATION OMISSSION REASON EXPLANATION

CHILD LABOUR

GRI 3: 3-1 Process to determine 76-79, 84-85, 93-94,
Material material topics. 165-172, 226-229
topics 2021

GRI 408: 408-1 Operations and 93-94, 152-153
Child labour suppliers at significant risk

2016 for incidents of child labor.

GRI3 3-1 Process to determine 76-79, 84-85, 93-94,
Material material topics. 165-172, 226-229
topics 2021

GRI 409: 409-1 Operations and 93-94, 152-153
Forced or suppliers at significant risk

compulsory for incidents of forced or

labor 2016 compulsory labor.

SECURITY PRACTICES

GRI3: 3-1 Process to determine 76-79, 84-85, 93-94,
Material material topics. 165-172, 226-229
topics 2021

GRI 410:

410-1 Security personnel
Security trained in human rights
practices 2016  policies or procedures.

RIGHTS OF INDIGENOUS PEOPLES

93-94

GRI 3: 3-1 Process to determine

76-79, 84-85, 93-94,

Material material topics. 165-172, 226-229
topics 2021
GRI 411: 411-1 Incidents of violations OHLA did not identify
Rights of involving rights of indigenous any violations of indig-
indigenous peoples. enous peoples’ rights
peoples 2016 in 2022.
LOCAL COMMUNITIES
GRI 3: 3-1 Process to determine 76-79, 136-137,
Material material topics. 165-172, 226-229
topics 2021
GRI 413: 413-1 Operations with local ~ 154-161
Local commu- community engagement,
nities 2016 impact assessments, and

development programs.

413-2 Operations with 154-161

significant actual and
potential negative impacts
on local communities.

Message from We are Our

the Chairman OHLA strategy
GRI CONTENT
STANDARD

SUPPLIER SOCIAL ASSESSMENT

We are About Appendices Non-financial
sustainable this report statement (NFS)
LOCATION OMISSSION REASON EXPLANATION

GRI 3: 3-1 Process to determine 76-84, 136-137,
Material material topics. 165-173, 226-229
topics 2021
GRI 414: 414-1 New suppliers that 152-153
Supplier social  \ere screened using social
assessment criteria.
2016

414-2 Negative social 152-153

impacts in the supply chain
and actions taken.

PUBLIC POLICY

GRI 3: 3-1 Process to determine 76-79, 84-85, 165-172,
Material material topics. 226-229

topics 2021

GRI 415: 415-1 Political contributions. The Code of Ethics
Public policy prohibits donations or
2016 contributions to political

parties.

CUSTOMER HEALTH AND SAFETY

GRI 3: 3-1 Process to determine 76-79, 136-137,
Material material topics. 165-172,226-229
topics 2021

GRI 416: 416-1 Assessment of the 151-152
Customer health and safety impacts

health and of product and service

safety 2016 categories.

416-2 Incidents of
non-compliance concerning
the health and safety
impacts of product and
services.

In 2022, no incidents

of non-compliance
concerning the health
and safety impacts of
any products or services
were uncovered.

MARKETING AND LABELING

GRI 3:_ 3-1 Process to determine 76-79, 136-137,
Material material topics. 165-172, 226-229
topics 2021

GRI 417-: 417-1 Requirements 134-135
Marketing for product and service

and labeling information and labelling.

2016
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GRI CONTENT
STANDARD

MARKETING AND LABELING

GRI417:
Marketing

and labeling product and service
2016 information and labelling

417-2 Incidents of

non-compliance concerning

LOCATION

In 2022, no incidents
of non-compliance
concerning product
and service information
and labelling were
uncovered and none
resulting in a fine or
penalty.

There were no incidents
of non-compliance
resulting in a warning.

— 5 -> 0 M0

OMISSSION REASON EXPLANATION

417-3 Incidents of

non-compliance concerning

marketing communications

CUSTOMER PRIVACY

In 2022, no incidents
of non-compliance
in this respect were
uncovered.

GRI 3: 3-1 Process to determine 76-79, 136-137,
Material material topics. 165-172, 226-229
topics 2021

GRI 418: 418-1 Substantiated In 2022, no complaints
Customer complaints concerning concerning breaches of
privacy 2016 breaches of customer customer privacy and

privacy and losses of
customer data.

losses of customer data
were uncovered.

Message from
the Chairman

Content index required by

We are Our We are
OHLA strategy sustainable

Appendices

Non-financial

statement (NFS)

the Sustainability Accounting
Standars Board (SASB)

TOPIC DESCRIPTION CODE LOCATION IN REPORT
1. REPORTING TOPICS ON SUSTAINABILITY AND ACCOUNTING PARAMETERS
Environmental Number of incidents of non-compliance IF-EN-160a.1 Financial statements:
impacts with environmental permits, standards, and Notes 3.19, 4.6
of project regulations.
development
Discussion of processes to assess and manage |IF-EN-160a.2 94-102, 118-135, 167-172
environmental risks associated with project
design, siting, and construction.
Structural Amount of defect- and safety-related rework IF-EN-250a.1 Not available
integrity costs.
& safety
Total amount of monetary losses as a result of IF-EN-250a.2 Not available
legal proceedings associated with defect- and
safety-related incidents.
Workforce 1) Total recordable incident rate (TRIR). IF-EN-320a.1 146-151
health (2) Fatality rate for:
& safety (a) direct employees and
(b) contract employees.
Lifecycle Number of: IF-EN-410a.1 71-73,134-135
impacts (1) commissioned projects certified to a
of buildings & sustainability standard certification.
infrastructure (2) Active projects seeking such certification.
Discussion of process to incorporate IF-EN-410a.2 132, 134-135
operational-phase energy and water efficiency
considerations into project planning and design
Climate Amount of backlog for: IF-EN-410b.1 57-61
impacts (1) hydrocarbon-related projects and
of business (2) renewable energy projects.
mix
Amount of backlog cancellations associated with I[F-EN-410b.2 N/A
hydrocarbon-related projects.
Amount of backlog for non-energy projects IF-EN-410b.3 202-219

associated with climate change mitigation.
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% 1. REPORTING TOPICS ON SUSTAINABILITY AND ACCOUNTING PARAMETERS
Qo
x .
S Business (1) Number of active projects and IF-EN-510a.1 OHLA does not carry out
= ethics (2) backlog in countries that have the 20 lowest projects in countries that
+ rankings in Transparency International’s have the 20 lowest rankings
q% Corruption Perception Index in Transparency Internation-
= al’s Corruption Perception
3 Index.
e
c
@
}qf; Total amount of monetary losses as a result of IF-EN-510a.2 Financial statements:
;% legal proceedings associated with charges of Notes 3.19, 4.6
g (1) bribery or corruption and
- (2) anticompetitive practices

Description of policies and practices for preven- IF-EN-510a.3 89-92

tion of

(1) bribery and corruption and

(2) anti-competitive behavior in the project

bidding processes
2. ACTIVITY METRICS

Number of active projects. IF-EN-000.A 8-17

Number of commissioned projects. IF-EN-000.B 8-17

Total backlog. IF-EN-000.C 8-17
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Content index required by the
Task Force on Climate-Related

Financial Disclousure (TCFD)

CONTENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION IN REPORT
Governance Describe the board’s oversight of climate-related risks and opportu- 76-79, 125-129

nities.

Describe management’s role in assessing and managing climate-re- 76-77,85-87,125-129

lated risks and opportunities.
Strategy Describe the climate-related risks and opportunities the organization 220-224

has identified over the short, medium, and long term.

Describe the impact of climate-related risks and opportunities on the 220-224

organization’s businesses, strategy, and financial planning.

Describe the resilience of the organization’s strategy, taking into 220-224

consideration different climate-related scenarios, including a 2°C or
lower scenario.

Risk management

Describe the organization’s processes for identifying and assessing
climate-related risks.

94-102, 125-129, 220-224

Describe the organization’s processes for managing climate-related
risks.

94-102, 125-129, 220-224

Describe how processes for identifying, assessing, and managing
climate-related risks are integrated into the organization’s overall risk
management.

94-102, 125-129, 220-224

Metrics and targets

Disclose the metrics used by the organization to assess climate-re-
lated risks and opportunities in line with its strategy and risk manage-
ment process.

190-201, 220-224

Disclose Scope 1, Scope 2, and, if appropriate, Scope 3 greenhouse
gas (GHG) emissions, and the related risks.

125-126, 198-199

Describe the targets used by the organization to manage climate-re-
lated risks and opportunities and performance against targets.

76-79, 118-119, 220-224
2022-2024 Sustainability
Plan
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Independent assurance
of the Non-Financial Statement

Ernst & Young, S.L Tel

Calle de Raimundo Fernandez Villaverde, 65 Fax: 915 727 238
28003 Madrid ey.com

Building a better
working world

INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED NON-FINANCIAL STATEMENT
To the shareholders of Obrascon Huarte Lain, S.A.:

In accordance with article 49 of the Spanish Commercial Code, we have verified, with a limited scope, the
consolidated Non-financial Statement (“NFS”) for the year ended 31 December 2022 of Obrascén Huarte Lain
S.A. and subsidiaries (the "Group") , which is part of the Group's accompanying Consolidated Management
Report.

The content of the Management Report contains additional disclosures to those required under prevailing
company law with respect to non-financial reporting that was not part of our assurance engagement. In this
regard, our work was limited exclusively to verifying the information identified in the "NFS Tables" and the "GRI
Tables" included in the accompanying Management Report.

Responsibility of the directors

The preparation of the NFS included in the Group's Consolidated Management Report and its content
are the responsibility of the directors of Obrascén Huarte Lain, S.A. The NFS has been prepared in
accordance with the content required by prevailing Spanish company law and following the criteria of
the Sustainability Reporting Standards issued by the Global Reporting Initiative (the "GRI Standards"),
as well as other criteria described as outlined for each matter in the "NFS Tables" and the "GRI Tables"
of the Consolidated Management Report.

This responsibility also includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of such internal control as
considered necessary to ensure that the NFS is free of material misstatement, due to fraud or error.

The directors of Obrascén Huarte Lain, S.A. are also responsible for defining, implementing, adapting, and
maintaining the management systems from which the necessary information for preparing the NFS is obtained.

Our independence and quality management

We have complied with the independence and other ethics requirements laid down in the International Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (including international standards on independence) issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA), which is based on the fundamental principles of
integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due care, confidentiality, and professional behaviour.

Our firm applies prevailing international standards on quality, which means that it has a quality system that
includes policies and procedures covering compliance with its ethics requirements, professional rules and
applicable legal and regulatory provisions.

Non-financial
statement (NFS)

EY

Building a better
working world

The engagement team comprised professionals specialised in the review of non-financial information and,
specifically, information on economic, social and environmental performance.

Our responsibility

Our responsibility is to express our conclusions in an independent limited assurance report based on the work
performed. We have performed our work in accordance with the requirements established in the International
Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3000 Revised, Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information (ISAE 3000 Revised) issued by the International Audit and Assurance Standards
Board (IAASB) of the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) and considering the guidelines for assurance
engagements of non-financial statements (Guia de Actuacion sobre encargos de verificacion del Estado de
Informacién No Financiera), issued by the Spanish Institute of Chartered Auditors (Instituto de Censores Jurados
de Cuentas de Espafia).

The procedures performed in a limited assurance engagement vary in nature and timing from, and are less in
extent than for, a reasonable assurance engagement and, consequently, the level of assurance obtained is
substantially lower.

Our work consisted of making inquiries of management and of the Group's various business units that
participated in the preparation of the NFS, reviewing the processes used for compiling and validating the
information presented in the NFS, and applying certain analytical procedures and sample review tests as
described below:

Holding meetings with Group staff to obtain an understanding of the business model, the policies and
management approaches applied, and the main risks related to these matters and to gather the
information needed to perform the independent assurance work.

Analysing the scope, relevance and completeness of the content of 2022 NFS based on the materiality
assessment performed by the Group and described in the "Materiality assessment" section of the NFS,
considering content required in prevailing company law.

Analysing the processes used to compile and validate the data presented in the 2022 NFS.

Reviewing the disclosures relating to the risks, policies and management approaches applied with
respect to the material matters presented in the 2022 NFS.

Checking, through sample testing, the information underlying the content of the 2022 NFS and whether
it has been adequately compiled based on data provided by information sources.

Obtaining a representation letter from the directors and management.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Emphasis of matter paragraph

Regulation (EU) 2020/852 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 18 June 2020 on the establishment
of a framework to facilitate sustainable investment requires disclosure of how and to what extent the Company's
activities are associated with economic activities that are aligned with climate change mitigation and climate
change adaptation objectives for the first time for 2022, in addition to the disclosures regarding eligible activities
required in 2021. Therefore, the accompanying NFS does not include comparative information on alignment.
Moreover, to the extent that the level of disclosures on Taxonomy-eligible economic activities in 2021 is not the
same as for 2022, the breakdowns provided regarding eligibility in the accompanying NFS are not completely
comparable. Therefore, the directors of Obrascén Huarte Lain S.A. included disclosures on the criteria that, in
their opinion, best enable compliance with those obligations and are defined in Appendix 3 "Taxonomy" of the
accompanying Consolidated Management Report. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Conclusion

Based on the procedures performed in our assurance and the evidence obtained, no matter has come to our
attention that would lead us to believe that the Group's NFS for the year ended 31 December 2022 has not been
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the content required by prevailing Spanish company law

and the criteria established by the GRI Standards, as well as other criteria described as explained for each matter
in the "NFS Tables" and the "GRS Tables" of the Consolidated Management Report.

Use and distribution

This report was prepared in response to the requirements established in prevailing company law in Spain and
may not be appropriate for other purposes and jurisdictions.

ERNST & YOUNG, S.L.

(Signed on the original Spanish version)

Alberto Castilla Vida

27 April 2023

A member firm of Emst & Young Global Limited
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ISSUER IDENTIFICATION DETAILS

Year-end date: 31/12/2022

TAX ID (CIF): 248010573

Company name:

OBRASCON HUARTE LAIN, S.A.

Registered office:

PASEQ DE LA CASTELLANA, 259 D, TORRE ESPACIO MADRID
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ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT OF LISTED
PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANIES

A. OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE

Al Complete the following table on share capital and the attributed voting rights, including those comrresponding
to shares with a loyalty vote as of the closing date of the year, where appropriate:

Indicate whether company bylaws contain the provision of double loyalty voting:

-1 Yes
[V] No
Date of last , Number of MNumber of voting
modification Soe captal (curcs) shares rights
26/03/2021 147,781,145.75 591,124,583 591,124,583

Indicate whether there are different classes of shares with different associated rights:

1
vl

Yes
No

A2, List the company's significant direct and indirect shareholders at year end, including directors with a
significant shareholding:

Name or company % of voting rights attributed to % of voting rights through financial §
name of shareholder the shares instruments % of;o!":]atl‘:’votlng
Direct Indirect Direct Tndirect 9
LUIS FERNANDO
MARTIN AMODIO
HERRERA 0.00 12,98 0.00 0.00 12,98
JULIO MAURICIO
MARTIN AMODIO 0.00 12.98 0.00 0.00 12.98
HERRERA
INMOBILIARIA
ESPACIO, S.A. 0.00 7.10 0.00 0.00 7.10
SIMON DAVIES 0.00 0.00 15.51 0.00 15.51
SAND GROVE
OPPORTUNITIES 0.00 0.00 12.23 0.00 12.23
MASTER. FUND LTD
THE GOLDMAN
SACHS GROUP, 0.00 2.62 3.64 0.00 6.26
INC
2/8] —
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Breakdown of the indirect holding:

The interest held by Simon Davies, beneficial owner, is through Sand Grove Capital Management LLP, Sand Grove Opportunities Master Fund Ltd, Sand Grove
Tactical Fund LP and Investment Opportunities SPC "for the account of Investment Opportunities 2 Segregated Portfolio” legal person owners of the ordinary
shares, Simon Davies has a majority shareholding in Sand Grove Capital Management (Cayman) LP, owner of Sand Grove Capital Intermediate Ltd., which in tum
is the owner of Sand Grove Capital Management LLP.

Name or company | Name or company name % of voting rights % of voting rights % of total
name of indirect owner of the direct owner attributed to the through financial I e
shares instruments 9 rg
INMOBILIARIA GRUPO VILLAR MIR,
ESPACIO, S.A. S.AU. Z0 00 e
LUIS FERNANDO
MARTIN AMODIO ;?_RJAR ROk 12.98 0.00 12.98
HERRERA M
JULIC MAURICIO
MARTIN AMODIO ﬁ:;i_? AT_O(SJI(_ U 12.98 0.00 12.98
HERRERA e
Indicate the most significant changes in the shareholder structure during the year:
Most significant movements
According to the information published on the Spanish National Securities Market Commission (CNMV) website: ]
DWS INVESTMENT GMBH:
28/10/2022: Ownership interest decreased to below the 3% threshold.
3781 —

Obrascon Huarte Lain, S.A. and subsidiaries - 2022 Consolidated Management Report
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ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT OF LISTED
PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANIES

A3, Give details of the participation at the close of the fiscal year of the members of the board of directors who
are holders of voting rights attributed to shares of the company or through financial instruments, whatever the

percentage, excluding the directors who have been identified in Section A2 above:

From the total % of
voting rights attributed to
% voting rights S the shares, indicate,
attributed to shares e ahvoing rlg!ﬂts where appropriate, the %
Name or company : & through financial % of total e
S (including loyalty eblinents ohine ehEs of the additional votes
votes) ot attributed corresponding
to the shares with a
loyalty vote
Direct Indirect | Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
JOSE ANTONIO
FERNANDEZ GALLAR 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total percentage of voting rights held by the Board of Directors 0.00
José Antonio Ferndndez Gallar holds 3,860 shares, representing 0.0010% of share capital.
Breakdown of the indirect holding:
From the total %
of voting rights
attributed to the
shares, indicate,
% voting rights T where
h
Name or company Name o company attributed to shares 5 ot "g, = % of total voting appropriate, the
5 name of the direct : : through financial ;
name of director S (including loyalty S rights % of the
votes) additional votes
attributed
corresponding to
the shares with a
loyalty vote
No data
List the total percentage of voting rights represented on the board:
Total percentage of voting rights represented on the Board of Directors 0.00
4/8] —
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A4, If applicable, indicate any family, commercial, contractual or corporate relationships that exist among
significant shareholders to the extent that they are known to the company, unless they are insignificant or arise
in the ordinary course of business, with the exception of those reported in section A.é:

Name or company name of related party

Nature of relationship

Brief description

FORJAR CAPITAL, S.L.U., LUIS FERNANDO MARTIN
AMODIO HERRERA

Family member

Luis Fernando Martin Amodio Herrera has a 96%
ownership interest in the share capital of
Somares Invest, S.L. which, in turn, holds all the
shares into which the share capital of Forjar
Capital, S.L.U. is divided. Forjar Capital, S.L.U.
and Solid Rock Capital, 5.L.U. are owned by the
Amodio family, as disclosed in the Inside
Information notice of 21 May 2020.

SOLID ROCK CAPITAL, S.L.U., JULIO MAURICIO
MARTIN AMODIO HERRERA

Family member

Julio Mauricio Martin Amodio Herrera has a 97%
ownership interest in the share capital of Menes
Invest, S.L which, in turn, holds all the shares into
which the share capital of Solid Rock Capital, 5.L.U.
is divided. Solid Rock Capital, S.L.U. and Forjar
Capital, S.L.U. are owned by the Amodio family, as
disclosed in the Inside Information notice of 21
May 2020.

A5 If applicable, indicate any commercial, contractual or corporate relationships that exist between significant
shareholders and the company and/or its group, unless they are insignificant or arise in the ordinary course of

business:

Name or company name of related party

Nature of relationship

Brief description

FORJAR CAPITAL, S.L.U.

Commercial

The Board of Directors, based on a favourable
report by the Audit and Compliance Committee
and the abstention, in both cases, of the
proprietary directors appointed by FORJAR
CAPITAL, S.L.U. and SOLID ROCK CAPITAL,
S.L.U., agreed to authorise the Company to
sign a relationship protocol between OHLA
Group and CAABSA Group for their construction
business. The purpose of the agreement is to
promote, to the benefit of all OHLA Group
shareholders, the potential synergies arising
from the groups working together in the
construction sector while remaining separate
groups and competitors.

Obrascon Huarte Lain, S.A. and subsidiaries - 2022 Consolidated Management Report
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Name or company name of related party

Nature of relationship

Brief description

Both groups consider that, with the utmost
respect for their autonomy and independent
management, as well as applicable standards on
corporate governance and related party
transactions, their partnership could be
beneficial, especially as their geographical
markets of operation complement each other
well.

SOLID ROCK CAPITAL, S.L.U.

Commercial

The Board of Directors, based on a favourable
report by the Audit and Compliance Committee
and the abstention, in both cases, of the
proprietary directors appointed by FORJAR
CAPITAL, S.L.U. and SOLID ROCK CAPITAL,
S.L.U., agreed to authorise the Company to
sign a relationship protocol between OHLA
Group and CAABSA Group for their construction
business. The purpose of the agreement is to
promote, to the benefit of all OHLA Group
shareholders, the potential synergies arising
from the groups working together in the
construction sector, while remaining separate
groups and competitors. Both groups consider
that, with the utmost respect for their
autonomy and independent management, as
well as applicable standards on corporate
governance and related party transactions,
their partnership could be beneficial, especially
as their geographical markets of operation
complement each other well.

Obrascon Huarte Lain, S.A. and subsidiaries - 2022 Consolidated Management Report
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Ad. Unless insignificant for both parties, describe the relationships that exist between significant shareholders,
shareholders represented on the Board and directors or their representatives in the case of directors that

are legal persons.

Explain, if applicable, how the significant shareholders are represented. Specifically, indicote those directors
appointed to represent significant shareholders, those whose appointment was proposed by significant
shareholders, or who are linked to significant shareholders and/or companies in their group, specifying the
nature of such relationships or ties. In particular, mention the existence, identity and post of any directors of the
listed company, or their representatives, who are in turmn members or representatives of members of the Board
of Directors of companies that hold significant shareholdings in the listed company or in group companies of
these significant sharehclders:

Name or company name of
related director or
representative

Name or company name of
related significant
shareholder

Company name of the
group company of the
significant shareholder

Description of relationshipfpost‘

JUAN VILLAR-MIR DE FUENTES

INMOBILIARIA ESPACIO,
S.A.

INMOBILIARIA ESPACIO,
S.A.

Second deputy chairman of
Obrascon Huarte Lain, S.A. /
Natural person representative
of the chairman and CEO of
Inmobiliaria Espacio, 5.A.

JUAN VILLAR-MIR DE FUENTES

INMOBILIARIA ESPACIO,
S.A,

ESPACIO CONIL, S.A.U.

Second deputy
chairman of Obrascon
Huarte Lain, S.A. /
Representative of the
sole director of Espacio
Conil, S.A.U.

JUAN VILLAR-MIR DE FUENTES|

INMOBILIARIA ESPACIO,
S.A.

ESPACIO INFORMATION
TECNOLOGY, S.A.

Second deputy chairman of
Obrascon Huarte Lain, 5.A. /
Joint and several director of
Espacio Information Tecnology,
S.A. (until 5 April 2022)

JUAN VILLAR-MIR DE FUENTES|

INMOBILIARIA ESPACIO,
S.A.

GRUPO VILLAR MIR, S.A.U.

Second deputy chairman of
Obrascon Huarte Lain, S.A. /
Matural person representative
of the chairman and CEQO of
Grupo Villar Mir, 5.A.U.

JUAN VILLAR-MIR. DE FUENTES

INMOBILIARIA ESPACIO,
S.A.

GESTION INTEGRAL DE
SERVICIOS
INMOBILIARIOS, S.L.U.

Second deputy chairman of
Obrascdn Huarte Lain, 5.A. /
Representative of the sole
director of Gestion Integral de
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Name or company name of

Name or company name of

Company name of the group

We are Our We are About Appendices Non-financial
OHLA strategy sustainable this report statement (NFS)
ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT OF LISTED
PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANIES
||
Parties to the % of share : R Expiry date of the
concerted action capital affected Brief description of the agreement concert, if any
MAURICIO MARTIN AMODIO

HERRERA

related director or related significant company of the significant | Description of relationship/post]
representative shareholder shareholder
Servicios Inmabiliarios,
S.LU.
Second deputy
chairman of Obrascon
INMOBILIARIA ESPACIO, Huarte Lain, S.A. /

JUAN VILLAR-MIR DE FUENTES

S.A.

ARINVER, S.L.U.

Representative of the
sole director of Arinver,
S.LU.

JUAN VILLAR-MIR DE FUENTES

INMOBILIARIA ESPACIO,
S.A.

PROMOCIONES Y
PROPIEDADES
INMOBILIARIAS
ESPACIO, S.L.U.

Second deputy chairman of
Obrascon Huarte Lain, S.A. /
Chairman and CEO of
Promociones y Propiedades
Inmobiliarias Espacio, S.L.U.

JUAN VILLAR-MIR DE FUENTES

INMOBILIARIA ESPACIO,
S.A.

VILLAR MIR ENERGIA, S.L.U.

Second deputy chairman of
Obrascon Huarte Lain, S.A. /
Director of Villar Mir Energia,
S.LU.

JUAN VILLAR-MIR DE FUENTES|

INMOBILIARIA ESPACIO,
S.A.

CARTERA VIMIRA 20, S.L.U.

Second deputy chairman of
Obrascon Huarte Lain, S.A. /
Sole director of Cartera Vimira
20, S.L.U.

If any of the aforementioned agreements or concerted actions have been omended or terminated during the
year, indicate this expressly:

L)

AB.  Indicate whether any individual or company exercises or may exercise control over the company in
accordance with Article 5 of the Securities Market Act. If so, identify them:

Yes
V] No

A%. Complete the following table with details of the company's freasury shares:

At the close of the y

eqar:

A7, Indicate whether the company has been nofified of any shareholders' agreements that may affect it. in
accordance with the provisions of Articles 530 and 531 of the Spanish Corporate Enterprises Act. If so,
describe them briefly and list the shareholders bound by the agreement:

[] Yes
[¥] No

Indicate whether the company is aware of any concerted actions among its shareholders. If so, provide a brief

description:
[V] Yes
1] No
Parties to the % of share ] = Expiry date of the
concerted action capital affected Brief description of the agreement concert, if any
LUIS FERNANDO MARTIN . The Company does not
The Company is aware that the concerted
AMODIO HERRERA, JULIO 25.96 action exists, but not of its terms. knqw wher‘n the concerted
action expires.

8/8]
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Number of direct Number of indirect Total percentage of
shares shares (*) share capital
738,857 0.13

*) Through:

Name or company name of direct shareholder

No data

Explain any significant changes during the year:

Explain significant changes

N/A

Number of direct
shares
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Obrascon Huarte Lain, S.A. and subsidiaries - 2022 Consolidated Management Report

267



Management report 2022

Integrated annual report

268

ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT OF LISTED
PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANIES

A.10. Provide a detailed description of the conditions and terms of the authority given to the Board of Directors to

Authorisation was given at the Annual General Meeting held on 29 June 2021 so that the Company’s Board of Directors, pursuant to Article 146 of the Spanish
Corporate Enterprises Act, could repurchase treasury shares under any form of transfer accepted by law, directly or through a subsidiary or investee, up to the
maximum amount permitted by law. The authorisation is granted for a period of five years and the shares may be acquired at a maximum price of EUR 6 per
share, with no minimum price limit, rendering null and void the unused portion of the authorisation resolved in this connection at the Annual General Meeting

issue, repurchase, or dispose of treasury shares.

held on 21 June 2016.

Pursuant to Article 146.1(a) of the Spanish Corporate Enterprises Act, the shares repurchased may be granted to company employees or directors as remuneration
or as 3 result of duly agreed-upon share option plans or share capital ownership plans.

There is also a current mandate approved by the Annual General Meeting held on 15 June 2019 delegating to the Board of Directors the power to issue shares in

accordance with Article 297.1(b) of the Spanish Corporate Enterprises Act, and the power to, in one or several stages and at any time, increase capital of the

Company with pre-emptive rights. In this regard, the Board of Directors was authorised to increase the share capital at the time and by the amount that it

decides, without consulting the General Meeting, in one or several stages and at any time, within a maximum period of five years from the date of the General

Meeting that approved the delegation, for the maximum provided by law, i.e., EUR 85,964,486.7, equal to half the share capital at that time, through the
issuance of new shares -with or without a share premium- with the equivalent value of the new shares to be issued consisting of monetary contributions.

The Board of Directors may establish the terms and conditions of the capital increase, freely offer unsubscribed new shares during the pre-emption period, and
establish, in the event of incomplete subscription, that the capital only be increased by the amount of the shares subscribed and that the Article of the
Company's bylaws on share capital be redrafted.

The Board of Directors may also apply for the admission to trading of the new shares issued under this delegated power on either Spanish or foreign official

organised secondary markets, and perform the necessary formalities and actions for the admission to trading before the competent bodies of the various
Spanish or foreign securities markets.

Al

Estimated float:

Estimated float 51.50

A.12. Indicate whether there are any restrictions (articles of incorporation, legislative or of any other nature} placed

A3

on the transfer of shares and/or any restrictions on voting rights. In particular, indicate the existence of any

type of restriction that may inhibit a takeover of the company through acquisition of its shares on the market,
as well as such regimes for pricr autharisation or notification that may be applicable, under sector regulations,

to acquisitions or transfers of the company's financial instruments.

Yes
[¥] No

Indicate whether the general shareholders' meeting has resolved to adopt measures to neutralise a

takeover bid by virtue of the provisions of Law &/2007.

Yes
(V] No

Obrascon Huarte Lain, S.A. and subsidiaries - 2022 Consolidated Management Report
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If s0, explain the measures approved and the terms under which such limitations would cease 1o apply:

A.l4. Indicate whether the company has issued shares that are not traded on a regulated EU market.

Yes
V] No

If so, indicate each share class and the rights and obligations confered:

B. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

B.l. Indicate whether there are any differences between the minimum quorum regime established by the Spanish
Corporate Enterprises Act for General Shareholders’ Meetings and the guorum set by the company, and if so

give details:

Yes
[¥] No

B2, Indicate whether there are any differences between the company's manner of adopting corporate
resolutions and the regime provided in the Spanish Corporate Enterprises Act and, if so, give details:

[V] No

B.3. Indicate the rules for amending the company's articles of incorporation. In particular, indicate the majorities
required for amendment of the articles of incorporation and any provisions in place to protect shareholders’
rights in the event of amendments to the articles of incorporation.

Pursuant to Article 17 of the Bylaws, approval by an absolute majority of shareholders at the General Meeting Is required for amendments to the Bylaws, provided

that ders g the G I

g in perscn or by proxy reach at |east fifty per cent of the subscribed share capital with voting rights.

If shareholders holding at least twenty-five percent of the subscribed voting shares are present in person or by proxy, but do not reach fifty percent of the share
capital, the resolution may only be validly adopted with the affirmative vote of shareholders representing two-thirds of the share capital present in person or by

proxy at the Meeting.

B4, Give details of attendance at General Shareholders’ Meetings held during the reporting year and the two

previous years:

Attendance data
. % physical % present by % distance voting
Date of | meeti Total
sbelilasi presence proxy Electronic voting Other
15/06/2020 14.64 17.89 0.01 0.05 32.59
OF which float: 0.00 1.89 0.01 0.05 1.95
11/8] e
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Message from We are

| ]
Attendance data
) % physical % present by % distance voting
Date of general meeti Total
9 0 presence proxy Electronic voting Other
26/03/2021 0.00 14.79 0.21 15.34 30.34
Of which float: 0.00 6.79 0.21 0.70 7.70
29/06/2021 0.00 16.84 0.02 14.78 31.64
Of which float: 0.00 0.84 0.02 0.14 1.00
02/06/2022 0.00 36.58 0.02 0.26 36.86
Of which float: 0.00 3.51 0.02 0.26 3.79

B5 Indicate whether any point on the agenda of the General Shareholders' Meetings during the year was not
approved by the shareholders for any reason.

Yes
V] No

B.4.  Indicate whether the articles of incorporation contain any restrictions requiring a minimum number of shares to
attend General Shareholders' Meetings, or to vote remotely:

Yes
[V] No

B.7. Indicate whether it has been established that certain decisions, other than those established by law, entailing
an acquisition, disposal or confribution to another company of essential assets or other similar corporate
transactions must be submitted for approval to the General Shareholders' Meeting.

Yes
[¥] No

88 Indicate the address and manner of access on the company's website to information on corporate
governance and other information regarding General Shareholders' Meetings that must be made available
to shareholders through the company website.

Website: www.ohl.es/www.chla-group.com
Information on corporate governance: path: ohla-group.com/en/shareholder-and-investor-information/corporate-governancey
Other information on General Meetings: path: hitps://ehla-group.com/en/shareholder-and-investor-information/corporate-governance/Annual General Meeting

=
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Obrascon Huarte Lain, S.A. and subsidiaries - 2022 Consolidated Management Report

Obrascon Huarte Lain, S.A. and subsidiaries - 2022 Consolidated Management Report

Our We are About Appendices Non-financial
the Chairman OHLA strategy sustainable this report statement (NFS)
ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT OF LISTED
PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANIES
||
C. STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY'S ADMINISTRATION
C.l. Board of Directors
Cl1 Maximum and minimum number of directors established in the articles of incorporation and the
number set by the general meeting:
Maximum number of directors 13
Minimum number of directors 7
Number of directors set by the general meeting 10
Cl2 Complete the following table on Board members:
Name or
company name Category of Position on Date first Date of last Election
of director Representative director the Board appointed appointment procedure
CARMEN DE RESOLUTION
ANDRES OF GENERAL
CONDE Independent DIRECTOR 09/07/2018 28/05/2019 | MEETING
REYES RESOLUTION
CALDERON OF GENERAL
Independent DIRECTOR 27/05/2015 28/05/2019
CUADRADO pel /05/ /05/ MEETING
CESAR RESOLUTION
CANEDO- OF GENERAL
ARGUELLES Independent DIRECTOR 09/07/2018 28/05/2019 | MEETING
TORREJON
FRANCISCO JOSE RESOLUTION
GARCIA MARTIN OF GENERAL
Independent DIRECTOR 29/07/2021 02/06/2022 | MEETING
JUAN ANTONIO RESOLUTION
SANTAMERA OF GENERAL
SANCHEZ Independent DIRECTOR 23/06/2016 29/06/2021 | MEETING
LUIS FERNANDO RESOLUTION
MARTIN AMODIO OF GENERAL
HERRERA Proprietary CHAIRMAN 04/06,/2020 26/03/2021 MEETING
13781
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Percentage of Board

10.00

PROPRIETARY DIRECTORS

Name or company
name of director

Name or company name
of the significant
shareholder represented
by the director
or that nominated
the director

Profile

LUIS FERNANDO
MARTIN AMODIO
HERRERA

FORJAR CAPITAL, 5.L.U.

Graduate in Civil Engineering from Universidad La Salle (Mexico). Founding
partner and co-chairman of Caabsa Group, a business consartium established
in 1979 comprising 30 companies in the construction, real estate, concession
and service industries.

JULIO MAURICIO
MARTIN AMODIO
HERRERA

SOLID ROCK CAPITAL,
S.LU.

Graduate in Civil Engineering from Universidad La Salle (Mexico). Founding
partner and co-chairman of Caabsa Group, a business consortium established
in 1979 comprising 30 companies in the construction, real estate, concession
and service industries.

JUAN VILLAR- MIR

GRUPO VILLAR MIR,

Graduate in Economics and Business Studies from Universidad Auténoma de
Madrid. He is currently chairman of Inmaobiliaria Espacio, S.A. and Grupo Villar

| |
Name or
company name Category of Position on Date first Date of last Election
of director Representative director the Board appointed appointment procedure
;:’A"ngo RESOLUTION
: DEPUTY OF GENERAL
MARTIN Proprietary CHAIRMAN 04/06/2020 |  26/03/2021 |\
G
AMODIO 10
HERRERA
JOSE ANTONIO CHIEF RESOLUTION
FERNANDEZ EXECUTIVE OF GENERAL
Executive 28/06/2018 28/05/2019
GALLAR OFFICER /06/ /05/ MEETING
JUAN VILLAR- DEPUTY EIE:S(?EL:IJ;IRgr
MIR DE . CHAIRMAN
Proprieta 25/06/1996 28/05/2019
FUENTES prietary 20 /06/ /05/ MEETING
LUIS FERNANDO RESOLUTION
AMODIO OF GENERAL
GIOMBINI Proprietary DIRECTOR 29/07/2021 02/06/2022 | MEETING
Total number of directors 10

Indicate any cessations, whether through resignation or by resolution of the general meeting. that have taken
place in the Board of Directors during the reporting period:

F
DE FUENTES SAU. Mir, S.A.U. and director of Ferraglobe PLC.
LUIS FERNANDO Graduate in Civil Engineering from Universidad Anahuac México Norte. He has
AMODIO GIOMBINI  |FORJAR CAPITAL, S.L.U. |held several positions in Caabsa Group and is a founding partner of Throw

App Co.

Total number of proprietary directors

4

Percentage of Board

40.00

EXTERNAL INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Name or Category of the Specllallsed IndlcaFe whether
company name : : committees of the director left
of directo e S D o hich he/sh before the end of
i r o appointment Date of cessation which he/she ‘ ore the [s]
was a member his or her term of
office
No data

C13 Complete the following tables on the members of the Board and their categories:

Name or company
name of director

Profile

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CARMEN DE ANDRES
CONDE

First woman in Spain to earn a degree in Civil Engineering. She has experience in the public sector (Spanish
Ministry of Public Works, Spanish Ministry of Industry and Energy and the Spanish state holding company
SEPI, where she has held executive positions related to the areas of technology and innovation, and in the
private sector (Uralita and Typsa). She is currently the founder and CEQ of Creatividad y Tecnologia, a
company engaged in technology consulting. National Civil Engineering Award winner (2021).

Name or company Post in
name of director organisation
chart of the Rt
company
JF?:E@:I\T;S;:;LLAR Civil Engineer with specialisation in hydraulics and energy from ETS ICCP
Chief Executive Officer in Madrid. Master's Degree in Construction and Real Estate Company
Management ("MDI").

Total number of executive directors

14 /8]l
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REYES CALDERON
CUADRADO

PhD in Economics and Philosophy from the University of Navarra, where she has served as Dean of
Economics and Director of Reputation. She completed the Senior Management Program at IESE Business
School and the Digital Transformation program at Instituto de Empresa. She holds half a dozen patents on
Artificial Intelligence applied to operational risk, reputational risk, and energy consumption. She has been
secretary of the Board of Directors of the Instituto de Empresa y Humanismo, independent director and
chairwoman of the Audit Committee of the Corporacion Publica Empresarial de Navarra, and she is currently
an independent director for Abside media. She is a Corporate Governance and Ethics Professor at the
Francisco de Vitoria University, having been a visiting Professor at the Hass School (University of Berkeley),

15/ 8]
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EXTERNAL INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Name or company
name of director

Profile

the School of Economics at the University College of London, and the Sorbonne. As an artist, she is the
author of 12 novels translated into several languages and has received the Azorin Award and the Abogados
Novel Award.

CESAR
CANEDO-
ARGUELLES
TORREION

Civil engineer. He has successfully led projects such as Prointec, in which he was the chairman from 1990 to|
2013; during this tenure he led the integration with Soluziona (Unién Fenosa Group). He has been the
chairman of Inse Rail, S.L. He has received outstanding distinctions: medal of honour from the Spanish
Association of Civil Engineers (2005); medal for professional services from the Spanish Association of Civil
Engineers (1995); and medal of honour from the Spanish Road Association (2013).

FRANCISCO JOSE
GARCIA MARTIN

He holds a Civil Engineering Degree from the Technical University of Catalonia and a Master's Degree in
Construction and Real Estate Management from the Technical University of Madrid. For over 15 years, he
held various positions of responsibility in FCC until he was appointed General Director of FCC Construccion
in 2001. In 2009, he joined Grupo Isolux Corsan as President of Corsan-Corviam, where he subsequently
held the position of Chief Executive Officer of the Group. Medal of honour from the Spanish Association of
Civil Engineers (2022).

JUAN ANTONIO

Doctorate in Civil Engineering from Universidad Politécnica de Madrid and Graduate in Economics and
Business Studies from UNED. Master's Degree in Planning from Universidad Politécnica de Madrid,
Master's Degree in Urban Planning from Instituto de Estudios de la Administracion Local and Master’s

SANTAMERA Degree in Budgetary Analysis Technigues in the Public Sector from Instituto de Estudios Fiscales. He was
SANCHEZ President of the Spanish Association of Civil Engineers (Colegio de Ingenieros de Caminos, Canales y
Puertos) and the Fundacion Caminos foundation, and Director of the UPM Civil Engineering School.
Total number of independent directors 5

Percentage of Board 50.00

Indicate whether any director classified as independent receives from the company or any company in its
group any amount or benefit other than remuneration as a director, or has or has had a business relationship
with the company or any company in its group during the past year, whether in his or her own name oras a
significant shareholder, director or senior executive of a company that has or has had such a relationship.

If so, include a reasoned statement by the Board explaining why it believes that the director in question can
perform his or her duties as an independent director.

Name or company
name of director Description of the relationship Reasoned statement
CARMEN DE ANDRES
CONDE B ebs
16 /8]
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Name or company
name of director Description of the relationship Reasoned statement
REYES CALDERON
CUADRADO N/A N/A
CESAR
CANEDO-
ARGUELLES N/A NfA
TORREION
FRANCISCO JOSE
GARCIA MARTIN N/A N/A
JUAN ANTONIO
SANTAMERA
SANCHEZ N/A N/A

OTHER EXTERNAL DIRECTORS

Identify the other external directors, indicate the reasons why they cannot be considered either proprietary or independent,
and detail their ties with the company or its management or shareholders:

Name or company Company, manager or
f di h hich
name of director Rencons shareholder to whicl Profile
or to whom the
director is related
No data
Total number of other external directors NfA
Percentage of Board N/A

Indicate any changes that have occurred during the period in each director's category:

Mame or company name of

director

Date of change Previous category

Current category

No data

Cl4 Complete the following table with information relating to the number of female directors at the close of
the past four years, as well as the category of each:

% of total directors for each
Number of female directors
category
2022 2021 2020 2019 2022 2021 2020 2019
Executive 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
17781
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) % of total directors for each Clé Describe the measures, if any, agreed upon by the nomination committee to ensure that selection
Number of female directors category procedures do not contain hidden biases which impede the selection of female directors and that
2022 2021 2020 2019 2022 2021 2020 2019 the company fieliberotely seeks Grjd irjclUdEff; women v?fho meet the target professional profile
among potential candidates, making it possible to achieve a balance between men and women.
Also indicate whether these measures include encouraging the company to have a significant
Proprietary 1 1 0.00 0.00 25.00 25.00 number of female senior executives:
Independent: 2 2 2 2 40.00 40.00 50.00 50.00
Other E | 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 ] Explanation of measures:
Total 2 2 3 3 20.00 20.00 30.00 30.00 As set out in the Regulations of the Board of Directors and the Director Selection Policy, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee specifically ensures that,
on filling vacancies, the selection procedures are not afflicted by bias hindering the appointment of women directors and deliberately seek women who could
Cli  Indicate whether the company has diversity policies in relation to its Board of Directors on such questions potentially be candidates for the post.
as age, gender, disability, education and professional experience. Small and medium-sized enterprises, in Tn compliance with this principle, when vacandies have arisen, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee hass endeavoured bo Invite its mermbers and
accordance with the definition set out in the Spanish Auditing Act, will have to report at least the policy external advisers to present female candidates who might, in principle, have a professional profile that matches the positions to be filled.

that they have implemented in relation to gender diversity. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has not expressly agreed on measures to encourage the Campany to have a significant number of female senior

managers. However, the principles included in the Company's Human Resources Policy (111 Equality Plan) include strengthening the principle of equal opportunities

(V1] Yes as a growth driver and promoting non-discrimination based on, among other reasons, gender, promoting a greater presence of women in positions of responsibility
[ No within the organisation and favouring their access to all levels and categories, espedially in those in which they are the least represented.
[1] Partial policies

L If in spite of any measures adopted there are few or no female directors or senior managers, explain the
If so, describe these diversity policies, their objectives, the measures and the way in which they have reason for this:

been applied and their results over the year. Also indicate the specific measures adopted by the Board
of Directors and the nomination and remuneration committee to achieve a balanced and diverse
presence of directors.

Explanation of reasons

f th d t I di it i Iain th h There were no vacancies in the Board in 2022, so no selection process was carried out. However, the Company remains committed to gender diversity and
€ company does not apply a diversity policy, explain ihe reasons why. will pay special attention to ensuring that when vacancies arise the candidate selection process will include deliberately seeking potential female candidates
with a view to achieving a balanced membership between men and women.

Description of policies, objectives, measures and how they have been applied, and results achieved

" | — —_— : I ] Cl17  Explain the conclusions of the nomination commiitee regarding verification of compliance with the policy
poﬁwc?mpany has rules regarding integration and diversity management that apply to the entire OHLA Group. Their implementation is a key priority of the sustainability aimed at promoting an appropriate composition of the Board of Directors.

1n 2017, the Board of Directurs approved a Director Selaction Pollcy. Measures in the policy Included: The Momination and Remuneration Committee verifies compliance with the Director Selection Policy on an annual basis.

- endeavouring to ensure that candidates are always selected from among perscns recognised for their solvency, competence and experience, and

In 2022, th mmil verifi mplied with th li n diversi -, an know| perien irectors. All din
assessing the knowledge, skills, experience and merits of the proposed candidate, as well as their commitment to perferming the role with the required are Eersof-l:r?;:ognlxjefo? u:ﬁ;:amzfzﬁpfmrﬂ::m'i;;:ﬁc? Sn-dersRy,of grndet, 20d of krvavriedge 3w e o ol ew o) iy
dedication, and ) g
- ensuring, in particular, that on filling the vacancies, the selection procedures are not afflicted by any blas hindering the appointment of female directors - o
and deliberately seek women who could potentially be candidates for the post. Cl18 If applicable, explain the reasons for the appointment of any proprietary directors at the request of

L shareholders with less than a 3% eguity interest:

Name or company name of

shareholder Re=

No data

Indicate whether the Board has declined any formal requests for presence on the Board from shareholders whose
equity interest is equal to or greater than that of others at whose request proprietary directors have been
appointed. If so, explain why the requests were not granted:

[1 Yes
[V] No
18781 19/ 8] —
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Cl19 Indicate the powers, if any, delegated by the Board of Directors, including those relating to the option of Name or company name of Company name of the
issuing or re-purchasing shares, to directors or board committees: d‘::’o:r p«:o: entity Position Does the director have
. group executive powers?
JOSE ANTONIO OHL ARELLANO
Name or company name of : e Director NO
TR SE Brief description FERNANDEZ GALLAR CONSTRUCTION COMPANY
All the powers of the Board of Directors, except for those that are non-delegable JOSE ANTONIO COMMUNITY ASPHALT, CORP Director NO
under the law or within the meaning of Article 5 of the Board Regulations, which FERNANDEZ GALLAR
establish as such powers: the approval of the general corporate strategies and of JOSE ANTONIO
basic corporate organisational criteria, management objectives and annual FERNANDEZ GALLAR OHLA BUILDING, INC i r NO
budgets; investment and f:na ncing pollcfy; Fhe structure ,Of 1.116 corporate group; the JOSE ANTONIO SAWGRASS ROCK QUARRY, INC| _
corparate governance policy; the organisation and functioning of the Board of FERNANDEZ GALLAR. Director NO
Directors; the corporate social responsibility policy; the policy in relation to
dividends and treasury shares; the appointment, remuneration and, where JOSE ANTONIO Natural person
appropriate, removal of the company’s senior managers; control and evaluation of FERNANDEZ GALLAR OHL OPERACIONES, 5.A.U. r(lepresentatwe of the sole NO
JOSE ANTONIO FERNANDEZ GALLAR | executive management; identification of the main corporate risks and director
implementation and oversight of internal control systems, appropriate risk and JOSE ANTONIO OBRASCON HUARTE LAIN, Chairman and CEO YES
information management system; policy for reporting to and communicating with FERNANDEZ GALLAR DESARROLLOS, S.A.U.
shareholders, markets and public opinion, with particular attention to the financial JOSE ANTONIO i
information that all listed companies must periodically make public; the creation or FERNANDEZ GALLAR OHL HOLDING, SARL Director NO
acquisition of ownership interests in special purpose vehicles or entities domiciled
in countries or territories considered to be tax havens; and in general any JOSE ANTONIO CENTRO CANALEJAS Director NO
transactions that involve the disposition of substantial corporate assets, major FERNANDEZ GALLAR MADRID, S.L.
corporate transactions and those specifically provided for in the aforementioned JOSE ANTONIO ;
regulations. FERNANDEZ GALLAR ALSE PARK, S.L. Deputy chairman NO
;L;l:: ::;gzi*lgLMR :P;-OYECTO CANALEJAS GROUP, Director NO
CLI0  Identify any members of the Board who are also directors, representatives of directors or managers in -
other companies forming part of the listed company's group: JOSE ANTONIO | .
FERNANDEZ GALLAR OHL INICIATIVAS, SARL Director NO
temer m;;mpanyrname ” comp::: n::;;of e Feiion Does the diecor have JEon AToND PACADAR, S.A.U Chairman NO
gan executive powers? FERNANDEZ GALLAR it
JOSE ANTONIO .
FERNANDEZ GALLAR. EIRARSIR ARl - ' NO C.1.11  List the positions of director, administrator or representative thereof, held by directors or representatives of
JOSE ANTONIO PLAYA 4-5 MAYAKOBA, S.A. o : " fiireclors who F:re members of the company's board of directors in other entities, whether or not they are
FERNANDEZ GALLAR DEC.V. e Iisted companies:
JOSE ANTONIO : Identity of the director Company name of the listed
OHLDM, S.A. DE C.V. Director NO iti
FERNANDEZ GALLAR ! or representative or non-listed entity ka=on
::f::: :NNJE_:IQLLAR OHLA USA, INC Director NO JUAN VILLAR-MIR DE FUENTES FERROGLOBE PLC DIRECTOR
CARMEN DE ANDRES CONDE CREATIVIDAD Y TECNOLOGIA, S.A. SOLE DIRECTOR
JOSE ANTONIO
i REYES CALDERON CUADRADO ABSIDE MEDIA, S.L. DIRECTOR
FERNANDEZ GALLAR JUDLAU CONTRACTING, INC | Director NO ’
JOSE ANTONIO CAC VERO I Director NO :lé{fRZiRANANDO RN ATt CAABSA Infraestructura, S.A. DE C.V. CHAIRMAN
FERNANDEZ GALLAR
LUIS FERNANDO MARTIN AMODIO CAABSA Constructora, S.A. DE C.V. CHAIRMAN
HERRERA
20/ 8]  — 21/ 8]
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Identity of the director

Company name of the listed

HERRERA cV

or representative or non-listed entity postion
LUIS FERNANDO MARTIN AMODIO PREFABRICADOS Y TRANSPORTES PRET, CHAIRMAN
HERRERA S.A.DEC.V.
LUIS FERNANDO MARTIN AMODIO
HERRERA TRUCKS PRET, S.A. DE C.V. CHAIRMAN
AMECSA ARRENDADORA DE MAQUINARIA
RTSEERNCARLEIROR LY RGN ESPECIALIZADA DE CAMIONES, S.A. DE CHAIRMAN

JULIO MAURICIO MARTIN AMODIO CAABSA Infraestructura, S.A. DE C.V.

SECRETARY, DIRECTOR

HERRERA

LD ERICO MRETR NI CAABSA Constructora, S.A. DE C.V. DIRECTOR

HERRERA

JULIO MAURICIO MARTIN AMODIO PREFABRICADOS Y TRANSPORTES PRET,

HERRERA SA DECY. SECRETARY, DIRECTOR
ﬂi&:‘:umao HAENANR TRUCKS PRET, S.A. DE C.V. SECRETARY, DIRECTOR

AMECSA ARRENDADORA DE MAQUINARIA
ESPECIALIZADA DE CAMIONES, S.A. DE
cv

JULIO MAURICIO MARTIN AMODIO
HERRERA

SECRETARY, DIRECTOR

Reyes Calderdn Cuadrado is independent director of Abside Media, S.L.
Julio Mauricio Martin Amaodio Herrera is director and treasurer of CAABSA Constructora, S.A. de C.V.

Indicate, where appropriate, the other remunerated activities of the directors or directors' representatives,
whatever their nature, other than those indicated in the previous table.

Identity of the director or representative

Other paid activities

No data

C.1.12 Indicate whether the company has established rules on the maximum number of company boards on
which its directors may sit, explaining if necessary and identifying where this is regulated, if applicable:

[V] Yes
1] No

Explanation of the rules and identfification of the document where this is regulated

1In accordance with the Company's Board Regulations, in general and except where duly justified by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, individuals

holding mare than five directorships in other companies may not be proposed as directors,

C.1.13 Indicate the remuneration received by the Board of Directors as a whole for the following iterns:

Remuneration accruing in favour of the Board of Directors in the financial year (thousands of euros)

3,446
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Funds accumulated by current directors for long-term savings systems with consolidated
economic rights (thousands of euros)

Funds accumulated by current directors for long-term savings systems with unconsolidated
economic rights (thousands of euros)

Pension rights accumulated by former directors (thousands of euros)

Remuneraticn accrued in 2022 Is in line with the remuneration policy approved at the Annual General Meeting held on 2 June 2022,

C.1.14 Identify members of senior management who are not also executive directors and indicate their total
remuneration accrued during the year:

Name or company name

Pasition(s)

JOSE EMILIO PONT PEREZ

GENERAL MANAGER FOR EUROPE AND LATIN AMERICA

JOSE MARIA DEL CUVILLO PEMAN

GENERAL MANAGER OF THE LEGAL DEPARTMENT

GONZALO TARGHETTA REINA

GENERAL MANAGER OF CORPORATE RESOURCES

TOMAS RUIZ GONZALEZ

CORPORATE GENERAL MANAGER

JOSE ANTONIO DE CACHAVERA SANCHEZ

GENERAL MANAGER OF SERVICES

JOSE MARIA SAGARDOY LLONIS

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

FAUSTO GONZALEZ CASADO

CONCESSIONS GENERAL MANAGER

DANIEL RUIZ ANDUJAR

GENERAL MANAGER FOR NORTH AMERICA

ASHOK PATEL

GENERAL MANAGER FOR NORTH AMERICA

Number of women in senior management

Percentage of total senior management 0.00
Total remuneration of senior management (thousands of euros) 9,030
Total ation includes the aof Juan Carlos Pefia Ferndndez, Corporate Director of Internal Audit.
It 2lso includes settlements paid to directors who stepped down in 2022, Directors who stepped down in 2022:
- Ashok Patel LEFT OHLA Group on 14 July 2022,
C.1.15 Indicate whether the Board regulations were amended during the year:
[Vl Yes
[1] Na
23/8]  —
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| Description of amendment(s)

|: Articles 10 and 13 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors were amended in 2022.

C.1.16 Specify the procedures for selection, appointment, re-election and removal of directors. List the
competent bodies, steps to follow and criteria applied in each procedure.

Proposals for the selection, appeintment or re-election of directors submitted by the Board of Directors to shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and
decisions on appointments adopted by the Board using the powers of co-option vested in it by law are based on a recommendation or report by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee. The Nomination and Rem jon Ci i shall end to ensure that candidates are selected from among persons
recognised for their solvency, competence and experience (Article 20 of the Board Regulations). For re-glections, it will assess the quality of the directors” work
and dedication to discharging their duties (Article 21 of the Board Regulations).

Directors will cease to held office once their period of tenure has expired and when decided by the Annual General Meeting or the Boeard of Directors by
wvirtue of the powers vested in them by law or a5 mandated by the Company bylaws. Directors must also tender their resignation to the Board of Directors
when any of the grounds for resignation outlined in the Board Regulations arise, always based on a report by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

C.1.17 Explain to what extent the annual evaluation of the Board has given rise to significant changes in its
internal organisation and in the procedures applicable to its acfivities:

| Description of amendment(s)

The annual revaluation carried out in 2022 did not give rise to any significant change in the internal organisation or procedures and work continued intemally so
that the decision-making process would remain effective and satisfactory,
Describe the evaluation process and the areas evaluated by the Board of Directors with or without the
help of an external advisor, regarding the functioning and composition of the Board and its committees
and any other area or aspect that has been evaluated.

Description of the evaluation process and areas evaluated

The evaluation process entailed directors filling cut a questionnaire on the structure and functioning, responsibilities and effectiveness, and the performance of the
Board, the chairman, the secretary and Board committees, as well as the Remuneration Policy.

The findings from the guestionnaire are set out in a report submitted to the Board of Directors for its analysis.

C.1.18 Provide details, for years in which the evaluation was carried out with the help of an external advisor, of
the business relationships that the external advisor or company in its group maintains with the company or
any company in its group.

’7 The Company did not engage external advisors to perform the evaluation in 2022,
C.1.19 Indicate the cases in which directors are obliged to resign.

Article 23 of the Board Regulations states that directors must tender their resignation to the Board and, if the latter sees it fit, resign in the following cases:

a) Proprietary directors, if the shareholder they represant dispasad of its entire shareholding. If such shareholders reduce their stakes, thereby losing some
of their entitiement to proprietary directors, the latter number should be reduced accordingly.
b) Executive directors, when they no longer hold the executive positions to which their appointment as director was associated,
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c) All directors, when any of the conflicts of interest or prohibitions set out by the legislation in force arise or they have interests that go against those of the
Company.

d) All directors, when they are severely reprimanded by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as a result of a breach of their director duties.

e) All directors, when their remaining on the Board may jeopardise the Company's interests, or when the reasons for which they were appointed cease to exist.

Article 23.3 of the Board Regulations states that directors must inform the Board of any circumstances, whether or not related to their actions in the Company
itseff, that might harm the company’s standing and reputation, tendering their resignation where appropriate,

C.1.20 Are qualified majorities other than those established by law required for any particular kind of decision?

] Yes
(V1] No

If so, describe the differences.

C.1.21 Explain whether there are any specific requirements, other than those relating to directors, for being
appointed as chairman of the Board of Directors.

Yes
[V] No

C.1.22 Indicate whether the articles of incorporation or Board regulations establish any limit as to the age of
directars:

Yes
[V] No

C.1.23 Indicate whether the articles of incorporation or Board regulations establish any term limits for
independent directors other than those required by law or any other additional requirements that are
stricter than those provided by law:

Yes
(V] No

C.1.24 Indicate whether the articles of incorporation or Board regulations establish specific rules for appointing
other directors as proxy to vote in Board meetings, if so the procedure for doing so and, in particular, the
maximum number of proxies that a director may hold, as well as whether any limit has been established
regarding the categories of director to whom votes may be delegated beyond the limits imposed by law.
If s, briefly describe these rules.

Article 18 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors states that directors who cannot attend Board meetings shall endeavour to grant a proxy to ancther member
of the Board of Directors of the same category and provide the relevant instructions, It also says that external directors may only delegate their representation to
anather external director.

C.1.25 Indicate the number of meetings held by the Board of Directors during the year. Also indicate, if
applicable, the number of times the Board met without the chairman being present. Meetings where the
chairman gave specific proxy instructions are to be counted as attended.

Number of Board meetings 8
Number of board meetings held 0
without the chairman's presence
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Indicate the number of meetings held by the coordinating director with the other directors, where there
was neither attendance nor representation of any executive director:

Number of meetings 0

Indicate the number of meetings held by each Board committee during the year:

Number of meetings held by the
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION 5
COMMITTEE

Number of meetings held by
the AUDIT AND 11
COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

Number of meetings held by the

GUARANTEE COMMITTEE =

C.1.26 Indicate the number of meetings held by the Board of Directors during the year with member
attendance data.

Number of meetings at which at least 80% of the directors were present in person 8
Attendance in person as a % of total votes during the year 97.50
Number of meetings with attendance in person or proxies given with specific instructions, by all directors 7
Votes cast in person and by proxies with specific instructions, as a % of total votes during the year &7 &0

C.1.Z7 Indicate whether the individual and consolidated financial statements submitted to the Board for
issue are cerfified in advance:

[V] Yes
[] No

Identify, if applicable, the person(s) who certified the individual and consclidated financial statements of
the company for issue by the Board:

Name Paosition

TOMAS RUIZ GONZALEZ CORPORATE GENERAL MANAGER

C.1.28 Explain the mechanisms, if any, established by the Board of Directors to ensure that the financial
statements it presents fo the General Shareholders' Meeting are prepared in accordance with
accounting regulations.

The financial statements, as well as all other periodic financial information or any other infarmation which prudence dictates should be disclosed to the markets,
are examined by the Audit and Compliance Committee before they are authorised for issue in a meeting at which the external auditors report on the stage of
completion of the audit. The financial statements are examined again at a final meeting at which the external auditors report on their draft auditor’s report, in
accordance with the Regulations of the Board of Directors. In addition, the Audit and Compliance Committee, at any of its ordinary meetings, may call upon the
external auditors to attend, if considered necessary, to be informed about, or darify, any discrepancy, and provide, as the case may be, additional informaticn to
avoid a qualified opinion.

Lastly, the auditors present their draft auditor's report to the Board of Directors in a full board meeting held to authorise the financial statements for issue.

26/ 8]  —
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According to Article 42 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors will endeavour to prepare the finandial statements so that they do not
qgive rise to qualifications by the auditors, The Company has complied with this recommendation since it has been listed on the securities market.

C.1.2%9 Is the secretary of the Board also a director?

[] Yes
(V] No

If the secretary is not a director, complete the following table:

Name or company name of the secretary

Representative

JOSE MARIA DEL CUVILLO PEMAN

C.1.30 Indicate the specific mechanisms established by the company to safeguard the independence of the
external auditors, and any mechanisms to safeguard the independence of financial analysts, investment
tranks and rating agencies, including how legal provisions have been implemented in practice.

One of the Audit and Compliance Committee's functions is to receive information on matters that might compromise the auditors’ independence and any
other matters related to the finandial audit process, and to recelve other notifications provided for in auditing laws and technical auditing standards. The
committee examines the external auditor's independence. At an annual meeting, it assesses the external auditor's independence and reviews compliances
with requirements regarding conflicts of interest established in Spanish Audit Law 22/2015, of 20 July. The committee considered that this independence had
been demonstrated, paying particular to the amount relating to fees for non-audit work. In addition, in accordance with Article 42 of the Board Regulations,
the Board shall refrain from proposing the engagement of auditors when the estimated fees exceed 10% of the audit firm’s revenue in the previous year.

In addition, at meetings at which the General Economic and Financial Department requests authorisation for the audit firm or other companies in its network to
provide non-audit services, the Audit and Compliance Committee reiterates the need to only engage services deemed essential to ensure auditor independence

and guarantee compliance with current standards relating to the provision of non-audit services.

On an annual basis, the committee issues a report in which it expresses its cpinion on the independence of the Company's and its Group's auditor.

The committee pays special attention to preserving its independence in any process carried to engage financial analysts, investment banks or rating agencies in the

ordinary course of the Company's business.

C.1.31 Indicate whether the company changed its external auditor during the year. If so, identify the

incoming and outgoing auditors.

Yes
V] No

If there were any disagreements with the cutgoing auditor, explain their content:

Yes
[] No
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C.1.32 Indicate whether the audit firm performs any non-audit work for the company and/or its group and, if so,
state the amount of fees it received for such work and express this amount as a percentage of the total
fees invoiced to the company and/or its group for audit work:

[V] Yes
[1] No

Group

ZE companies

Amount invoiced for non-audit
services (thousand euros)
Amount invoiced for non-audit
work/Amount for audit work (in 6.48 1.70 4.09
%)

C.1.33 Indicate whether the auditors’ report on the financial statements for the preceding year contains a
qualified opinion or reservations. If so, indicate the reasons given to shareholders at the general meeting by
the chairman of the audit committee to explain the content and extent of the qualified opinion or
reservations.

Yes
[V] No

C.1.34 Indicate the number of consecutive years for which the current audit firm has been auditing the
company's individual and/or consolidated financial staterments. Also, indicate the number of years
audited by the current audit firm as a percentage of the total number of years in which the financial
statements have been audited:

Individual| Consolidated

Number of consecutive years 2 2

Individual | Consolidated

Number of years audited by the current audit firm/number of years in which

the company has been audited (%) 0.06 0.06

C.1.35 Indicate whether there is a procedure for directors to be sure of having the information necessary to
prepare the meetings of the governing bodies with sufficient time: provide details if applicable:
[V] Yes
[1 No

Details of the procedure

The required decumentation and information is subject to analysis or approval at each meeting of the Board of Directors and Board committees, along with the
minutes of each meeting, and made available to directors sufficiently in advance through the digital platform to which directors have exclusive, individual access.
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C.1.36 Indicate whether the company has established rules obliging directors to inform the Board of any
circumstances, whether or not related to their actions in the company itself, that might harm the
company's standing and reputation, tendering their resignation where appropriate. If so, provide
details:

[V] Yes
[ No

Explain the rules

According to Article 23.3 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors, directors must inform the Board of any circumstances, whether or not related to their
actions in the Company itself, that might harm the company’s standing and reputation, tendering their resignation where appropriate. In particular, directors
must inform the Board of any criminal proceedings in which they appear as suspects. The Board will examine the case and decide, based on a report from the
N and R on Ci whether or nat any measure must be adopted, and disclose this in the annual corporate governance report, unless
there are spedial reasons not to do so.

C.1.37 Indicate whether, apart from such special circumstances as may have arisen and been duly minuted,
the Board of Directors has been notified or has otherwise become aware of any situation affecting a
director, whether or not related to his or her actions in the company itself, that might harm the
company's standing and reputation:

Yes
[V] No

C.1.38 Detail any material agreements entered into by the company that come into force, are modified or are
terminated in the event of a change in control of the company following a public takeover bid, and
their effects.

Under the scope of the terms and conditions of the "EUR 487,266,804 Split Coupon Senior Secured Notes”, effective as of 2021, the Company entered into an
agreement regarding transactions of existing shareholders or third parties that may control OHLA Group. Moreaver, the terms and conditions agreed by the
Company and its main financial creditors in 2021 for the Company’s refinancing included covenants regarding change of contral.

In bath cases, a change in control in the agreed terms would trigger the redemption/repurchase of notes and the early cancellation of financing facilities.

C.1.39 Identify individually as regards directors, and in aggregate form in other cases, and provide details of any_|
agreements between the company and its directors, executives or employees containing indemnity or
golden parachute clauses in the event of resignation or dismissal without due cause or termination of
employment as a result of a takeover bid or any other type of fransaction.

Number of beneficiaries 9

Type of beneficiary Description of agreement
TERMINATION BENEFIT: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER: 2 years' salary.
SENIOR EXECUTIVES: in accordance with each employment contract, the
bylaw-stipulated amount, with a minimum of one year's salary or a fixed
1 EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN, 8 SENIOR EXECUTIVES |amount. NON-COMPETE AGREEMENT: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER: one
year, for one year's salary. SENIOR EXECUTIVES: in accordance with each
employment contract, with one or two years' salary depending on the

duration of the agreement or a fixed amount.
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Indicate whether, beyond the cases established by legislation, these agreements have to be AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE
communicated and/or authorised by the goveming bodies of the company or its group. If so, specify the =
procedures, the cases concerned and the nature of the bodies responsible for their approval or I 2 o)
communication: REYES CALDERON CUADRADO MEMBER Independent
- CESAR CANEDO-ARGUELLES TORREJON MEMBER Independent
Board of Directors General Shareholders’
Meeting
= 7 e g
Body authorising the clauses v ot exeaitve direciors o
% of proprietary directors 40.00
;‘; No % of independent directors 60.00
Are these dauses notified to J % of other external directors 0.00
the General Shareholders' : : : ; . . . ' -
Meeting? Explain the functions assigned to this committee, including where applicable those that are additional to

those prescribed by law, and describe the rules and procedures for its organisation and functioning. For
each of these functions, briefly describe its most important actions during the year and how it has exercised
in practice each of the functions assigned to it by law, in the articles of incorporation or in other corporate
C.21 Provide details of all committees of the Board of Directors, their members, and the proportion of resolutions.

executive, proprietary, independent and other external directors forming them:

C.2. Committees of the Board of Directors

See section H.1.
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE )
Identify the directors who are members of the audit committee and have been appointed taking into
Name Position Category account their knowledge and experience in accounting or audit matters, or both, and state the date on
REYES CALDERON CUADRADO CHAIRMAN Independent which the Chairman of this committee was appointed.
FRANCISCO JOSE GARCIA MARTIN MEMBER Independent =
g pe Name of directors with FRANCISCO JOSE GARCIA MARTIN
JUAM ANTONIO SANTAMERA SANCHEZ MEMBER Independent experience
LUIS FERNANDO MARTIN AMODIO HERRERA MEMBER Proprietary Date of appointment of the 29/07/2021
JUAM VILLAR-MIR DE FUENTES MEMBER Proprietary chairman
% of executive directors 0.00 GUARANTEE COMMITTEE
% of proprietary directors 40.00 Name Position Category
% of independent directors 60.00 CARMEN DE ANDRES CONDE CHAIRMAN Independent
% of other external directors 0.00 JOSE ANTONIO FERNANDEZ GALLAR MEMBER. Executive

Explain the functicns assigned to this committee, including where applicable those that are additional to % of executive directors 50.00

those prescribed by law, and describe the rules and procedures for its organisation and functioning. For % of proprietary directors 0.00

each of these functions, briefly describe its most important actions during the year and how it has exercised - -

in practice each of the functions assigned to it by law, in the articles of incorporation or in other corporate % of independent directors 50.00

resolutions. % of other external directors 0.00

L See section H.1. Members besides Carmen de Andrés Conde, chairman of this committee, and José Antonio Ferndndez Gallar include:
- The Corporate General Manager: Tomds Ruiz Gonzilez, as member.
AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE - The Chief Financial Officer: José Maria Sagardoy Lionis, as member.
= - The General Manager of the Legal Department: José Maria del Cuvilla Pemdn, as member.
Name Position Category - The Chief Risk and Internal Control Officer: Alvaro Medina Abenoza, as member.
FRANCISCO JOSE GAR’CiA MARTIN CHAIRMAN Independent - And the Finance and Treasury Manager Ignacio Martinez Estéban, Ignacic Martinez Esteban, acting as secretary.
JULIO MAURICIO MARTIN AMODIO HERRERA MEMBER Proprietary
LUIS FERNANDO AMODIO GIOMBINI MEMBER Proprietary
30/ 8]  — 31/8]  —
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Explain the functicns delegated or assigned to this committee, other than those that have already been
described in Section C.1.9, and describe the rules and procedures for its organisation and functioning.
For each of these functions, briefly describe its most important actions during the year and how it has
exercised in practice each of the functions assigned to it by law, in the articles of incorporation orin
other corporate resolutions.
The Guarantee Committee was set up as a Board committee via a resolution of the Board of Directors on 15 June 2020, on the recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee.
It meets every two months as called by its chairman. Extraordinary meetings are held as required by the senior officers of the business divisions.
The Guarantee Committee’s functions entail:
1. Contrelling and oversesging trends in the Group’s guarantee facilities,
2. Assessing and approving, or rejecting, requests for new bank guarantees for OHLA Group, irrespective of the type, business or subsidiary submitting the request
or the geographical area.

C.22 Complete the following table with information regarding the number of female directors who were

members of Board committees at the close of the past four years:
Number of female
directors
2022 2021 2020 2019
Mumber| % Number % Number| % Number %

NOMINATION AND

REMUNERATION 1 20.00 1 20.00 1 20.00 2 40.00
COMMITTEE

AUDIT AND

COMPLIANCE 1 20.00 1 20.00¢ 2 40.00 1 33.00
COMMITTEE

GUARANTEE

COMMITTEE 1 14.30 1 14.30 1 16.66 0 0.00
No information on the Guarantee Committee is disclosed for 2019 since it was set up by the Board of Directors in 2020.

C23 Indicate, where applicable, the existence of any regulations govemning Board committees, where these
regulations are to be found, and any amendments made to them during the year. Also indicate
whether any annual reports on the activities of each committee have been voluntarily prepared.

The reguiations of the Audit and Compliance and Nomination and Remuneration Committees are established in the Requlations of the Board of Directors, the
updated version of which is available on the Company's website: www.ohl.es (https://ohla-group.com/en/sharehclder-and-investor-information/corporate-
governance/Board committees).
There were no amendments to the regulations governing the Board committees in 2022,
[Each year, the Audit and Compliance C and the Nomination and R ion Committee approve their Annual Activity Report, which is published on the
website when the Annual General Meeting is called.
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D. RELATED PARTY AND INTRAGROUP TRANSACTIONS

0l Explain, where appropriate, the procedure and competent bodies relating to the approval of transactions
with related and intragroup parties, indicating the criteria and general internal rules of the entity that
regulate the abstention obligations of the affected director or shareholders. Detail the intemal information
and periodic control procedures established by the company in relation to those related party transactions
whose approval has been delegated by the board of directors.

1In 2016, the Company's Board of Directors approved rules implementing the provisions of the Regulations of the Board of Directors, in which the procedures
and contrals for the transactions that the Company or any of the Group companies wish to perform with the directors or significant shareholders, or with their
respective related parties, were reinforced and detailed. The results were revised in 2021.

Transactions affected by this procedure include all transfers of resources, services, rights or obligations, irrespective of whether or not they are for consideration,
performed by any of the parties referred to in the preceding paragraph with the Company or with any Group company.

Related party transactions carried out by the Company, as provided for in Law 5/2021 amending the Spanish Corporate Enterprises Act, must first be
authorised by General Meeting or the Company's Board of Directors and based on favourable report from the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, The
Board of Directors will ensure that transactions with the respective related parties are advantageous for the Company, are timely, are carried out on an arm’s
length basis, and respect the principle of equal treatment of shareholders who are in the same position. Breach of the provisions and obligations established in
the Group's internal rules and regulations in this respect could be considered an infringement by those at whom they are directed, who have executed and
authorised them, and who are required to disclose them, but have failed to do so.

Pursuant to Article 260 of the Spanish Corporate Enterprises Act , the Company will disclose significant transactions between the Company and related third parties
in the notes to the financial statements, indicating the nature, relationship, amount and any other information related to the transaction needed to determine the
Company's financial position. Moreowver, pursuant to Order EHA/3050/2004, of 15 September, as an issuer of securities admitted to trading on official secondary
securities markets, it will provide all the information on related party transactions determined by the half-yearly financial reports, without prejudice to the public
announcement by the Company, in accordance with article 529 univicies of the Spanish Corporate Enterprises Adt, of related party transactions carried out or that
reach (i) § percent of total assets and (ii) 2.5 percent of total annual revenue.

D2 Give individual details of operations that are significant due to their amount or of importance due to their
subject matter canied out between the company or its subsidiaries and shareholders holding 10% or more of
the voting rights or who are represented on the board of directors of the company, indicating which has been
the competent body for its approval and if any affected sharehclder or director has abstained. In the event
that the board of directors has responsibility, indicate if the propesed resolution has been approved by the
board without a vote against the majority of the independents:

The proposal to the
rd, if icabl
Tertity cethe. | || Lo I psikatle,
Name or company Name or company i it has been approved
name of the _ name of the (m' “maunds Aorourabod smihu[dg“ by the board
shareholder or any [0 Sharenoldingl . any or entity g ety p—— without a vote
of its subsidiaries within its group s agalrFtlw the
majority of
independents
ENERGYA VM ::::2':‘“ g
(1) |GESTION DE 7.10¢ INFORMACION 53| Board of Directors N/A NO
ENERGIA, S.L.U. !
S.AU
33781 —
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The proposal to
the board, if
Identity of the
Name or company Name or company ¥ ty AL
name of the name of the & s T
thousand ing bod shareholder
shareholder or any % shareholding| company or entity (thousands Approving body : re or by the board
: e S of euros) director who has without a vote
of its subsidiaries within its group d
abstained against by the
majority of
independents
AVALORA
GRUPO VILLAR MIR, TECNOLOGIAS DE LA ,
i Board of Directors
@ [sau. 7.10| INFORMACIGN, . el ha
S.AU.
PROMOCIONES AVALORA
Y PROPIEDADES TECNOLOGIAS DE LA
Board of Directors
3 INMOBILIARIAS 7.10) INFORMACION, 4 N/A )t
ESPACIO, S.L.U. S.AU.
ESPACIO LIVING OBRASCON .
(4) HOMES, S.L. 7.10) HUARTE LAIN, S.A. 11{Board of Directors N/A NO
ES:;CIO o OHL SERVICIOS- Board of Direct
(5) |INFORMATION 7.10| INGESAN, S.A.U. 5 aorbi ors N/A NO
TECNOLOGY, S.A.
VILLAR MIR OHL SERVICIOS- .
(6) ENERGIA, S.L.U. 7.10 INGESAN, SAU. 25|Board of Directors N/A NO
ENERGYA VM AGRUPACION ,
(7) |GESTION DE 210 G;I;:IO\FART i 1|Board of Directors N/A NO
ENERGIA, S.L.U. 19tS! 0 HISEANLA,
S.AU.
ENERGYA VM CONSTRUCCIONES
(8) |GESTION DE 7.10{ADOLFO SOBRINO, 6{Board of Directors N/A NO
EMNERGIA, S.L.U. SAU,
ENERGYA VM ASFALTOS Y
(9) |GESTION DE 7.10{CONSTRUCCIONES 7|Board of Directors A NO
ENERGIA, S.L.U. ELSAN, S.A.U.
ENERETA M OHL SERVICIOS- BeardloF Divect
(10) |GESTION DE 7.10| INGESAN, S.AU. 24 o ors N/A NO
ENERGIA, S.L.U.
ENERGYA VM CHEMTROL-
(11) |GESTION DE 7.10{PROYECTOS Y 20|Board of Directors N/A NO
EMNERGIA, S.L.U. SISTEMAS, S.L.U.
(EE:ESF:'IGS: ;Ei en— Board of Directors
(12) 7.10 HUARTE LAIN, S.A. 41] NfA NO
ENERGIA, S.L.U.
ENERGYA VM
(13) |GESTION DE 7.10| PACADAR, S.A.U. 520|Board of Directors N/A NO
ENERGIA, S.L.U.
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The proposal to
the board, if
Name or company M Iﬂeﬁﬂt.v of the applicable, has
name of the e e Amount significant been approved
shareholder or |94 shareholding e (thousands Approving body shareholder or by the board
any of its ZE of euros) director who has without a vote
subsidiaries Wit frotp abstained e e
majority of
independents
ESPACIO
(14) |INFORMATION 7.10|PACADAR, S.A.U. 3g{Board of Directors N/fA NO
TECNOLOGY, S.A.
GRUPQ
(15) |FERROATLANTICA, 7.10{PACADAR, S.A.U. 7|Board of Directors N/A NO
S.AL.
ESPACIO OBRASCON )
(16) |INFORMATION 7101 UARTE LAIN, S.A. 557|Board of Directors N/A NO
TECNOLOGY, S.A.
ESPACIO AVALORA
(17) |INFORMATION ?lo:-:g:;:gz: DE LA 106{Board of Directors /& NO
TECMOLOGY, 5.A. d
SAU.
(18) g':USO VILLAR MIR, 7.10) fﬂﬁfﬁ“ HUARTE 17,02&|Baam of Directors NA NO
Name or company Nature of the Type of operation and other information required for its evaluation
name of the relationship
shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries
ENERGYA VM GESTION |Contractual  |Revenue
(1) |DE ENERGIA, S.L.U.
GRUPO VILLAR MIR,  |Contractual Revenue
(2) [BAU
PROMOCIONES ¥ Contractual Revenue
PROPIEDADES
&) INMOBILIARIAS
ESPACIO, S.L.U.
ESPACIO LIVING Contractual iOther operating income
(4) [HOMES, S.L.
ESPACIO Contractual Other operating income
(5) [INFORMATION
TECNOLOGY, S.A.
VILLAR MIR ENERGIA, |Contractual (Other operating income
(6) [S.LU.
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Name or company name Nature of the
of the shareholder or relationship
any of its subsidiaries

Type of operation and other information reguired for its evaluation

ENERGYA VM GESTION |Contractual (Other operating expenses
(7) |PE ENERGIA, S.L.U.
ENERGYA WM GESTION |Contractual Other operating expenses
(8) |DE ENERGIA, S.LU.
ENERGYA VM GESTION |Contractual Other operating expenses
(9) |DE ENERGIA, 5.LU.
ENERGYA WM GESTION |Contractual (Other operating expenses
(10)|DE ENERGIA, 5.L.L.
ENERGYA WM GESTION |Contractual Other operating expenses
(11)|DE ENERGIA, 5.L.U.
ENERGYA VM GESTION |Contractual Other operating expenses
(12) |DE ENERGIA, 5.L.U.
ENERGYA VM GESTION Contractual Other operating expenses
(13) |DE ENERGIA, S.L.U.
ESPACIO INFORMATION |Contractual (Other operating expenses
(14) [TECNOLOGY, S.A.
GRUPD Contractual Other operating expenses

(15) [FERROATLANTICA,

|5.A.U.

(16)

ESPACIO INFORMATION | Contractual
TECNOLOGY, S.A.

Management or partnership agreements

(17) [TECNOLOGY, S.A.

ESPACIC INFORMATION | Contractual Management or partnership agreements

(18)

GRUPQ VILLAR MIR, Contractual
5.AU.

Repayment or cancellation of loans granted

The related party transactions disclosed above are related to INMOBILIARIA ESPACIO, S.A., which holds 7.0970% of the shares.

According to Note 4.4 to the Group's consolidated financial statements, in addition to these related party transactions there are the following related party
transactions between the Company and group companies and significant shareholders:

(1)
Significant sharehelder: Espacio Living Homes, S.L.

%

stake: 7.10%

Company: Obrascén Huarte Lain, S5.A.
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Item: Revenue (EUR thousand): (504}
Approving body: Board of Directors

@)

Significant shareholder: Espacio Living Homes, S.L.
% stake: 7.10%

Company: Obrascon Huarte Lain, S.A. Ttem:
Guarantees and deposits provided (EUR
thousand): 277

Approving bady: Board of Directors

3

Significant shareholder: Espacio Information Tecnology, S.A.U.
9% stake: 7.10 %

Company: Obrascén Huarte Lain, S.A. Ttem:

Purchase of intangible assets Amount (EUR

thousand): 102

Approving body: Board of Directors

All the transactions were carried out in the ordinary course of the Group's businesses and on an arm’s length basis,

D3 Give individual details of the operations that are significant due to their amount or relevant due to their subject
matter carried out by the company or its subsidiaries with the administrators or managers of the company,
including those operations carried out with entities that the administrator or manager controls or controls jointly,
indicating the competent body for its approval and if any affected shareholder or director has abstained. In
the event that the board of directors has responsibility, indicate if the proposed resolution has been approved

by the board without a vote against the majority of the independents:

Obrascon Huarte Lain, S.A. and subsidiaries - 2022 Consolidated Management Report

Name or company The proposal to the
board, if applicable,
name of the | Name or company ; , if appl "
AT Identity of the |5 been approved by
administrators or name of the . o
| Relationship  |(thousands o APProving body  [Sonificant shareholder) e poarg without a
managers or their | company or entity ordi who has | ore th
controlled or jointly| within its group euros) ke e
controlled entities ’ =
Proprietary directors
LUIS FERNANDO _r'epresenting th_e
MARTIN AMODIO JETFLIGHT interests of Solid
HERRERA Rock Capital, S.L.U.
(1 SERVICES, S.A. DE Contractual 59 Board of Directors |and Forjar Capital, NO
cv S.LU.
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MName or
company name of D4 Give detdils of the mechanisms in place to detect, determine and resolve potential conflicts of interest
the administrators between the company and/or its group and its directors, senior management, significant shareholders or
or managers or other associated parties.
their controlled or Nature of the operation and other information necessary for its evaluation i
jointly controlled The Regulations of the Board Directors establish, among others, as basic obligations arising from the director’s duty of loyalty the adoption of the necessary
entities measures to avoid situations in which their interests, either as independent professionals or as employees, may be in conflict with the corporate interests of,
and their duties to, the Company and in particular require the director to refrain from:
a) Performing transactions with the Company other than ordinary transactions performed under standard conditions for customers and of scant significance, i.e.,
those where the related information is not necessary to give a true and fair value of the equity, financial position and results of the Company.
LUIS FERNANDO b) Using the Company name or their position as director to unduly influence the performance of personal transactions.
c) Using corporate assets, including the Company’s confidential information, for personal ends.
MARTIN AMODIO d) Exploiting the Company's business opportunities.
( HERRERA Other operating expenses :igbtc::x; l::eneﬁts or remuneration from third parties other than the Company and its Group associated with the discharge of their position, except merely
f) Performing activities as independent professionals or as employees (current or potential) that involve effectively competing with the Company or that, in
any other way, place them in a situation of ongoing conflict with the interests of the Company.
2. These pravisions also apply if the beneficiary of the acts or of the prohibited activities is a person related to the director.
The related party transaction with JETFLIGHT SERVICES, S.A. DE C.V. is related to three proprietary directors: Luis Fernando Martin Amodio Herrera, Julio
Mauricio Martin Amodio Herrera and Luis Fernando Ameodio Giombini. 3. In any case, directors must notify the Board of Directors of any direct or indirect conflict of interest that they or persons related to them might have

- - with the interests of the Company.

D4 Report individually on intragroup transactions that are significant due to their amount or relevant due to their Conficts o Intere=t In-which clrectors ISR be.fvolved must b= dizclosed . the Iictes o, thie fiaanciel statement=.

subject matter that have been undertaken by the company with its parent company or with other entities
belonging to the parent's group, including subsidiaries of the listed company, except where no other related
party of the listed company has interests in these subsidiaries or that they are fully owned, directly or indirectly,
by the listed company.

The Company may waive the prohibitions outlined above in certain cases, authonsing a director or a related person to carry out a certain
transaction with the Company, to use certaln corporate assets, to take advantage of a specific business opportunity, or to obtain a benefit or
remuneration from a third party. When the subject matter of the authorisation s exemption from the prohibition on cbtaining a benefit or
remuneration from third parties or affects a transaction whose value exceeds 109% of the Company’s assets, such authorisation must necessarily
be agreed upon at the Annual General Meeting. In all other cases, authorisation may be granted by the Board of Directors, provided that the
independence of the Board members granting the exemption is guaranteed with respect to the exempt director. It shall also be necessary to
ensure the hanmless nature of the authorised transaction regarding assets and liabilities and, where appropriate, its performance on an arm's
length basis and the transparency of the process. The obligation not to compete with the Company may only be waived in the event that no
damage Is expected to be caused for the Company or the expected damage is offset by the benefits expected to be obtained as a result of the
waiver. The waiver shall be granted by means of an express and separate resolution of the General Meeting. In any event, at the request of any
shareholder, the General Meeting shall resolve on the removal of the director carrying on competing activities where the risk of damage to the

In any case, report any intfragroup fransaction conducted with entities established in countries or termritories
considered as tax havens:

296

D5 Give individual details of the cperations that are significant due to their amount or relevant due to their
subject matter carried out by the company or its subsidiaries with other related parties pursuant to the
international accounting standards adopted by the EU, which have not been reported in previous sections.

Obrascon Huarte Lain, S.A. and subsidiaries - 2022 Consolidated Management Report

D7.

Company name Company is deemed significant. When use of corporate assets is authorised, the director may be exceptionally exempted from the obligation to
pany pay consideration, but in that case the economic benefit will be considered as indirect remuneration and require authorisation by the Board of
of the entity Brief description of the operation and other information Amount (thousands Directors, based on a report from the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, If the benefit is received as a sharehalder, it will only be
within the necessary for its evaluation of euros) authorised if the principle of equal treatment of shareholders is upheld.
group The Board will be apprised, in any case, of any economic or commercial relationships that may arise batwaen the director and the Compary.
No data Moreover, the regulation on procedures for related party transactions in force at the Company requires all beneficiaries thereof (directors and senior

executives) to be aware of, and comply with, the regulated procedure, and take the appropriate measures to ensure compliance by OHLA and the Group.

Indicate whether the company is confrolled by another entity in the meaning of Article 42 of the Commercial
Code, whether listed or not, and whether it has, directly or through any of its subsidiaries, business relationships
with said entity or any of its subsidiaries (other than the listed company) or carries out activities related to those —

czfmﬁnri:;:e Brief description of the operation and other information Amount (thousands SEp ket
e necessary for its evaluation of euros) Yes
V] No
No data
38/8] 39/ 8]  —
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. RISK MAMAGEMENT AND CONTROL SYSTEMS

El.  Explgin the scope of the company's financial and non-financial risk management and control system,
including tax risk.

OHLA Group's Risk Management System works in a comprehensive and angoing manner, through operational divisions and corporate functional areas, consolidating
this management at Group level and issuing the pertinent guidelines.

E2  |dentify the bodies within the company responsible for preparing and executing the financial and non-
financial risk management and control system, including tax risk.
RESPONSIBILITIES ATTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board of Diractors is the most senior decision-making body of the Company and, as detailed in Article 5 3b) of its Regulations, it must directly exercise
"the policy on risk control and management, Including tax risks, and oversight of the internal reporting and control systems®.,

It performs its work through the Audit and Compliance Committee ("the Audit Committee").

RESPONSIBILITIES ATTRIBUTED TO THE AUDIT COMMITTEE:
The Audit Committee’s remit, notwithstanding any duties imposed by law, the General Meeting or the Board of Directors, Includes the following, as indicated
in Article 23 ) of the Bylaws and Article 15 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors: "supervise the effectiveness of internal control, the Company’s internal

audit services and risk management systems, and review the appointment and replacement of their officers and discuss with the auditors of the financial
statements the significant weaknesses of the internal control system detected in the performance of the audit”.

RESPONSIBILITIES ATTRIBUTED TO THE RISK AND INTERNAL CONTROL DEPARTMENT:

See section F.5 — Supervision of the functioning of the system.

RESPONSIBILITIES ATTRIBUTED TO THE INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT:

See section F.5 — Supervision of the functioning of the system.

E3  Indicate the main financial and non-financial risks, including tax risks, as well as those deriving from
comuption (with the scope of these risks as set out in Royal Decree Law 18/2017), to the extent that these
are significant and may affect the achievement of business objectives.

SEE SECTION H.1.

B4 Indicate whether the enfity has risk tolerance levels, including for tax risk.

OHLA Group has a risk tolerance level (i.e. acceptable level of risk) established at corporate level.

It defines risk tolerance as the expression of the acceptable or unacceptable level of risk.

Risk tolerance levels are defined for the main risk areas the Group faces and included in the Risk Management Regulations approved by the Board of Directors.
Factors considered in determining the level of risk tolerance include risk-return ratio, the primary risk response approach, and risk response decision-making
criteria.

40/ 81  —
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The Group has defined certain situations that, if they arise in the course of a transaction, could give rise to an intolerable risk (l.e. red lines). It requires certain
authorisations before such risks can be assumed so as to ensure that they are reported and that the appropriate control measures are implemented. The Board of
Directors has approved the different levels of authorisation within the Group to address these situations based on the severity of the risks.

OHLA Group has zero tolerance for accupational health and safety, regulatory compliance, and reputation and ethics risks. Regarding reputation and ethics,
Obrascén Huarte Lain, S.A. has UNE-ISO 37001 (anti-bribery management systems) and UNE 19601 (criminal o liance ystems) certification. It
alse has an Internal Compliance Contral system that demonstrates that the Company operates on the basis of internationally recognised best practices to combat
offences within its organisation, in line with the requirements of Spain's Criminal Code.

E5.  Indicate which financial and non-financial risks, including tax risks, have materialised during the year.

L SEE SECTION H.1.

E6.  Explain the response and oversight plans for the company's main risks, including tax risks, as well as the
procedures followed by the company in order to ensure that the Board of Directors responds to any new
challenges that arise.

Controlling and managing the risks to which the Group's operations are subject are part of OHLA's regulatory and operational framework. When applied by the
organisation in carrying out its operations, it can:

« Identify the risks that can affect the achievement of objectives and understand the factors that could trigger risk events and their potential consequences,

« Determine the context that will enable OHLA Group to focus its risk management efforts in step with the environment in which it operates and the
business it carries out.

« Analyse and assess risks, to understand the magnitude of both the positive aspects and the negative implications of a risk event, and the vulnerability to this risk
event (i.e. probability of occurrence based on the current level of contrel). The assessment of the magnitude (impact) and vulnerability to potential risks enables
OHLA Group to prioritise and, therefore respond Lo, its risks so that the focus is on those that pose the greatest threat to achievement of its objectives.

« Respond to risks, to put the risk treatment or response options into practice and make integrated decisions in light of the business and context so that the
respanses are aligned with the Group's defined risk tolerance, Treating risk not anly aims to minimise the potential damage, but alsa to maximise the patential
growth of opportunities. Risk responses can be dassified Into the follow types:

o Reduce: actions aimed at minimising the impact and/or exposure to a risk.

o Accept: actions aimed at maintaining the risk at acceptable levels.

© Share: actions aimed at sharing the risk with third parties by taking out insurance, process outsourcing, distributing risk through agreements, or other
similar actions.

o Avold: actions aimed at eliminating, where possible, the factors giving rise to the risk.

» Follow-up and review: to assess, on an ongeing basis, the effectiveness and relevance of the risk-management decisions taken and to implement the pertinent
corrective measures.

41 /8] —
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OHLA Group's Internal Audit Department checks the reliability of the risk management and internal control systems and the quality of information and, in particular,
reviews the ICFR systermn and the adequacy of the controls in place. This responsibility is included in the Internal Audit Charter approved by the Board of Directors, in
the Group's Functions Handbook and in Its Financial Reporting System Oversight Model. ]

F. INTERNAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL SYSTEMS RELATING TO THE PROCESS OF PUBLISHING FINANCIAL INFORMATION (ICFR)

F12  Indicate whether the following exist, especidlly in relation to the drawing up of financial
information:

Describe the mechanisms forming your company’s Internal Control over Financial Reporting (ICFR) system.
Departments and/or mechanisms in charge of: the design and review of the organisational structure; (i)
The entity's control environment. clear definition of lines of responsibility and authority with an appropriate distribution of tasks and functions;
and (i) ensuring that adequate procedures exist for their proper dissemination throughout the entity.

El.

Report on at least the following, describing their principal features: =
The Board of Directors' policy is to delegate the normal management of the Company to the executive bedies and the management team, and focus its efforts on
FII  The bodies and/or departments that are responsible for: (i) the existence and maintenance of an defining the business and organisational policy and discharging its general oversight function.

adequate and effective ICFR system; (ii) its implementation; and [iii) its supervision. The Group's Chief Executive Officer is responsible for designing and reviewing the organisational structure, and proposing any changes to the Group's basic
organisational chart.
RESPONSIBILITIES ATTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: The General Organisation and Corporate Resources Department is responsible for implementing improvements to the Group's organic structure, proposing

structural optimisation and efficiency measures, and defining the reporting lines and domains of competency of the Group’s basic structure.
The Board of Directors is the most senior decision-making body of the Company and, as provided for in Article 5 3b) of the Board Regulations, its responsibilities

include “approval of general corporate policles and strategies and of the Company's basic organisatiom and, in particular, the policy on risk control and
management, including tax risks, and oversight of the internal reporting and control systems”.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for approving the basic organisational charts of the General Departments under his or her authority, and for proposing to
the Board of Directors the Group's organic structure and functioning.

The Board of Directors has a supervisory role regarding the Internal Control over Financial Reporting (ICFR) system, understanding the risks relating to the Group's

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee’s basic resp ilities include proposing to the Board of Directors the annual remuneration system and amounts
financial reporting objectives and the controls established by the Board to mitigate them.

paid to the members of the Management Committee, and the criteria for the remuneration of the Group's other management staff,

It performs its oversight work through the Audit and Compliance Committee (“the Audit Committee”) and the Internal Audit Department.
The Group has basic and detalled organisational charts covering the entire organisation, which are avallable to all Group employees.
RESPONSIBILITIES ATTRIBUTED TO THE AUDIT COMMITTEE: It also has a Basic Functions Handbaok, updated in 2022, which describes the reporting line, composition and basic functions of each governance bady, the
structure of the Group and its operating divish The Handbook is to Group empil: on the corporate Intranet.

The Audit Committee's remit, notwithstanding any duties imposed by law, the General Meeting or the Beard of Directors, includes the following responsibilities
according to Article 23 f) of the Bylaws and Article 15 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors: The Organisational Chart and the Functions handbook are updated periodically and when circumstances dictate.
1. Supervising the effectiveness of the Company's internal control, internal audit services and risk management systems, and reviewing the appointment and

replacement of their officers and discussing with the auditors of the financial statements the significant weaknesses of the internal control system detected in the

Code of conduct, the body approving this, degree of dissemination and instruction, principles and values

rformance of the audit. . 7 : : : . ¥ .
pe ! covered (stating whether there is specific mention of record keeping and preparation of financial
2. Overseeing the financial reporting preparation and presentation process and reviewing the appointment and replacement of the persons responsible. informofion] ’ body charged with onclysing breaches and proposing cormective actions and sanctions.
3. Reviewing the Company’s financial statements, monitoring compliance with legal requirements and the correct application of generally accepted accounting 1
principles, and reporting on proposals for changes in accounting principles and policies put forward by management. SEE SECTION H.1.
RESPONSIBILITIES ATTRIBUTED TO MANAGEMENT: : + Whistleblower channel allowing notifications to the audit committee of imegularities of a financial and
accounting nature, in addition to potential breaches of the code of conduct and unlawful activities
The General Economic and Financial Department has overall responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of the internal controls of the Group's & S R : 2 E 3
ICFR system to ensure the quality of the information. This responsibility is outlined in the Functions Handbook and the Group's Finandal Reporting System undertaken in the OrgCII’lISClTIOn. |ndlcc|hng whether this channel is confidential.
Oversight Model,

OHLA Group has a whistieblower channel (the "Ethics Channel™) governed by an internal procedure published in the Company’s body of regulations. The Ethics
Canal is available to all OHLA personne| and stakeholders wishing to ask any questions or report, on good faith, any professional conduct that could imply, by
action or omission, irregularities, breaches or Infringements of the rules and principles of action outlined In the Code of Ethics, and other regulations or procedures
that make up the Company's internal rules and regulaticns, or are against the law.

The ICFR system of each company and/or department Is the responsibility of their most senior manager and Economic and Financial Manager.

Among the overall responsibilities and oversight of the internal control system attributed to it, the Corporate Internal Risk and Control Department works
together with the General Economic and Financial Department in assessing the impact of reported incidents and monitaring implementation of the action plans

to resclve them. This responsibility is outlined in the Financial Reporting System Maintenance and Reporting Instructions. The Compliance Department is responsible for receiving and processing the complaints and consultations received through the Ethics Channel, which is available in

Spanish, English and Czech on the corporate Intranet, the Group's website (https://www.canaletico.ohla-group.com), or by post (OHLA Group Ethics Channel -
Compliance Department: P? Castellana, 259 D. Tome Espacio, 28046 Madrid. Therefore, It is widely accessible.

The precedure of the Group's Ethics Channel provides, inter affa, specifies how to process complaints to ensure confidentiality, fair treatment and the absence of
retaliation: notification, analysis, investigation and resolution. Before the Audit Committee examines a complaint, the Compliance Department collates the
information it deems necessary to form an opinion about whether a matter or substance exists that would enable it to determine whether or not to initiate an
investigation.
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“This phase ends with a decision by the Ethics Channel Manager (Compliance Department) on whether to accept the complaint fior processing, which must be
approved by the Audit Committee, Where there is a conflict of interest, a proposal to reject the complaint or reasons of urgency, the complaint must be reported
to the Audit and Compliance Committee.

OHLA Group allows complaints to be reported anonymously. However, to be accepted for processing, sufficient evidence of the reported facts must be provided so
that the investigation can focus on specific facts.

Once the investigation Is concluded, the Compliance Department Infiorms the Audit Committee of the conclusions of the reports carried out in this stage and
proposes the adoption of the measures it deems necessary for the definitive resolution of the matter.

In 2022, a total of 36 communications of potential breaches of the Code of Ethics (as well as various queries) were received. OF these, 26 were made directly
through the Ethics Channel and the other 10 through other channels. Of the complaints, 20 were investigated and 16 either dismissed or referred to other areas
or departments as they did not represent any violation of the Code of Ethics.

All complaints accepted were or are being duly invest d and the ct ltations d, in line with the internal precedures in place. At year-end, four were still
being investigated.

Training and periodic refresher programmes for staff involved in the preparation and revision of financial
information, as well as assessment of the ICFR (Internal Control System for Financial Information), that covers
at least accounting rules, audits, intemal control and risk management.

For training and periadic refresher courses for staff involved In the preparation and review of the financial information, topics related to economic and financial
improvements and updates have been included in the Group's training catalogue.

Meanwhile, all perscnnel respansible for the Group's financial reporting have access to a digital archive of all ICFR system regulations, the Group's Accounting
Policies Handbook and the other accounting legislation used generally. All of intemal regulations regarding financial reporting and financial reporting processes
are available on the Group's Intranet.

F2  Assessment of risks in financial reporting.

Report on at least the following:
F21  The main characteristics of the risk identification process, including risks of error and fraud, as regards:

Whether the process exists and is documented:

‘ SEE SECTION H.1.

Whether the process covers all the objectives of financial reporting, (existence and occurence;
completeness; valuation; presentation; disclosure and comparability; and rights and okligations), whether
it is updated and if so how often.

’7 SEE SECTION H.1.

The existence of a process for identifying the scope of consolidation, taking into account, among other
factors, the possible existence of complex corporate structures or special purpose vehicles.

’7 SEE SECTION H.1.

Whether the process takes into account the effects of other types of risk (operational, technological,
financial, legal, tax, reputational, environmental, etc.) to the extent that they affect the financial
statements.
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’7 SEE SECTION H.1,
The govemning body within the company that supervises the process.

|: SEE SECTION H.1.

F3.  Control activities,

Report on whether the company has at least the following, describing their main characteristics:

Fil  Review and authorsation procedures for financial information published by the stock markets and
a description of the ICFR, indicating those responsible, as well as docurnentation describing the
flow of activity and contrals (including those relating to the risk of fraud) of the various types of
transactions which may materially affect the financial statements, including financial closing
procedures and the specific review of judgements, estimates, valuations and relevant forecasts.

The Group has a detalled procedure for disclosing finandal information to third parties, so that both the preparation and disseminaticn of such infermation have
the utmost guarantees.

The Group's General Economic and Finandial Department is charge of preparing the Group's financial information.

Before disclosure to the markets, the Board of Directors must approve this financial information, based on a favourable report by the Audit Committee, analysing it
and requesting any clarifications it deems necessary, both internally and from the Group's external auditor.

These activities are performed for the interim, quarterly and half-yearly financial reporting, as well as for the annual reporting. Half-yearly and annual reporting is
subject to approval by Obrascdn Huarte Lain, S.A.'s Board of Directors.

The procedure for disclosing financial information to third parties also governs how to act regarding other issues, such as:

- Inside information

- Financial information for other securities markets

- Financial information for analysts and investors, finandial institutions and rating agencies
= Statistics

- Tenders and bids

- Financial information required in agreements

Individuals In charge of preparing, authorising and disclosing public financial information are established for each case.
DOCUMENTATION ON FLOWS OF ACTIVITIES AND CONTROLS:

A basic step to ensuring the reliability of the information is the analysis of critical processes and subprocesses affecting the preparation of such information. The
alm s to facilitate the risk identification described and the implementation of controls. In this connection, the work comprises the following steps:

1. Identifying the critical processes, and the sub-processes comprising each one of them, which play a part, directly or Indirectly, in the generation of the financial
information for the companies induded in the scope.

2. Describing the flow of activities using process and sub-process flowcharts.

3. Identifying key control activities that mitigate the identified risks that might affect the generation of financial information, identifying the person In charge of
control, the frequency of the activity, the type of control {detective or preventive), the type of execution (manual or automatic) and the related supporting
documentation.

The activity flow documentation compiled in the course of the processes and sub-processes is available to all employees on the Group's intranet.

The documented processes include the accounting close, reporting and consolidation process, taking into account the specific review of the significant
judgements and estimates made.
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The Group has a governance, risk and compliance (GRC) IT tool that supports its ICFR system structure and serves as a database for all the material processes
and sub-processes of the Group companies. This allows for integrated reporting and oversight of the ICFR system for all material processes and sub-processes
of the Group companies within its scope

The Group's General Economic and Financial Department, supported by the various divisions, s responsible for updating processes and activities. It reports to the
Audit Committee regularly on the stage of completion of the work performed in relation to the ICFR system and the improvement processes implemented.

F32  Internal IT control policies and procedures (access security, control of changes, system operation,
operational continuity and segregation of duties, among others) which support significant processes
within the company relating to the preparation and publication of financial information.

OHLA’s ICFR model envisages the IT processes that include the emvironment, architecture and infrastructure of the information technologies, as well as the
applications related to transactions that directly affect the Company's main processes and, accordingly, the finandial reporting and accounting close processes.

The Group's Information Systems Department is respensible for the information systems. Its duties include defining and monitoring the security policies and
standards for applications and infrastructure that support the internal control model within the area of information technologies.

In relation to the internal control framework of the information systems, areas censidered priority areas refate to application security and access control, data
protection, developments of applications in response to the Group's needs, and the ability to recover from a security incident that could affect business
operations.

Within these areas, the following items relating to the applications supporting the finandial reporting system are considered to be particularly relevant:

» Physical security of the data processing centres.

« Management of the demand for developments and functional changes.
* Management of IT development fow.

* Management of cybersecurity risks,

» Management of incidents.

» Management of continuity of economic processes.

In addition, in 2022 actions were taken to set up control, monitoring and reporting of the IT systems that support business processes with an impact on the financial
reporting, induding:

» In infrastructure:

- Continued review of communications from headquarters to enhance monitoring of end-to-end traffic.

- Further deployment of probes at several facilities and construction sites to gather information on availability of communications for proactive detection of
connection, speed or other incidents.

- Completion of the migration of all Group computers to Windows 10 for increased security and start of unification of the version installed to standardise
remote updates of equipment.

- Continuation of the Active Directory unification project, to have a corporate-wide set of users and computers with the same policies throughout the Group,
allowing for better segmentation of user rights and integration with Azure Cloud.

- Start of the deployment of cloud applications using Azure Cloud/AWS technology to optimise operations and help minimise the carbon footprint.

« In applications:

- Further development of the data management initiative to have dashboards and indicators at different levels of management in the following areas and/or
processes: Construction project record (operational and aggregated), HR indicators and management control scorecard.

- Implementation of ERP SAP B1 in the Concessions business line.

- Migration of Integrated reporting indicatars from the Enablon to the Bwise application, thus standardising the Group's reparting of contrals and indicators.

- Improvements to GCONS in the level of progress, aliowing for g of jon of level of progressy/future losses from branches.

= Further implementation of the invoice and e-invoice approval process, requlring thns in new agreements entered into with suppliers in Spain, thereby making
the process more efficient by reducing handling time and automating controls in the invoice management process.

- Migration of construction project decuments from the GCOMS repository to a doud-based repository (SharePoint) to optimise their search and access
possibilities,

«In IT governance:

- Completion of the update of all regulations of the Corporate IT Systems Department.

= Implementation of scorecards for monitoring costs related to consumption rate-based licenses such as Autodesk and Microsoft Office 365 to enhance
their contral and manitoring.
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- Creation of committees for monitoring initiatives, problems and incidents among the OHL Group's systems managers to share experiences and find solutions
to the various problems that arise.

- Completion of the project to eptimise the corporate services catalogue of the Information Systems Department using the Group's services management tool to
enhance user searches and browsing.

= In IT security:

= Further work on implementing user equipment protection measures to enhance control of OHLA Group devices by applying security set ups, encrypting

laptop drives, installing antivirus and antiransomware tools, and distributing autematic security updates.

- Continued implementation of communications, infrastructure and systems usage monitoring to detect ancmalies and incidents that could affect business
operations.

- Implementation of a mall safety backup and filing process for OHLA Group user documents to safeguard information against Incidents that could

result in loss and enable their recovery.

- Audit of personal data processing in OHLA to verify compliance with data protection laws and ensure that personal data are processed comrectly.

- Launch of an information security awareness campaign to teach OHLA Group users best cybersecurity practices so they can identify threats that jeopardise data
and IT systems and act more safely in their daily work.

F33  Internal control policies and procedures for overseeing the management of activities
subcontracted to third parties, as well as of those aspects of assessment, calculation or valuation
entrusted to independent experts, which may materially affect financial statements.

The Group has internal control procedures in place aimed at overseeing the information included in the financial statements of temporary business associations
{UTEs) and joint ventures {JWs) in which it holds an interest.

This procedure distinguishes b UTEs d by the Group and those that are not. For managed UTEs, since the information is managed in the Group's
systems, the same controls and accounting policies followed for the rest of the Group are applied.

When the Group is not responsible for management of the UTEs/joint ventures/consortia, information review and uniformity processes are carried out, where
necessary for inclusion in the Group's financial statements, and the basic economic and financial criteria are set by mutual agreement with the partners. In bath
cases, review work |s also performed through the Group's representatives on the management committees.

For valuations requested from independent experts, the criteria used are analysed to verify their suitability and the valuations are discussed in detail. Where
reports are not deemed to be conclusive or controversial aspects arise, additional opinions are requested for their clarification. Where valuations are based on
estimates by the Group’s various divisions, the assumptions used and their reasonableness are verified by the General Economic and Financial Department.

For other significant judgements, estimates and projections, a detailed review is conducted, Particular attention is paid to the criteria used in the medium- and
long-term projections performed by the Group's various subsidiaries [ divisions and whether they are consistent in respect of all the parameters used.

F4. Information and communication.

Report on whether the company has at least the following, describing their main characteristics:

F4l A specifically assigned function for defining and updating accounting policies ([accounting policy area
or department) and resolving doubts or conflicts arising from their interpretation, maintaining a free flow
of information fo those responsible for operations in the organisation, as well as an up-to-date
accounting policy manual distributed to the business units through which the company operates.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES HANDBOOK:

The Group has an Accounting Pelicies Handbook designed to summarise the Group's general accounting principles, measurement bases and general accounting
policies and the specific accounting policies of each division. Compliance with the handbook is mandatory for all OHLA Group companies.
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The Group's General Economic and Financial Department is responsible for the internal application of the accounting policies.

In both cases, the General Economic and Financial Department informs the Audit Committee of any updates before they are made.

For matters not detailed in the Accounting Policies Handbook, International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) are applied.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE:

According to Article 15 (1) of Obrascdn Huarte Lain, 5.A.'s Regulations of the Board of Directors, the basic respansibility of the Audit Committee is as follows:
"Reviewing the Company's financial 1ts, monitoring compliance with legal requirements and the correct application of generally accepted accounting
principles, and reporting on proposals for changes in accounting principles and policies put forward by management.”

The Audit Committee actively discharges this responsibility by being informed of the accounting updates proposed by the Group's General Economic and
Financial Department, and developments in accounting legislation, in the process of being approved by the IASB, that may affect the Group.

This Infarmation is also discussed with the Group's auditors in reqular meetings held with the Audit Committee.

In addition, the reports issued by Internal Audit and also received by the Audit Committee usually address the review of the proper application of the
accounting principles within the areas or review projects as part of their planned engagements.

F42  Mechanisms for capturing and preparing financial information in standardised formats for

application and use by all units of the entity or group, and support its main financial statements and -

notes, as well as disclosures concerming ICFR.

The Group has a procedure in place, managed by the Group's General Economic and Financial Department, for obtaining periodic financial information from
all divisions. It describes the financial reporting models that Group subsidiaries must send regularly, indicating the persons responsible for their preparati
and update,

This procedure includes:

- The Group's accounting close timetable.

= A mandatory standardised monthly financial reporting model, which in most cases includes traceability of the information from the IT system and
detalled instructions for its completion.

- A standardised annual financial reporting model for preparation of the notes to the Group's finandial statements, with detailed instructions for its
completion.

- Internal system for sending corporate information,

Any significant change in this procedure is reported to the Audit Committee.

ICFR SYSTEM MAINTENANCE AND REPORTING
An ICFR system maintenance and reporting pracedure is in place for internal control purposes aimed at periodically reparting on its functioning.

The persons responsible for updating and maintaining the ICFR system at the companies included within the ICFR system scope must keep each process up to
date, based on a specified assignment of responsibilities.

Similarly, a half-yearly reporting procedures is in place to facilitate internal knowledge regarding the degree of compliance of the ICFR system.
The Reporting Model Is submitted to the Group's General Economic and Financlal Department by the economic and finandal head of each subsidiary on a half-

yearly basis. In a bid to achieve continuows improvement, all changes and incidents: rep by each subsidiary are luated by the General Economic and
Financial Department so that the ICFR system is kept up to date and in step with the applicable circumstances.

Since 2020, to comply with ESEF regulations issued by ESMA, the Group has had an IT tool in place for creating and presenting annual financial reports
electronically. This tool also allows for labelling using the ESEF taxonomy. When the time comes, the financial statements will be published on the Group's website
in that format.
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F5  Supervision of the functioning of the system.

Report on at least the following, describing their principal features:

F51  The activiies of the audit committee in overseeing ICFR as well as whether there is an internal audit
function one of the responsibilities of which is to provide support to the committee in its task of
supervising the internal control system, including ICFR. Additionally, describe the scope of ICFR
assessment made during the year and the procedure through which the person responsible prepares
the assessment reports on its results, whether the company has an action plan describing possible
corrective measures, and whether its impact on financial reporting is considered.

[ SEE SECTIOM H.1.

F52  Whether there is a discussion procedure whereby the auditor (as defined in the Spanish Technical Audit
Standards), the internal auditor and other experts can report to senior management and the audit
committee or directors of the company any significant weaknesses in internal control identified during the
review of the annual financial statements or any others they have been assigned. Additionally, state
whether an action plan is available for correcting or mitigating any weaknesses detected.

Article 15 of Obrascon Huarte Lain, 5.A.'s Board Regulations includes the following responsibilities of the Audit and Compliance Committee:

Section 2c): establish appropriate refations with external auditors to receive information on matters that might compromise the auditors' independence and any
other matters related to the financial audit process, and to receive other notifications provided for in auditing laws and technical auditing standards.

Section 2i): supervise the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls and risk management systems, and discuss with the auditor any significant
weaknesses |n the Internal control system that may have been detected over the course of the audit, without compromising its independence. To this end,
and where appropriate, it may submit recommendations or proposals to the Board of Directors and the corresponding time frame for follow-up activities.

These responsibilities are performed actively, through regulars meetings the Audit Committee holds with the Group's external auditors and with the department
managers, and with the Group's Chief Financial Officer, Risk and Internal Control Director, Internal Audit Director and Chief Compliance Officer, who are all
permanently invited to attend all of the Audit Committee’s meetings.

This way, based on an annual schedule, the Audit Committee calls the heads of each of area in advance to attend in person and give a specific presentation to
the committee members on how they manage risk in their respective areas.

The Audit Committee holds meetings with the external auditors at least every six months and annually to be informed of internal control issues detected in the
course of the audit which, where applicable, are corrected by updating the affected policies or rules and the controls defined in the Internal Control System. In
2022, the external auditor attended five Audit Committee meetings.

The Audit Committee receives reports on all actions of the Internal Audit Department, the Risk and Internal Control Department and the Compliance
Department, and a report on the weaknesses detected and monitoring of compliance with all the significant recommendations made in the performance of its
work.

The three departments are in constant communication with the Audit Committee regarding those functions, particularly of preparing and keeping up to date:

- The annual engagement plan,

- The Department's annual budget.

= The reports on each assignment performed.

- The Departrent's Organisational and Procedural Rules.
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“The aim is for the Audit and Compliance Committee to monitor all the activities performed as an effective measure for developing and complying with its oversight
responsibilities.

F4.

Other relevant information.

NOT APPLICABLE

E7.

External auditor’s report.

Report:

F71 Whether the ICFR information sent to the markets has been subjected to review by the external auditor, in
which case the entity should include the coresponding report as an attachment. If not, reasons why
should be given.

The Group engaged an external auditor to prepare a review report on the ICFR system information described in this document, attached as an Appendix, in line

with Guidelines on the Auditor's Report refating to the Information on the ICFR system of Listed Companies, published by the CNMV on its website.
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G. DEGREE OF COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RECOMMENDATIONS

Specify the company's degree of compliance with recommendations of the Good Governance Code for listed
companies,

In the event that a recommendation is not followed or only partially followed, a detailed explanation of the reasons must
be included so that shareholders, investors and the market in general have encugh information to assess the company s
conduct. General explanations are not acceptable.

. That the articles of incorporation of listed companies should not limit the maximum number of votes that may
be cast by one shareholder or contain other restrictions that hinder the takeover of control of the company
through the acquisition of its shares on the market.

Complies [X ] Explain [ |

2. That when the listed company is controlled by another entity in the meaning of Article 42 of the Commercial
Code, whether listed or not, and has, directly or through its subsidiaries, business relations with said entity or any
of its subsidiaries (other than the listed company) or carries out activities related to those of any of them it
should make accurate public disclosures on:

a) The respective areas of activity and possible business relationships between the listed company or its
subsidiaries and the parent company or its subsidiaries.

b) The mecharisms in place to resolve any conflicts of interest that may arise.

Complies [ ] Complies partially [ ] Explain [ ] Not applicable [ X ]

1 That, during the ordinary General Shareholders’ Meelting, as a complement to the distribution of the written
annual corporate governance report, the chairman of the Board of Directors should inform shareholders orally,
in sufficient detail, of the most significant aspects of the company's corporate governance, and in particular:

al Changes that have occured since the last General Sharehelders' Meeting.

b Specific reasons why the company has not followed one or more of the recommendations of the Code
of Corporate Governance and the alternative rules applied, if any.

Complies [ X] Complies partially [ ] Explain [ ]
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That the company should define and promote a policy on communication and contact with shareholders
and institutional investors, within the framewark of their involvement in the company, and with proxy advisors
that complies in all aspects with rules against market abuse and gives equal treatment to similarly situated
shareholders. And that the company should publish this policy on its website, including information on how it
has been put into practice and identifying the contact persons or those responsible for implementing it.

And that, without prejudice to the legal obligations regarding dissemination of inside information and other types
of regulated information, the company should also have a general policy regarding the communication of
economic-financial, non-financial and corporate information through such channels as it may consider
appropriate ([communication media, social networks or other channels) that helps to maximise the dissemination
and guality of information available to the market, investers and other stakeholders.

Complies [ X ] Complies partially [ ] Explain [ ]

That the Board of Directors should not submit to the General Shareholders' Meeting any proposal for
delegation of powers allowing the issue of shares or convertible securities with the exclusion of pre-emptive
rights in an amount exceeding 20% of the capital at the time of delegation.

And that whenever the Board of Directors approves any issue of shares or convertible securities with the
exclusion of pre-emptive rights, the company should immediately publish the reports referred to by company
law on its website.

Complies [ X] Complies parfially [ ] Explain [ ]

That listed companies that prepare the reports listed below, whether under a legal obligation or voluntarily,
should publish them on their website with sufficient time before the General Shareholders’ Meeting, even if
their publication is not mandatory:

o] Report on the auditor’s independence.
b Reports on the workings of the audit and nomination and remuneration committees.
c) Report by the audit committee on related party transactions.

Complies [ X ] Complies partially [ ] Explain [ ]

That the company should transmit in real time, through its website, the proceedings of the General
Shareholders’ Meetings.

And that the company should have mechanisms in place allowing the delegation and casting of votes by
means of data transmission and even, in the case of large-caps and to the extent that it is proportionate,
attendance and active participation in the General Meeting to be conducted by such remote means.

Complies [ X ] Complies partially [ ] Explain [ ]
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That the audit committee should ensure that the financial statements submitted to the General Shareholders’
Meeting are prepared in accordance with accounting regulations. And that in cases in which the auditer has
included a qualification or reservation in its audit report, the chairman of the audit committee should clearly
explain to the general meeting the opinion of the audit committee on its content and scope, making a summary
of this opinion available to shareheolders at the time when the meeting is called, alongside the other Board
proposals.

Complies [ X ] Complies partially [ ] Explain [ ]

That the company should permanently publish on its website the requirements and procedures for certification of
share ownership, the right of attendance at the General Shareholders” Meetings, and the exercise of the right to
vate or to issue a proxy.

And that such requirements and procedures promote attendance and the exercise of shareholder rights in a
non-discriminatory fashion.

Complies [ X ] Complies partially [ ] Explain [ ]

That when a duly authenticated shareholder has exercised his or her right to complete the agenda or to make
new proposals for resolutions in advance of the General Shareholders' Meeting, the company:

a) Should immediately distribute such complementary points and new proposals for resolutions.

b Should publish the attendance, proxy and remote voting card specimen with the necessary changes
such that the new agenda items and alternative proposals can be voted on in the same terms as
those proposed by the Board of Directors.

(] Should submits all these points or alternative proposals to a vote and apply the same voting rules to
them as to those formulated by the Board of Directors including. in particular, assumptions or default
positions regarding votes for or against.

d) That after the General Sharehelders’ Meeting. a breakdown of the voting on said additions or
alternative proposals be communicated.

Complies [ ] Complies partially | | Explain [ ] Not applicable [ X ]

That, if the company intends to pay premiums for attending the General Shareholders' Meeting, it should
establish in advance a general policy on such premiums and this policy should be stable.

Complies [ ] Complies parfially [ ] Explain [ ] Not applicable [ X ]
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12, That the Board of Directors should perform its functions with a unity of purpose and independence of criterion, 15 That proprietary and independent directors should constitute a substantial majority of the Board of Directors
treating all similarly situated shareholders equally and being guided by the best interests of the company, which and that the number of executive directors be kept to a minimum, taking inte account the complexity of the
is understood to mean the pursuit of a profitable and sustainable business in the long term, promoting its corporate group and the percentage of equity participation of executive directors.

continuity and maximising the economic value of the business.

And that the number of female directors should represent at least 40% of the members of the Board of

And that in pursuit of the company's interest, in addifion to complying with applicable law and rules and Directors before the end of 2022 and thereafter, and no less 30% prior to that date.
conducting itself on the basis of good faith, ethics and a respect for commonly accepted best practices, it . ) ) .
should seek to reconcile its own company interests, when appropriate, with the interests of its employees, Complies [ ] Complies portially [ X ] Explain [ ]
suppliers, clients and other stakeholders that may be affected, as well as the impact of its corporate activities T
e F : i When a vacancy on the Board of Directors arises, the Board spedifically ensures that, on filling it, the selection procedures are not afflicted by bias hindering

on the communities in which it operates and on the environment. the appointment of women directors and deliberately seek women who could potentially be candidates for the post.

Complies [ X ] Complies partially [ ] Explain [ ]

6. That the number of proprietary directors as a percentage of the total number of non-executive directors not
13 That the Board of Directors should be of an appropriate size to perfarm its duties effectively andin a be greater than the proportion of the company's share capital represented by those directors and the rest of

collegial manner, which makes it advisable for it to have between five and fifteen members. the capital.

Complies [ X ] Explain [ ]

This criterion may be relaxed:

a) In large-cap companies where very few shareholdings are legally considered significant.
4. That the Board of Directors should approve a policy aimed at favouring an appropriate composition of the

Board and that: b) In the case of companies where a plurality of shareholders is represented on the Board of Directors

without ties among them.
a) Is concrete and verifiable.

i . Complies [ X] Explain [ ]
b) Ensures that proposals for appointment or re-election are based upon a prior analysis of the skills reguired

by the Board of Directors; and

i . . . . 17, That the number of independent directors should represent at least half of the total numiber of directors.
c) Favours diversity of knowledge, experience, age and gender, For these purposes, it is considered that the

measures that encourage the company to have a significant number of female senior executives favour . o _ »
gender diversity That, however, when the company does not have a high level of market capitalisation or in the event thatitis a

large-cap company with one shareholder or a group of shareholders acting in concert who together control more
than 30% of the company’s share capital, the number of independent directors should represent at least one third

That the result of the prior analysis of the skills required by the Board of Directors be contained in the supporting of the fotal number of directors

report from the nomination committee published upon calling the General Shareholders' Meeting to which the
ratification, appointment or re-election of each director is submitted, Complies [ X ] Explain [ ]

The nomination committee will annually verify compliance with this policy and explain its findings in the annual
corporate governance report.

Complies [ X ] Complies partially [ ] Explain [ ]
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That companies should publish the following information on its directors on their website, and keep it
up to date:

al Professional profile and biography.

b Any other Boards to which the directors belong, regardless of whether or not the companies are listed, as
well as any other remunerated activities engaged in, regardless of type.

c) Category of directorship, indicating, in the case of individuals who represent significant shareholders,
the shareholder that they represent or to which they are connected.

d) Date of their first appointment as a director of the company’s Board of Directors, and any
subsequent re-elections.

e Company shares and share options that they own.

Complies [ X ] Complies parfially [ ] Explain [ ]

That the annual corporate governance report, after verificafion by the nomination committee, should explain
the reasons for the appointment of any proprietary directors at the proposal of shareholders whose holding is
less than 3%. It should also explain, if applicable, why formal requests from shareholders for presence on the
Board were not honoured, when their shareholding was equal to or exceeded that of other shareholders whose
proposal for proprietary directors was honoured.

Complies [ ] Complies partially [ ] Explain [ ] Not applicable [X ]

That proprietary directors representing significant shareholders should resign from the Board when the
shareholder they represent disposes of its entire shareholding. They should also resign, in a proportional
fashion, in the event that said shareholder reduces its percentage interest to a level that requires a decrease
in the number of proprietary directors.

Complies [ ] Complies partially [ | Explain | | Mot applicable [ X ]
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That the Board of Directors should not propose the dismissal of any independent director before the completion
of the director's term provided for in the articles of incorporation unless the Board of Directors finds just cause
and a prior report has been prepared by the nomination committee. Specifically, just cause is considered to
exist if the director takes on new duties or commits to new cbligations that would interfere with his or her ability
to dedicate the time necessary for attention to the dufies inherent to his or her post as a director, fails to
complete the tasks inherent to his or her post, or is affected by any of the circumstances which would cause
the loss of independent status in accordance with applicable law.

The dismissal of independent directors may also be proposed as a result of a public takeover bid, merger or
other similar corporate transaction entailing a change in the sharehalder structure of the company, provided
that such changes in the structure of the Board are the result of application of the proporticnate
representation criterion provided in Recommendation 16.

Complies [ X ] Explain [ ]

That companies should establish rules requiring that directors inform the Board of Directors and, where
appropriate, resign from their posts, when circumstances arise which affect them, whether or not related to
their actions in the company itself, and which may harm the company’s standing and reputation, and in
particular requiring them to inform the Board of any criminal proceedings in which they appear as suspects or
defendants, as well as of how the legal proceedings subsequently unfold.

And that, if the Board is informed or becomes aware in any other manner of any of the circumstances
mentioned above, it must investigate the case as quickly as possible and, depending on the specific
circumstances, decide, based on a report from the nomination and remuneration committee, whether or not
any measure must be adopted, such as the opening of an internal investigation, asking the director to resign
or proposing that he or she be dismissed. And that these events must be reported in the annual corporate
governance report, unless there are any special reasons not to do so, which must also be noted in the minutes.
This without prejudice to the information that the company must disseminate, if appropriate, at the time when
the comresponding measures are implemented.

Complies [ X] Complies parfially [ ] Explain [ ]

That all directors clearly express their opposition when they consider any proposal submitted fo the Board of
Directors to be against the company’s interests. This particularly applies to independent directors and directors
who are unaffected by a potential conflict of interest if the decision could be detrimental to any sharehclders
not represented on the Board of Directors.

Furthermore, when the Board of Directors makes significant or repeated decisions about which the director has
serious reservations, the director should draw the appropriate conclusions and, in the event the director decides
to resign, explain the reasons for this decision in the letter referred to in the next recommendation.

This recommendation also applies to the secretary of the Board of Directors, even if he or she is not a director.

Complies [ ] Complies partially [ | Explain [ | Not applicable [ X |
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That whenever, due to resignation or resolution of the General Shareholders' Meeting, a director leaves before
the completion of his or her term of office, the director should explain the reasons for this decision, orin the
case of non-executive directors. their opinion of the reasons for cessation, in a letter addressed to all members
of the Board of Directors.

And that, without prejudice to all this being reported in the annual corpeorate governance report, insofar as it is
relevant to investors, the company must publish the cessation as quickly as possible, adequately referring to the
reasons or circumstances adduced by the director.

Complies [ ] Complies partially [ | Explain [ ] Not applicable [ X ]

That the nomination committee should make sure that non-executive directors have sufficient time
available in order to properly perform their duties,

And that the Board regulations establish the maximum number of company Boards on which directors may sit.

Complies [ X ] Complies parfially [ ] Explain [ ]

That the Board of Directors meet frequently enough to be able to effectively perform its duties, and at least eight
times per year, following a schedule of dates and agendas established at the beginning of the year and
allowing each director individually to propose other items that do not originally appear on the agenda.

Complies [ X ] Complies partially [ ] Explain [ ]

That director absences occur only when absolutely necessary and be quantified in the annual corporate
governance report, And when absences do occur, that the director appoint a proxy with instructions.

Complies [ X ] Complies partially [ ] Explain [ ]

That when directors or the secretary express concemn regarding a proposal or, in the case of directors,
regarding the direction in which the company is headed and said concems are not resclved by the Board of
Directors, such concerns should be included in the minutes at the request of the director expressing them.

Complies [ ] Complies parfially [ ] Explain [ ] Mot applicable [ X ]

That the company should establishes adequate means for directors to obtain appropriate advice in order to
properly fulfil their duties including, should circumstances warrant, external advice at the company's expense.

Complies [ X | Complies partially [ | Explain [ |
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That, without regard to the knowledge necessary for directors to complete their duties, companies make
refresher courses available to them when circumstances make this advisable.

Complies [ X ] Explain [ ] Not applicable [ ]

That the agenda for meetings clearly states those matters about which the Board of Directors are to make a
decision or adopt a resolution so that the directors may study or gather all relevant information ahead of time.

When, under exceptional circumstances, the chairman wishes to bring urgent matters for decision or resclution
before the Board of Directors which do not appear on the agenda, prior express agreement of a majority of the
directors shall be necessary, and said consent shall by duly recorded in the minutes.

Complies [ X ] Complies partially [ ] Explain [ ]

That directors be periodically informed of changes in shareholding and of the opinions of significant
shareholders, investors and rating agencies of the company and its group.

Complies [X | Complies partially [ | Explain [ |

That the chairman, as the person responsible for the efficient workings of the Board of Directors, in addition to
carrying out his duties required by law and the Articles of Association, should prepare and submit to the Board
of Directors a schedule of dates and matters to be considered; organise and coordinate the periodic
evaluation of the Board as well as, if applicable, the chief executive of the company, should be responsible for
leading the Board and the effectiveness of its work: ensuring that sufficient time is devoted to considering
strategic issues, and approve and supervise refresher courses for each director when circumstances so dictate.

Complies [X ] Complies partially | | Explain [ ]

That when there is a coordinating director, the arficles of incorporation or Board regulations should confer upon
him or her the following powers in addition to those confered by law: to chair the Board of Directers in the
absence of the chairman and deputy chairmen, should there be any; to reflect the concemns of non-executive
directors; to ligise with investors and shareholders in order to understand their points of view and respond to their
concems, in particular as those concerns relate to corporate governance of the company; and to coordinate
a succession plan for the chairman.

Complies [ ] Complies partially [ | Explain [ | Not applicable [ X ]

That the secretary of the Board of Directors should pay special attention to ensure that the activities and
decisions of the Board of Directors take into account such recommendations regarding good governance
contained in this Good Governance Code as may be applicable to the company.

Complies [X] Explain [ |
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¥%.  That the Board of Directors meet in plenary session once a year and adopt, where appropriate, an action
plan to correct any deficiencies detected in the following:
al The quality and efficiency of the Board of Directors' work.

b) The workings and composition of its committees.

c) Diversity in the composition and skills of the Board of Directors.

d Performance of the chairman of the Board of Directors and of the chief executive officer of the company.

] Performance and input of each director, paying special attention to those in charge of the various
Board committees.

In order to perform its evaluation of the various committees, the Board of Directors will take a report from the

committees themselves as a starting point and for the evaluation of the Board, a report from the nomination

committee,

Every three years, the Board of Directors will rely for its evaluation upon the assistance of an external advisor,

whose independence shall be verified by the nomination commitiee.

Business relationships between the external adviser or any member of the adviser's group and the company or

any company within its group must be specified in the annual corporate governance report.

The process and the areas evaluated must be described in the annual corporate governance report.
Complies [ ] Complies partially [ X ] Explain [ ]

The Company carried out the evaluation internally without the assistance of any external adviser, mainly due to the implementation of a strict cost containment

policy that affects the engagement of external advisers.

3. Thatif there is an executive committee, it must contain at least two non-executive directors, at least one of
whom must be independent, and its secretary must be the secretary of the Board.

Complies [ ] Complies parfially [ ] Explain [ ] Mot applicable [ X ]

3B That the Board of Directors must always be aware of the matters discussed and decisions taken by the
executive committee and that all members of the Board of Directors receive a copy of the minutes of meetings
of the executive commitiee.

Complies [ ] Complies partially [ ] Explain [ ] Not applicable [ X ]

3. That the members of the audit committee, in particular its chairman, be appointed in consideration of their
knowledge and experience in accountancy, audit and risk management issues, oth financial and non-
financial.

Complies [ X ] Complies parfially [ ] Explain [ ]
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That under the supervision of the audit commitiee, there should be a unit in charge of the intermal audit
function, which ensures that information and internal control systems operate correctly, and which reports to
the non-executive chairman of the Board or of the audit committee.

Complies [ X ] Complies partially [ ] Explain [ ]

That the person in charge of the unit performing the internal audit function should present an annual work plan
to the audit committee, for approval by that committee or by the Board, reporting directly on its execution,
including any incidents or limitations of scope, the results and monitoring of its recommendations, and present an
activity report at the end of each year.

Complies [X | Complies partially [ | Explain [ ] Not applicable [
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42, That in addition to the provisions of applicable law, the audit committee should be responsible for the
following:

1. With regard to information systems and internal control:

al Supervising and evaluating the process of preparation and the completeness of the financial and non-
financial information, as well as the contral and management systems for financial and non-financial
risk relating to the company and, if applicable, the group - including operational, technological, legal,
social, environmental, political and reputational risk, or risk related to comuption - reviewing
compliance with regulatory requirements, the appropriate delimitation of the scope of consolidation
and the correct application of accounting criteria.

b) Ensuring the independence of the unit charged with the internal audit function; proposing the selection,
appointment and dismissal of the head of internal audit; proposing the budget for this service;
approving or proposing ifs orienfation and annual work plans for approval by the Board, making sure
that its activity is focused primarily on material risks (including reputational risk); receiving periodic
information on its activities: and verifying that senior management takes into account the conclusions
and recommendations of its reports.

c| Establishing and supervising a mechanism that allows employees and other persons related to the
company, such as directors, shareholders, suppliers, contractors or subcontractors, to report any
potentially serious iregularities, especially those of a financial or accounting nature, that they observe
in the company or its group. This mechanism must guarantee confidentiality and in any case provide
for cases in which the communications can be made anonymausly, respecting the rights of the
whistieblower and the person reported.

d] Generally ensuring that intemal control policies and systems are effectively applied in
practice.

2 Wwith regard to the external auditor:
a) Inthe event that the external auditor resigns, examining the circumstances leading to such resignation.

b}  Ensuring that the remuneration paid to the external auditor for its work does not
compromise the quality of the work or the auditor’s independence.

¢ Making sure that the company informs the CNMV of the change of auditor, along with a statement
on any differences that arose with the outgoing auditor and, if applicable, the contents thereof.

d] Ensuring that the external auditor holds an annual meeting with the Board of Directors in plenary
session in order to make a report regarding the tasks performed and the development of the
company's accounting situation and risks.

€] Ensuring that the company and the external auditor comply with applicable rules regarding the
provision of services other than auditing, limits on the concentration of the auditor's business,
and, in general, all other rules regarding auditors’ independence.

Complies [ X ] Complies partially [ ] Explain [ ]
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That the audit commitiee be able to require the presence of any employee or manager of the
company, even stipulating that he or she appear without the presence of any other member of
management.

Complies [ X ] Complies partially [ ] Explain [ ]

That the audit committee be kept abreast of any corporate and structural changes planned by the company
in order to perform an analysis and draw up a prior report to the Board of Directors on the economic conditions
and accounting implications and, in particular, any exchange ratic involved.

Complies [ X ] Complies partially [ ] Explain [ ] Not gpplicable [ ]

That the risk management and control policy identify or determine, as a minimum:

[s]] The various types of financial and non-financial risks (including operational, technological, legal, social,
environmental, political and reputational risks and risks relating to coruption) which the company faces,
including among the financial or economic risks contingent liabilities and other off-balance sheet risks.

b) A risk control and management model based on different levels, which will include a specialised risk
committee when sector regulations so require or the company considers it to be appropriate.

¢ The level of risk that the company considers to be acceptable.

d Measures in place to mitigate the impact of the risks identified in the event that they should
materialised.

] Internal control and information systems to be used in order to control and manage the
aforementioned risks, including contingent liabilities or off-balance sheet risks.

Complies [X ] Complies partially | | Explain [ ]

That under the direct supervision of the audit committee or, if applicable, of a specialised committee of the
Board of Directors, an internal risk control and management function should exist, performed by an internal unit
or department of the company which is expressly charged with the following responsibilities:

a) Ensuring the proper functioning of the risk management and control systems and, in particular, that
they adequately identify, manage and quantify all material risks affecting the company.

b Actively participating in drawing up the risk strategy and in important decisions regarding risk
management.
cl Ensuring that the risk management and control systems adequately mitigate risks as defined by the

policy laid down by the Board of Directors.

Complies [ X] Complies parfially [ ] Explain [ ]
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That in designating the members of the nomination and remuneration committee - or of the nomination
committee and the remuneration committee if they are separate — care be taken to ensure that they have the
knowledge, aptitudes and experience appropriate to the functions that they are called upon to perform and
that the mojority of said members are independent directors.

Complies [ X ] Complies partially [ ] Explain [ ]

That large-cap companies have separate nomination and remuneration committees.

Complies [ ] Explain [ ] Not applicable [ X ]

That the nomination committee consult with the chairman of the Board of Directors and the chief executive of
the company, especially in relation fo matters conceming executive directors.

And that any director be able to ask the nomination committee to consider potential candidates that he or she
considers suitable to fill a vacancy on the Board of Directors.

Complies [ X | Complies partially [ | Explain | |

That the remuneration committee exercise its functions independently and that, in addition to the functions
assigned to it by law, it should be responsible for the following:

o]} Proposing the basic conditions of employment for senior management to the Board of Directors.
b Verifying compliance with the company’s remuneration policy.
c) Periodically reviewing the remuneration policy applied to directors and senior managers, including share-

based remuneration systems and their application, as well as ensuring that their individual remuneration is
proportional to that received by the company’s other directors and senior managers.

d) Making sure that potential confiicts of interest do not undermine the independence of external advice
given to the committee.

e Verifying the information on remuneration of directors and senior managers contained in the various
corporate documents, including the annual report on director remuneration.

Complies [ X ] Complies parfially [ ] Explain [ ]

That the remuneration committee should consult with the chairman and the chief executive of the
company, especially on matters relating to executive directors and senior management.

Complies [ X ] Complies parfially [ ] Explain [ ]
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That the rules regarding the composition and workings of the supervision and control committees should
appear in the regulations of the Board of Directors and that they should be consistent with those applying
to legally mandatory committees in accordance with the foregoing recommendations, including:

a) That they be composed exclusively of non-executive directors, with a majority of independent
directars.

b) That their chairpersons be independent directors.

c) That the Board of Directors select members of these committees faking info account their knowledge,

skills and experience and the duties of each committee; discuss their proposals and reports; and require
them to render account of their activities and of the work performed in the first plenary session of the
Board of Directors held after each committee meeting.

d That the commitiees be allowed to avail themselves of outside advice when they consider it
necessary to perform their duties.

e That their meetings be recorded and their minutes be made available to all directors.

Complies [ ] Complies partially [ X ] Explain [ ] Not applicable [ ]

That verification of compliance with the company's policies and rules on environmental, social and corporate
governance matters, and with the internal codes of conduct be assigned to one or divided among more
than one committee of the Board of Directors, which may be the audit committee, the nomination
committee, a specidlised committee on sustainability or corporate social responsibility or such other
specialised committee as the Board of Directors, in the exercise of its powers of self-organisation, may have
decided to create. And that such committee be composed exclusively of non-executive directors, with a
majority of these being independent directors, and that the minimum functions indicated in the next
recommendation be specifically assigned to it.

Complies [X ] Complies partially [ | Explain [ ]
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The minimum functions referred to in the foregoing recommendation are the following:

]} Maenitoring of compliance with the company's internal codes of conduct and corporate governance
rules, also ensuring that the corporate culture is aligned with its purpose and values.

b) Monitoring the application of the general policy on communication of economic and financial
information, non-financial and corporate information and communication with shareholders and
investors, proxy advisors and other stakeholders. The manner in which the entity communicates and
handles relations with small and medium-sized shareholders must also be monitored.

c) The pericdic evaluation and review of the company's corporate govemance system, and
environmental and social policy, with a view to ensuring that they fulfil their purposes of promoting the
interests of society and take account, as appropriate, of the legitimate interests of other stakeholders.

d) Supervision of the company's environmental and social practices to ensure that they are in alignment
with the established strategy and policy.

€ Supervision and evaluation of the way in which relations with the various stakeholders are handled.

Complies [ X ] Complies partially [ ] Explain [ ]

That environmental and social sustainability policies identify and include at least the following:

al The principles, commitments, objectives and strategy relating to shareholders, employees, clients,
suppliers, social issues, the environment, diversity, tax responsibility, respect for human rights, and the
prevention of cormuption and other unlawful conduct-

b) Means or systems for monitoring compliance with these policies, their associated risks, and management.

c) Mechanisms for supervising non-financial risk, including that relating to ethical aspects and aspects of
business conduct.

d] Channels of communication, participation and dialogue with stakeholders.

(] Responsible communication practices that impede the manipulation of data and protect
integrity and honour.,

Complies [ X | Complies partially [ | Explain | |

That director remuneration be sufficient in order to attract and retain directors who meet the desired professional
profile and to adequately compensate them for the dedication, qualifications and responsibility demanded of
their posts, while not being so excessive as to compromise the independent judgement of non-executive directors.

Complies [ X ] Explain [ ]
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That only executive directors should receive variable remuneration linked to corporate results and personal
performance, as well as remuneration in the form of shares, options ar rights to shares or instruments
referenced to the share price and long-term savings plans such as pension plans, retirement schemes or
other provident schemes.

Consideration may be given to delivering shares to non-executive directors as remuneration providing this
is conditional upon their holding them until they cease to be directors. The foregeing shall not apply to
shares that the director may need to sell in order to meet the costs related to their acquisition.

Complies [X ] Complies partially | | Explain [ ]

That as regards variable remuneration, remuneration policies should incorporate the necessary limits and
technical safeguards to ensure that such remuneration is in line with the professional performance of its
beneficiaries and not based solely on general developments in the markets or in the sector in which the
company operates, or other similar circumstances.

And, in particular, that variable remuneration components:

a) Are linked to pre-determined and measurable performance criteria and that such criteria take into
account the risk incurred to achieve a given result.

b) Promote the sustainability of the company and include non-financial criteria that are geared towards
creating long term value, such as compliance with the company's rules and intemal operating procedures
and with its risk management and control policies.

c) Are based on balancing the attainment of short-, medium- and long-term objectives, so as to allow
remuneration of continuous performance over a period long encugh to be able to assess its
contribution to the sustainable creation of value, such that the elements used to measure
performance are not associated only with one-off, occasional or extraordinary events.

Complies [ X ] Complies partially [ ] Explain [ ] Not applicable | ]

That the payment of variable remuneration components be subject to sufficient verification that previously
established performance or other conditions have effectively been met. Entifies must include in their annual
report on director remuneration the criteria for the time required and methods used for this verification
depending on the nature and characteristics of each variable component.

That, additionally, companies consider the inclusion of a reduction ('malus’] clause for the deferal of the
payment of a portion of variable remuneration compenents that would imply their total or partial loss if an event
were to occur prior to the payment date that would make this advisable.

Complies [ ] Complies partially [ X ] Explain [ ] Not applicable [ ]
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;:1?&;:?:;:: ;3";'::'em by umi'-"' of ‘:: ;r@méﬁéﬁﬂm :ﬁ;‘;:ﬁ‘;;‘:j :‘:ﬁ:;m:m:ﬁ;;“ annual targets, the degree of fulfilment of which is 54 That payments for contract termination should not exceed an ameunt equivalent to two years of total annual
4 ’ remuneration and should not be paid until the company has been able to verfy that the director has fulfilled
: . . . ; ; : . all previously established criteria or conditions for payment.
According to the Director Remuneration Policy approved by the Annual General Meeting, payment of the Annual Variable Remuneration shall be linked to the
achievement of specific business objectives,
= For the purposes of this recommendation, payments for contractual termination will be considered to include
. . . ) any payments the accrual of which or the obligation to pay which arises as a consequence of or on the
0. That t lated t Its should take int t t that ht 2 A . g X - :
g a N ;ZI:-'I:FE;O;:;::GT gd d'?oﬁso?;pzzyc::éu1;;1 :I;SI do d'?nl 'r;':hosz%ofe:ug:y reservations fhat mig occasion of the termination of the contractual relationship between the director and the company, including
PP : e P AL I * amounts not previously vested of long-term savings schemes and amounts paid by virtue of post-contractual
Complies [ X] Complies partially [ ] Explain [ ] Mot applicable [ ] non-competition agreements.
Complies [ X ] Complies parfially [ ] Explain [ ] Mot applicable [ ]
4. That a material portion of executive directors’ variable remuneration be linked to the delivery of shares or
financial instruments referenced to the share price.
Complies [ ] Complies partially [ ] Explain [ ] Not applicable [ X ]
8. That once shares or options or financial instruments have been allocated under remuneration schemes,
executive directars be prohibited from transferring ownership or exercising options or rights until a term of at
least three years has elapsed.
An exception is made in cases where the director has, at the time of the transfer or exercise of options or rights,
a net economic exposure to changes in the share price for a market value equivalent to at least twice the
amount of his or her fixed annual remuneration through the ownership of shares, options or other financial
instruments.
The foregoing shall not apply to shares that the director may need to sell in order to meet the costs related
to their acquisition or, following a favourable assessment by the nomination and remuneration committee, to
deal with such extraordinary situations as may arise and so require.
Complies [ ] Complies partially [ ] Explain [ ] Not applicable [ X ]
83 That contractual arrangements should include a clause allowing the company to demand reimbursement
of the variable remuneration components in the event that payment was not in accordance with the
performance conditions or when payment was made based on data subsequently shown to have been
inaccurate.
Complies [ X ] Complies partially [ ] Explain [ ] Not applicable [ ]
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To this end, and where appropriate, it may submit recommendations or proposals to the Board of Directors and the comresponding time frame for follow-up
activities; j) To supervise and evaluate the processes for the preparation and the completeness of the financial and non-finandial information, as well as the
financial and non-financial risk control and management systems relating to the Company and the Group, including operational, technological, legal, social,

. FURTHER INFORMATION OF INTEREST environmental, political, or reputational risks, or risk related to corruption. To review the appointment and replacement of the persons responsible; k) To
ensure the independence of the unit charged with the internal audit function; propose the selection, appointment, re-election and dismissal of the head of
internal audit; propose the budget for this service; approve or propose its orientation and annual work plans for approval by the Board, making sure that its.
activity is focused primarily on material risks (indueding reputational risk); to receive periodic information on its activities; and verify that senior management

1 If there is any significant aspect regarding corporate govemnance in the company or other companies in the takes into account the conclusions and recommendations of its reparts; I) To review the Company's finandial statements, monitoring compliance with legal
. g . N . . R requirements and the correct application of generally accepted accounting principles, and report on proposals for changes in accounting principles and
group that has not been included in other sections of this report, but which it is necessary to include in order policies put forward by management; m) To review issue prospectuses and pericdic financial information that must be disclosed by the Board to the markets
to provide a more comprehensive and reasoned picture of the structure and govemance practices in the and its supervisory bodies; n) To ensure that internal contrl policies and systems are effectively applied in practice; o) To inform the Board of Directors in
B . 1 of advance of any related party transactions that must be approved by the General Meeting or the Board of Directors, and oversee the intemal procedure in
company or ifs group, describe them brie ly below. place at the Company for those transactions whose approval has been delegated; p) To establish and supervise a mechanism that allows employees and
other persons related to the Company, such as directors, shareholders, suppliers, contractors or subcontractors, (o repert any potentially serious
. i . R . B . . i . irregularities, especially those of a financial or accounting nature, that they observe in the Company or its group. This mechanism must guarantee
2 This section may also be used to provide any other information, explanation or clarification relating to previous confidentiality and in any case provide for cases in which the communications can be made anonymously, respecting the rights of the whistieblower and the
sections of the report, so long as it is relevant and not repetitive. person reported; q) Inform the Board of Directors, with prior notice, about all matters foreseen in law, the Bylaws and the Regulations of the Board of
Directars; in particular those regarding: 1) the finandal information and the management report, which shall include, where appropriate, the mandatory non-
financial statement the Company must disclose periodically, 2) the creation or acquisition of awnership interests in special purpose vehicles or entities
Specifically, indicate whether the company is subject to any corporate governance legislation other than that of domiciled in countries or territories considered to be tax havens, 3) proposals for amendments to the Regulations of the Board of Directors.
r 3 A z E 2 5 5 : = g 3 _ 3. The Audit Committee shall appaint a chairman from among its members who must be an independent director. In the absence of the chairman, the oldest
Spain and, if so, include any information required under this legislation that differs from the data required in this independent director shall chair the meeting. The chairman's term of office shal be a maximum of four years, and he or she may be re-elected after a period
report. of one year has elapsed since leaving office. The secretary of the Board of Directors, and in his or her absence the deputy secretary of the Board of Directors,
will act as secretary. Minutes shall be taken of the resolutions adopted at each meeting, which shall be reported to the Board in plenary session. 4. The Audit
Committee shall meet periodically as required and at least four times a year. One meeting must necessarily be devoted to evaluating the efficiency of, and
3. The company may also indicate whether it has voluntarily subscribed to other ethical or best practice compliance with, the Company's rules and procedures of g e and preparing the on that the Board of Directors must approve and indude in
: B 5 - its annual public documentation. It will be convened by the chairman, who must call the meeting at the behest of the chairman of the Board of Directors or
codes, whether international, sector-based, or other. In such case, name the code in question and the date of two members of the Committee itself. Committee meetings shall be quorate when at least a majority of its members are present or represented.
on which the company subscribed to it. Specific mention must be made as to whether the company Resolutions shall be adopted by an absolute majority of the members attending the meeting. Voting in writing and without a meeting shall anly be permitted
. : when none of the members object to such procedure. 5. Any member of the management team or of the Company's personnel whe is required to do so shall
adheres fo the Code of Good Tax Practices of 20 July 2010: be obliged to attend the meetings of the Audit Committee and to cooperate with it and provide it with the information available to that member. The
Committes may also request the auditor's attendance at the meetings. 6. To better discharge its duties, the Audit and Compliance Committee may seek the
€.2.1. AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE, advice of | professionals, whose enga shall be up to the Board of Directors. The Board may not refuse the engagement without a reasoned
explanation based on the Company’s interests."
FUNCTIONS, RULES AND PROCEDURES FOR THE ORGANISATION AND FUNCTIONING OF THE AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE: The functions entrusted to MAIN ACTIONS IN 2022:
the Audit and Compliance Committee and the procedures and rules governing its organisation and operation are set out in Article 15 of the Regulations of the Board '
of Directors: "Article 15. The Audit and Compliance Committee. 1. The number of members of the Audit Committee shall not be less than three or more than seven, . X
and shall be determined by the Board of Directors. All the members of the Audit Committee must be directors who are not executives of the Company and do not - Reporting ta the Board of Directors: on the budget for the year and monitoring budget, complance.
have a contractual relationship other than that by which they are appeinted. The majority must be independent directors, The members of the Audit and - Monitaring the Campany’s and Group's financial and cash position throughout the year. ) ) o
Compliance Committee, and in particular its chairman, shall be appointed taking into their knowledge and experience in accounting, audit and risk management, - Reviewing and analysing, prior to the Board meeting, the main interim periodic (quarterly and half-yearly) economic and financial reports, duly providing a
both financial and non-financial risks. Without prejudice to the provisions of the law and the Company's bylaws, the Audit Committee shall have the powers and be favourable report for presentation to the markets and their supervisory bodies.
governed by the rules of operation set out below. 2. Without prejudice to other tasks asslaned to It by law, the Bylaws, the Annual General Meeting or the Board of - Reviewing and appraving the 2021 tax report, the tax policies applied during the year, and the incidents arising and the tax management tools used during the
Directors, the Audit and Compliance Committee shall have the following basic responsibilities: a) To report to the Annual General Meeting on any issues raised at it year,
by shareholders in matters within its competence and, in particular, on the outcome of the audit, explaining how it has contributed to the integrity of the financial - Reviewing the steps and processes of the Group's Internal Control over Financial Reporting (ICFR) system during the year.
information and the duties performed by the Audit and Compliance's in this process; b) To lay before the Board of Directors proposals for the selection, - Reviewing the external audi work.
appointment and replacement of the auditor, the terms of the engagement, the scope of the professional mandate, guaranteeing that the fees paid to the extemnal - Reviewing the economic terms and conditions of the engagement of the audit firm of the Company's and Group's financial statements.
auditor for ts work does not compromise its quality or independence, and, where applicable, the external auditor's revocation or non-renewal, and to regularly - Analysing the external auditor's independence and reviewing compliance with requirements regarding conflicts of interest established In Spanish Audit Law
mrlnveotfm tneuextebr‘fn%audumr mltorTi;rm;:n the _aud;;plan and nls;eeri(le?lu:tl,mi .|Ir_| a:sc(l:gf;ho m"f":g mrT mdepen_&ence in thle ﬁ;ussewof its Iduni? In::‘e 22/2015, of 20 July, considering such independence to be demonstrated.
eve gnation @ external auditor, to examine the reasons behind it; ) To ish apprapriate relations with external a receive ifarmation an - Approving non-audit services provided by the external auditor to the Company or Group subsidiaries, previously reported by the General Economic and Financial
matters that might compromise the auditors' independence and any other matters related to the financial audit process, and to receive other notifications provided D:ﬁgmner?t with respect to meﬁ;mm b;rmmml.us a:d amounts. pany P P usly ¥ !
for in auditing laws and technical auditing standards; d) To receive, in all cases, an annual statement from the extemal auditors confirming their independence from - Analysing and reviewing the reports by Internal Audit in 2022 on the various projects selected and cross-culting aspects of the various activities, their
the Company or directly or indirectly related entities, in additional to detailed information on an individual basis about any additional services of any kind provided 5
i y outcome, condusions and, where applicable, recommendations to Company management.
to, and the related fees received from, these entities by the auditors or by persons or entities related to them, pursuant to the law, To ensure that the external ik _ | 3 . A
auditor holds an annual meeting with the Board of Directors In full in order to make a report regarding the engagement performed and the development of the - Rev!m!ng and apmng the Intem_al Audit Department’s Annual Report for 2021 and the 2022 Iphernal Audit Plan, including the budget for the year.
company’s accounting situation and risks; e) To make sure that the Company informs the CNMV of the change of auditor, along with a statement on any differences - Reviewing and approving the Compliznce Department's Annual Report for 2021 and of the Compliance Department's Annual Plan for 2022, Including the
that arose with the outgoing auditor and, if applicable, the contents thereof; f) To ensure that the company and the external auditor comply with applicable rules budget for the year. _
regarding the provision of services other than auditing, limits on the concentration of the auditor's business, and, in general, all other rules regarding auditors' - Analysing and processing complaints reported by the Compliance Department received through the Ethics Channel in 2022.
independence; g) To issue on an annual basis, prior to the issuance of the audit report on the financial statements, a reporting containing an opinion regarding - Following up on the investigations coordinated by the Compliance Department at the request of the Committee itself.
whether the independence of auditors and audit firms has been compromised. This report must be contain, in all cases, a reasoned evaluation of the provisions of - Monitaring the actions taken under the framework of the anti-money-laundering and terrorist financing system implementad in the group companies
each additional service referenced in the previous point, considering each service individually and jointly, separate to the statutory audit and in relation to the required to do so because of their business or because of local laws.
systermn of independence and regulations governing auditing activities; h) To ensure fulfilment of the audit engagement, endeavouring that the auditor's opinion on - Supervising the work plan drawn up for renewing 150 37001 certification {anti-bribery management systems) and UNE 19601 certification {criminal risk
the finandal statements and the content of the audit report are drafted clearly and precisely; i) To supervise the effectiveness of the Company's internal controls compliance rr It system), obtained in 2019.
and risk management systems, and discuss with the auditor any significant weaknesses in the internal control system that may have been detected over the course
of the audit, without compromising its independence.
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- Reviewing and approving the Risk and Internal Control Department’s Annual Report for 2021 and the Risk and Internal Control Department’s Annual

Plan for 2022, induding the budget for the year,

- Updating the Risk Map and OHLA Group's financial and non-financial risks.

- Analysing the Group's related party transactions.

= Monitoring the implementation of the corporate restructuring (Hive Down) agreed under the framework of the Group's financial refinancing with its main bank
creditors on 25 June 2021.

- Performing the Committee’s annual self-assessment.

- Preparing the Committee’s annual activity report.

€.2.1. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE.

FUNCTIONS, RULES AND PROCEDURES FOR THE ORGANISATION AND FUNCTIONING OF THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: The functions,
rules and procedures for the organisation and functioning of the committee are set out in Article 16 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors: "Article 16.
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 1. The Board of Directors shall designate from among its members a Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The
number of members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall not be less than three or more than seven, and shall be determined by the Board of
Directors. All Nomination and Remuneration Committee members must be directors who are not executives of the Company and do not have a contractual
relationship other than that by which they are appointed, and at least two of them shall be independent. Efforts shall be made to appoint members with the
appropriate knowledge, skills and experience to discharge their responsibilities. The chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be appointed
from among the independent directors who are members. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall have the powers and be governed by the rules of
operation set out below. 2. Without prejudice to any other functions assigned by law, the Bylaws or the Board, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall
have at least the following functions: a) Evaluating the competencies, knowledge and experience necessary for the Board of Directors. For this purpose, it shall
define the functions and skills required for candidates to cover each vacancy and shall evaluate the time and dedication necessary to perform their duties
effectively; b) Setting a target for representation for the least represented gender on the Board, and drawing up guidelines on how to achieve this objective; ¢
Submitting to the Board of Directors proposals for the appointment of independent directors for their nomination by co-option or for their submission to the Annual
General Meeting decision, in addition to proposals for the re-election or dismissal of said directors by the Annual General Meeting; d) Informing of any proposals
for appointment of all other directors for nomination by co-option or for their submission to the Annual General Meeting's decision, in addition to proposals for the
re-election ore dismissal of said directors by the Annual General Meeting; e) Proposing to the Board the members that must form part of each Committee; f)
Reporting the proposals for appointment and removal of senior executives and the basic conditions of their contracts; g) Examining and organising the succession
of the chairman of the Board of Directors and the Company’s chief executive and, if necessary, submitting proposals to the Board of Directors for such succession
to occur in an orderly and planned manner; h) Propesing to the Board of Directors the remuneration pelicy for directors and general managers or those who carry
out their senior management functions reporting directly to the Board, Executive Committees or Chief Executive Officers, as well as the individual remuneration
and other contractual conditions of executive directors and the criteria for the rest of the Group's senior management, ensuring that they are observed; i)
Reviewing, periodically, the remuneration programmes, assessing their suitability and performance; j) Menitoring remuneration transparency; k) Reporting on
transactions that give rise or may give rise to a conflict of interest and, in general, on the matters included in chapter IX of these Regulations; |) Considering
suggestions made to the chalrman by members of the Board, senior executives or the Company's shareholders; II) Reporting to the plenary session of the Board
on the proposal of appointment and removal of the Board of Directors' Secretary and Deputy Secretary; m) Reporting, annually, to the plenary session of the
Board on the evaluation of the chairman of the Board's performance; n) Evaluating and reviewing, periodically, the Cempany's envirenmental and social
performance with a view to reviewing the effectiveness of the sustainability policy, and compliance with related objectives, reporting annually to the Board on the
imph ion and m of that policy in the Group; ) Reviewing the regulations and practices of the Company relating to corparate governance, by
proposing any amendments it deems appropriate so that they are in line with the standards, recommendations and best practices in this matter; p) Reviewing,
pericdically, the remuneration policy applied to directors and senior executives, including share-based remuneration schemes and their implementation, as well as
ensuring that individual remuneration is proportionate to amounts paid to other of the Company's directors and senior executives; q) Overseeing that any conflicts
of interest do not damage the independence of external advice provided to the Committee; and r) Verifying the information on director and senior executive
remuneration contained in the various corporate documents, including the Annual Report on Director Remuneration. 3. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee shall meet whenever the Board or its chairman requests that a report be issued or a proposal be adopted and, in any case, whenever it is deemed
necessary for the proper performance of its functions. In any case, it shall meet to draw up the specific report on the Company’s proposed remuneration policy to
be submitted to the General Meeting. Independently of this, it shall meet at least three times a year, One of these meetings shall be devoted to determining the
director remuneration that the Board of Directors must approve by implementing the Company’s remuneration policy, and preparing the information to be included
in the annual public documentation. It will be convened by the chairman, who must call the meeting at the behest of the chairman of the Board of Directors or of
any member of the Committee itself, 4. The Committee shall appoint a chairman from among its members who must be an independent director, In the absence
of the chairman, the oldest independent director shall chair the meeting. The secretary of the Board of Directors, and in his or her absence the deputy secretary of
the Board of Directors, will act as secretary. Minutes shall be taken of the resolutions adopted at each meeting, which shall be reported to the Board in plenary
session. 5. Any member of the management team or of the Company's personnel who is required to do so shall be obliged to attend the meetings of the
Committee and to cooperate with it and provide it with the infermation available to that member. The Committee may alse request the auditor's attendance at the
meetings. 6. To batter discharge its functions, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee may seek the advice of external professionals, to which end the
provisions of Article 26 of these Regulations shall apply”™.

MAIN ACTIONS IN 2022:

- Reporting favourably on the ratification and appointment of proprietary directors to the Board of Directors, understanding that they meet the profile and skills
required to discharge their office, evaluating and reporting favourably on their suitability.

72/ 8]l

Obrascon Huarte Lain, S.A. and subsidiaries - 2022 Consolidated Management Report

Message from
the Chairman

We are Our We are About Appendices Non-financial
OHLA strategy sustainable this report statement (NFS)

ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT OF LISTED
PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANIES

- Submitting a proposal to the Board of Directors on the appointment of an independent director and reported favourable on the director's suitability to the
General Shareholders' Meeting.

- Reviewing the factors for distributing the maximum annual remuneration approved by the General Meeting for external directors, and reporting
favourably on a new distribution scheme for 2022 and subsequent periods.

- Reporting favourably to the Board of Directors on the proposed amendment of the Director Remuneration Policy, which was subsequently

approved at the Annual General Meeting held on 2 June 2022.

- Analysing and reporting to the Board of Directors the proposal for the Chief Executive Officer’s variable remuneration, assessing, where applicable,
achievement of objectives and criteria.

= Reporting favourably to the Board of Directors about the 2020 Annual Remuneration on Director Remuneration Report, verifying that the current
Remuneraticn Policy was applied correctly.

- Analysing and reporting to the Board of Directors on the variable remuneration accrued and the proposed remuneration scheme of OHLA Group sanior
executives.

- Analysing the degree of compliance with global reparting initiative (GRI) sustainability standards and approved measures to enhance and standardise how
this infermation is monitored and reported in all countries where the Group has operations, and reported favourable on the non-financial information to the
Board of Directors for its approval and autharisation for Issue of the Group's consolidated management report.

- Reporting favourably on the proposed amendments to the Board Regulations.

- Performing the Committee’s annual self-assessment.

- Approving the Committee’s amnual activity report.

[E.3 INDICATE THE MAIN RISKS THAT MAY AFFECT THE ACHIEVEMENT OF BUSINESS OBIECTIVES.
The main risks that could affect the achievement of OHLA's objectives are as follows:

« Financial risks: These are risks associated mainly with the Group's ability to raise the necessary financing when required and at a reasonable cost, and to
maximise its available financial resources. The most important are interest rate, exchange rate, credit and liquidity risks. It also includes risks related to
obligations assumed with noteholders and financial institutions.

« Personnel risk: Personnel risk relates to the organisation's ability to attract the right people and to detect, retain, develop and utilise internal talent in the
right way and at the right time. OHLA Group ks designing new retention and incentive packages and targeting digital talent to streamline processes and data
analytics,

» Price wolatility and resource scarcity risks: OHLA Group is exposed to the risk of shortages of human resources, subcontractors and suppliers, and certain
products in its fookprint markets. Moreover, increases in prices of certain cost components, such as raw materials (.. bitumen, steel), and energy prices affect
the costs of the main supplies of goods and services the Group requires to carry on its operations. There might also be shortages or logistics disruptions that
could cause delays in deliveries or the provision of goods and services.

Governments in many countries (e.g. Spain, the Czech Republic) have started adding price-review formulae into their public contracting laws (something that is
already commenplace in countries with high inflation), which help partially temper the situation. However, they cannot be applied to all contract costs or from
contract inception. This means particular care must be taken with contingent items included in projects and cost estimates for long-term projects.

Nevertheless, these risks, which materialised globally in 2021 and 2022, can possibly continue or heighten in the current geopolitical landscape and because of
expansionary public works policies in certain geographies.

» Project risk: Project risk management aims to ensure fulfilment of project obligations regarding scope, deadlines, margin and safety, and, in general, all
contractual obligations. Therefore, events or situations that could jeopardise projects are Identifying before they occur and assessed appropriately, from
identifying of the opportunity and the tendering stage, so that mitigation measures can be implemented early.

« Geopolitical and market risks: Political unrest or changes in the legal and regulatory environment in countries where OHLA operates can hawve significant impacts
on the Company's ability to achleve its business objectives. Therefore, OHLA Group monitors country risk closely in its home markets as well as areas into which
it might expand.

Nevertheless, the current geopolitical landscape gives rise to myriad uncertainties with global impact, not to mention situations that may already be occurring

in geographies where OHLA operates. The likely global trend towards a new division into opposing blocs points to highly volatile interest and exchange rates,
rampant inflation and potential global supply chain disruptions, along with increasing unrest and social polarisation. All this can result in a shortage, or

increase in the price, of certain materials (affecting expected returns and the ability to meet delivery deadlines) and investor appetite in certain geographies.

= Image and reputational risk: OHLA has an unwavering commitment to abiding by the law and complying with the leading standards in codes of conduct, which
has led to considerable and meaningful improvement in its image and reputation. The objective is to minimise the possibility of inappropriate actions by
employees and properly manage the risk that lax management, a smear campaign or manipulation of information by the media, lobbyists, farmer employees or
other stakeholders will hurt the Group's Image Irrespective of whether the allegations are consistent with any adolng by the org,

« Systems and cybersecurity risk: Market and business trends, with continuous and rapid changes, require systems that enable the Group to obtain the
information it needs and be able to analyse it quickly and adapt accordingly. This, in turn, requires working with agile methodelogies that minimise the time
needed to adapt systems or implement new functionalities.
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Meanwhile, OHLA, like any other company, is exposed to the widespread increase in the risk of cybercrimes and potential misuse of sensitive data, which would
comprise the security and the operations of the Company’s assets and the ordinary course of business, and cause leaks of sensitive information.

« Litigation and arbitration risk: One current industry trend is the increase in litigation. Therefore, there is a risk that more lawsuits and arbitration proceedings will
arise, along with the associated costs, and that the outcome due to disputes with customers or suppliers will go against OHLA's interests. Therefore, OHLA is still
committed to reinforcing its contract management prowess.

« Risk of measurement of assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position: understood as the risk of a decrease in the value of assets or an increase in
the value of liabilities.

Other risks that might affect the achievement of the Company's chjectives are as follows:

* Risk of climate change and natural disasters: It is fair to say that there are two types of climate change risks that impact the achievement of OHLA's objectives:
- Physical risks, which are those arising from the increasing severity and frequency of extreme weather events or from a gradual and long-term change in the
Earth's climate, These risks can affect businesses directly through damage to assets or infrastructure, or indirectly by disrupting their operations or making

their activities no longer viable.

= Transition risks, meaning those risks associated with the transition to a low-carbon economy in response to dimate change, arising from changes in legislation,
the market, or consumers, among others, to mitigate and address the requirements of climate change.

E.5 INDICATE WHICH RISKS HAVE MATERIALISED DURING THE YEAR.

The main risks in 2022 were:

1. Liquidity risk.

In June 2021, the Group underwent a major finandial structuring, the key milestones of which were:

i. The capital reduction in Obrascon Huarte Lain, S.A. through the reduction of the par value of the shares to EUR 0.25 per share, for a total amount of EUR
100,292 thousand.

ii. The Investment Commitments and Cash Capital Increases, which entailed the issuance of 304,576,294 new shares with a cash value of EUR 144,584
thousand.

fii. Amendments to the terms and conditions of the Notes, which resulted in the cancellation of the 2022 and 2023 Notes of Obrascon Huarte Lain, S.A. At the
same time, via OHL Operaciones 5.A.U., a subsidiary of Obrascdn Huarte Lain 5.A., it issued new Notes for a nominal amount of EUR 487,267 thousand, with
50% maturing on 31 March 2025 and the remaining 50% on 31 March 2026.

This considerably changed the Group's liquidity, which in addition was further strengthened by:

* Disposals of several subsidiaries in 2021 (Old war Office Project; new Hospital de Toledo, 5.A. and Mantohledo 5.A.U.; and Sociedad Concesionaria Aguas de
Navarra , S.A. and its operator), with part of the sales price received up front and the remainder collected in 2022 under the terms of the purchase and sale
agreements.

«» Renewal of the guarantee facilities of the Multiproduct Syndicated Facilities Agreement {MSF) and a CESCE guarantee facility, whose maturity was

extended in 2022 to 30 June 2023.

* Amounts received from Cercanias Mdstoles Navalcarnero, S.A. in 2021 and January 2022 after settlement of payments by the Madrid regional government for
different reasons related to the main construction projects, which went primarily to repay borrowings (see Note 4.2 of the consolidated financial statements and
Note 9.7 of the separate financial statements).

As a result, the Group's liquidity position as at 31 December 2022, comprising cash and cash equivalents and current financial assets, stood at EUR 701,687
thousand (2021: EUR 842,236 thousand), broken down as follows:

- Cash and cash equivalents of EUR 469,311 thousand {2021: EUR 507,455 thousand), which included EUR 185,796 thousand related to the Group's interests in
temporary business associations or joint ventures (UTES) (2021: EUR 147,543 thousand). There is also restricted cash amounting to EUR 2,934 thousand related
to other guarantees (2021: EUR 7,990 thousand).

- Current financial assets of EUR 232,376 thousand (2021: EUR 334,781 thousand), which include restricted assets pledged as security for EUR 176,237
thousand, the main item of which is a deposit for EUR 140,000 thousand as collateral for the MSF (2021: EUR 140,000 thousand) and EUR 43,885 thousand of
performance bonds for certain projects being carried out in the US (2021: EUR 50,830 thousand).

The Group also has drawable credit lines and discount fadlliies amounting to EUR 41,245 thousand (2021: EUR 27,051 thousand), featuring the Judlau
Contracting , Inc credit line with a limit of EUR 84,380 thousand and a sub-limit of EUR 42,190 thousand guarantees signed on 28 June 2022.

74/ 8l —

Obrascon Huarte Lain, S.A. and subsidiaries - 2022 Consolidated Management Report

Message from
the Chairman

We are Our We are About Appendices Non-financial
OHLA strategy sustainable this report statement (NFS)

ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT OF LISTED
PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANIES

©On 8 March 2022, ratings agency Moody's upgraded OHLA's corporate family rating (CFR) to B3, outlook positive, from Caal, and the notes issued by OHL
Operaciones , 5.A.U. from Caa2 to B3. This illustrates the improvement described above.

However, even with the Company’s improved solvency, it has yet to recover the working capital financing instruments needed to run the business property.

Against this backdrop, the Group's directors are menitoring the liquidity position, focusing especially on cash flow generation from the businesses and
improvement of working capital, They estimate that profitability levels can be recovered and that liquidity can increase,

The 2023 business plan includes aspects that could give rise to uncertainties regarding its execution and, therefore, result in deviations (e.g. lower-than-expected
order intake, unexpected working capital shortfalls, large amount of restricted cash). The main ane is the impact of the ongaing conflict in Europe, which could
jecpardise the fledgling recovery by the global economy, affected by high inflation and burgecning commadity prices, as well as cocasional liquidity stress due to
the seasonality of the business, which could have 2 serious impact on OHLA Group's forecasts for 2023,

Specifically, to mitigate the liquidity stress of the business, Group management is working with banks to secure the release of part of its restricted cash and/or
abtain temporary financing, so that it will have sufficient coverage to ensure the Group's liquidity. On this front, the Parent’s directors are confident that it will
avercome the liquidity pressures and continue executing the business plan, enabling the Group to continue its operations and settle its obligations,
strengthening both its equity and financial position.

2. Risk of measurement of assets and liabllities In the statement of financial position.

The Group held an ownership interest of 50.0% in the Canalejas project at 31 December 2022, with a carrying amount of EUR 127,596 thousand. It also held a
receivable for the subordinated debt of EUR 54,234 thousand recognised as a non-financial asset under other loans.

In 2022, it recognised a write-down to the value of the investment of EUR 34,485 thousand based on an estimate of cash the flow expected to be received in
accordance with the project's economic model considering the agreements entered into with the other shareholder.

The model's assumptions were updated taking into account the Covid-19 impact due to mobility restrictions, mestly in Asia; the new macroeconomic scenario of
high inflation rates; hikes in interest rates; and the negative trend of the dire Russia-Ukraine war and its impact on commodity price inflation and, more
importantly, energy price Inflation.

In determining the value in use of the Group's interest in the Canalejas Project, a discounted cash the flow model was used for the various uses of the asset
{mainly hotel and shopping centre), with the complex set to reach the growth and stabilisation stage in 2025 for the hotel and car park and 2026 for the
shopping centre, and then obtaining a residual value based on the capitalisation of rents,

As for the shopping centre, there were delays in marketing in the first floor and in opening of some premises. Occupancy of gross leasable area (GLA) is expected
to reach maximum levels in the first half of 2024, considering structural vacancies, with rents measured in €/'m2/month in line with prime areas in Madrid where
the asset is located. Nominal cash the flow were discounted at a rate of 7%, in line with the levels required by equity and debt creditors.

The higher investments and costs incurred, coupled with the project's lower profitability due mostly to the delay in the marketing of the shopping centre, made it
necessary to recognise this write-down.

Nevertheless, the mid-term outlook is for a decrease in the uncertainties surrounding the post-pandamic years, International luxury hotel assets in Madrid (Four
Seasons, Mandarin Ritz, Santo Maurg, The Madrid Edition) are setting up along the Gran Via-Canalejas-Alcala axis. Joining them in 2023 are hotels such as JW

Marrict, Zorrilla 19, Nobu Madrid, and Brach. This competition should revitalise this axis and cement its Madrid's status as a luxury tourist destination and cne the
world’s leading capital cities for international luxury retail.

F.1.2 B) CODE OF CONDUCT, THE BODY APPROVING THIS, DEGREE OF DISSEMINATION AND INSTRUCTION, PRINCIPLES AND VALUES COVERED (STATING
WHETHER THERE IS SPECIFIC MENTION OF RECORD KEEPING AND PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION), BODY CHARGED WITH ANALYSING

BREACHES AND PROPOSING CORRECTIVE ACTIONS AND SANCTIONS.

CODE OF CONDUCT, APPROVING BODY AND DATE OF UPDATE:

OHLA Group has a Code of Ethics approved by the Board of Directors that expressly states its values, principles and conduct guidelines that must guide the professional
behaviour of everyone in the Group.

The Code applies to all members of the Board of Directors, executive staff and all Group employees.

It will remain in force until the Board of Directors dedides not to approve its update, review or repeal.
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Any alleged breach of the Code shall be investigated and could result in legal or disciplinary proceedings. » Promoting a clear organisational culture, shared by all Group employees at all levels, that helps avoid conduct that could give rise to any criminal liability
or anti-competitive sanctions on the Company, its executives and directors.
ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY, CRIME PREVENTION POLICY AND ANTITRUST COMPLIANCE POLICY:
» Overseeing the correct application of the Crime Prevention and Antitrust compliance programme.
OHLA Group has a compliance system designed to prevent, detect and effectively combat crimes within the organisation. This system undergoes constant
updating so it is adapted to organisational and legislative changes. Since 2019, it has been subject to annual external audits of its 150 37001 Anti-corruption » Establishing, in an objective and demonstrable manner, control and oversight measures aimed at avoiding this conduct by employees, at all levels, and proposing
Management System and UNE 19601 Criminal Compliance Management System certifications, In 2022, the Group's compliance system obtained both the disciplinary measures that would be taken if this conduct were to take place.
certifications by a new certification body.
» Ensuring that there is a Set of Rules, Policies and Regulations that reascnably guarantee the refiability of the financial information, and compliance with
As a show of the commitment enshrined in the Code of Ethics to combat corruption and bribery anywhere in the world, the Group has an Anti-corruption Policy the laws, regulations and policies that apply to the Group.
that applies to all OHLA pecple and articulates its zero tolerance stance on corruption in any form.
« Informing, periodically, the Secretary of the Board and the Audit Committee on execution of the Annual Action Plan with regard to its management and the
OHLA Group also has an Antitrust programme designed in accordance with the requirements of the guidelines issued by the Spanish National Markets and actions carried out in the areas of Crime Prevention and Antitrust.
Competition Commission (Comision Nacional de los Mercados y la Competencia or CNMC), the core principle of which is the Antitrust Compliance Policy. This
policy reinforces OHLA's firm commitment to ensuring free competition in the marketplace and that all its personnel abide by constitutional principles, laws and » Establishing measures to prevent criminal acts in the following areas:
other regulations of competition law.
= Anti-corruption: crimes of private corruption, bribery and corruption in international trade transactions.
PRINCIPLE ON INFORMATION TRANSPARENCY AND ACCURACY: - Antitrust: any act that infringes on free market competition, by disseminating the values and principles of the Compliance Policy and Guidelines regarding
competition and, therefore, the Antitrust Compliance Programme.
The Code of Ethics is the main channel for developing the Group’s corporate values: - Cybercrimes: hacking crimes, disclosure of trade secrets and similar offences.
- Control over the p ion of financial investor fraud crimes.
- Professional ethics, integrity, honesty, loyalty, effectiveness and responsibility vis-a-vis our stakeholders, in all actions of the Group, while strictly abiding by - Market abuse and share price manipulation,
the law. - Non-compliance with Spain’s Personal Data Protection Law (Ley Orgdnica de Proteccién de Datos or "LOPD™) and the privacy protection regulations.
- Will to succeed and continuous improvement in professional performance, while striving at all times for excellence. - Anti-mioney laundering.
- Transparency in the dissemination of information, which must be adequate, accurate, verifiable and complete. = Fraud to obtain government grants and aid.
- Creation of value with a permanent quest for sustainable profitability and growth, - Offences against natural resources and the environment.
- Constant promotion of committed quality, innovation, safety and respect for the environment. - Workplace harassment.
Based on the core principle of behaviour required of all the Graup's personnel of respect for the law, a key guideline of conduct in the relationship with the « Enforcing the Code of Ethics and proposing modifications to adapt to amer to the legal prevailing at any given time, ensuring the
market Is information transparency and accuracy. dissemination and awareness of the Code within the Group.
In this vein, the Code of Ethics specifies that: "OHLA undertakes to transmit complete and truthful information on Group companies that allows shareholders, * Proposing the approval of the internal regulations implementing the Code of Ethics, which include a disciplinary system for breaches.
analysts and cther stakeholders to reach an objective opinion on the Group. Similarly, OHLA undertakes to cooperate with the supervisory or inspection bodies or
entities in any way it may be required to facilitate administrative oversight. The Group's employees shall ensure that all financially significant transactions carried
out on the Company's behalf are included clearly and accurately in the appropriate accounting records, so as to present falrly the transactions carrled out. = Processing complaints received via the Ethics Channel.
Accounting principles and standards must be followed strictly, preparing complete and accurate financial reports. Suitable intemal procedures and controls must
be implemented to ensure that financial and accounting reporting complies with the law, regulations and the requirements arising from the Group's listing on the « Promoting and overseeing activities to raise awareness about the Code of Ethics and understanding the Group's crime prevention and antitrust control system.
stock markets. Any conduct aimed at avoiding tax obligations or obtaining profit at the expense of the tax authorities, the social security system or similar bodies
s expressly forbidden.” COMMUNICATION, DISTRIBUTION AND TRAINING PLAN ON THE CODE OF ETHICS, THE ANTI-CORRUPTIOM POLICY, THE CRIME PREVENTION POLICY AND THE
ANTITRUST COMPLIANCE POLICY:
AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE:
Everyone at OHLA Group must know and understand the content of the Code of Ethics. To promate knowledge of the Code, the Group carries out a variety of
Article 23 f.10) of Obrascén Huarte Lain, S.A.'s Bylaws include as a responsibility of the Audit and Compliance Committee: “Examine compliance with the Internal Rules communication, training and dissemination Initiatives.
of Conduct in Securities Markets, the Regulations of the Board of Directors, the Regulations of the General Shareholders’ Meeting, the Code of Ethics of OHLA Group
and, in general, the Company’s rules of governance, and make the required proposals for improving them.” The main initiatives include:
The Group’s Code of Ethics itself states that "any doubt, criticism or suggestion aimed at improvernent must be made known to the Audit and Compliance - Making the Code of Ethics available on the corparate Intranet and OHLA Group's website (path: https://www.ohla-group.com/enfethics-and- integrity-
Committee, which is the competent body for ensuring compliance with the Code and to promote both its dissemination and specific training for its correct 2/ethics-and-integrity-policies/) in Spanish and English.
application™, - Including an additional clause in work contracts requiring knowledge of, understanding and compliance with the Code of Ethics, the Anti-corruption Policy, the
Crime Prevention Policy and the Antitrust Compliance Policy.
CORPORATE COMPLIANMCE DEPARTMENT: - Designing specific training and communication actions for all Group personnel.
- Disclosing the Code to relevant third parties: commercial agreements between OHLA Group and third parties include clauses mentioning the existence of OHLA
Given its importance, it should be noted that the Company has had a Corporate Compliance Department since 2013, created pursuant to an agreement by Group's Code of Ethics, Anti-Corruption Palicy, Crime Prevention Policy and Antitrust Compliance Policy and the obligation to comply with them in the provision
the Board of Directors of Obrascon Huarte Lain, S.A. based on a recommendation by the Audit and Compliance Committee. This department falls under of services to OHLA Group.
the Secretary of the Board of Directors and reports to the Audit and Compliance Committee.
Training on the Code of Ethics, Anti-Corruption Policy, Crime Prevention Policy and Antitrust Compliance Policy is compulsory. Therefore, specific training was provided
The main functions of this department, according to its Basic Functions Handbook, are as follows: in 2022 through the OHLA School on:
= Identifying legal risks, especially those that arise from the criminal liability of legal persons or entail reputational risks or infringe on free market competition. » Code of Ethics and Anti-corruption Policy (CEAP): a total of 1,030 employees received training.
= Crime Prevention System (CPS): a total of 193 employees received training.
* Promoting implementation of the processes necessary to avoid legal breaches related to criminal or reputational, or antitrust risks, and minimising the cases « Antitrust: a total of 79 employees received training.
of criminal lability at the Company, thereby actively contributing to preventing, detecting and stopping criminal or anti-competitive behaviour.,
The Corporate Resources Department is responsible for distributing and raising awareness about the Code of Ethics, the Anti-Corruption Policy, the Crime
Prevention Policy and the Antitrust Compliance Policy, while the Greup's Internal Audit Department is tasked with oversight.
Following @ multi-year rotation plan, the Audit Committes receives a report from OHLA Group's Internal Audit Department on degree of dissemination and
training on the Code of Ethics, the Anti-corruption Policy, the Crime Prevention Policy and the Antitrust Compliance Policy.
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F.2. ASSESSMENT OF RISKS IN FINANCIAL REPORTING.

F.2.1. The main characteristics of the risk identification process, including risks of error and fraud, as regards:

Whether the process exists and is documented,

Whether the process covers all the objectives of financial reporting, (existence and occurrence; completeness; valuation; presentation; disclosure and comparability; and
rights and obligations), whether it is updated and if 50 haw often.

The existence of a process for identifying the scope of consolidation, taking Into account, among other factors, the possible existence of complex corporate structures or
spedial purpose vehicles.

Whether the process takes into account the effects of other types of risk (operational, technological, financial, legal, reputational, environmental, etc.) to the

extent that they affect the financial statements.

The governing body within the company that supervises the process,

The strategic objectives regarding risk management and control are geared towards:

» Delivering the Group's strategic and operating objectives.

« Protecting the Group's reputation, safeguarding its legal certainty and ensuring its sustainability.
« Protecting the security of shareholders’ equity.

« Mitigating the occurrence of irregularities in relation to the Code of Ethics and fraud in general.
* Protecting the of other stakeholders in the ion's performance.

» Enhancing OHLA Group's level of innovation, competitiveness and trust.

To achieve these objectives, the following guiding principles for contrelling and managing risks and opportunities are in place:
» Act in accordance with the law at all times, and with the values and standards set out in the Code of Ethics and the Group's regulatory framework.

= Act in accordance with the level of the risk tolerance defined by the Group.

« Embed risk and opportunity control and management into the Group’s business processes and its strategic and operational decision-making.

* Manage the information generated regarding risks in a manner that is transparent, proportionate and appropriate, and communicate this information on a timely
basis.

» Establish and maintain a risk-aware culture.
= Incorporate risk control and management best practices and recommendations.

Risk management is the responsibility of all OHLA Group employees. Each employee must understand the risks relating to their area of responsibility and manage
them within the action framework defined in the Risk Control and Management Policy. They must also know the established tolerance limits.

Each business or functional unit is responsible for controlling and managing the risks that affect the performance of its respective operations and for reporting
any such risks as soon as they are detected or proven.

Documentation of the processes that may materially affect financial reporting is subject to ongoing monitoring and improvement.
An important part of this monitoring and imp nent process ks updating the scope of the Internal Control cver Financial Reporting System (ICFR system) to

determine, within the Group, the relevant companies, and also to identify the significant operating or support processes for such companies and their associated
risks. All of this is based on the materiality and risk factors inherent to each division.

This scope Is determined based on qualitative and quantitative materiality criteria to identify relevant areas and critical processes with a significant impact on
financial reporting, relevant items of the financial statements and of financial information in general, and the most significant transactions, as well as material
companies, considering the existing degree of centralisation/decentralisation.

Basad on the scope determined at any given time and on the processes involved in generating financial information, risks that may affect the information are
identified, covering all financial reporting objectives {existence and occurrence; completeness; valuation; rights and obligations; and submission and reporting) and
taking into account the various risk categories described previously to the extent that they affect financial reporting.

The scope of the ICFR system is reviewed at least annually before the financial reporting schedule of subsidiaries is determined, and whenever a new
company with a significant impact is included or excluded from the Group's scope of consolidation. In this regard, the Group has a scope of consolidation
identification process, whereby the Group's Corporate Economic and Administrative Division updates the scope considering notifications of changes received
based on the defined procedure. In 2022, three new companies were included within the scope of the ICFR system.

The Group’s General Economic and Financial Departrment is responsible for maintaining the scope and financial information risk identification process, and is also
charged with informing external and internal audit of any changes in the scope.

F.5.1. THE ACTIVITIES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE IN OVERSEEING ICFR AS WELL AS WHETHER THERE IS AN INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION ONE OF THE

RESPONSIBILITIES OF WHICH 15 TO PROVIDE SUPPORT TO THE COMMITTEE IN ITS TASK OF SUPERVISING THE INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM, INCLUDING,
ICFR. ADDITIONALLY, DESCRIBE THE SCOPE OF ICFR ASSESSMENT MADE
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DURING THE YEAR AND THE PROCEDURE THROUGH WHICH THE PERSCON RESPONSIBLE PREPARES THE ASSESSMENT REPORTS ON ITS RESULTS,
WHETHER THE COMPANY HAS AN ACTION PLAN DESCRIBING POSSIBLE CORRECTIVE MEASURES, AND WHETHER ITS IMPACT ON FINANCIAL
REPORTING 1S CONSIDERED.

INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT:

The Board of Directors instigated the creation of the Group's Internal Audit Department. The aim was to have an independent and objective assurance, internal
control and consultation service that supported the organisation in effectively discharging its responsibilities, executing its strategy and achieving its objectives.

of Directors through its Audit and Compliance Committee.

The Internal Audit Department reports to the Audit and Compliance Committee and its basic functions, as outlined in the Internal Audit Charter, are as follows:
« Reviewing the accuracy, reliability, quality and completeness of the records and financial, operational and sustainability reporting. This entailed checking the
reliability and effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems and related processes, and, in particular, reviewing the IFRC system and the
adequacy of the controls in place.

the Group's resources.

= Overseeing that risk management is aligned with OHLA Group's policies and Code of Ethics.

« Verifying the existence and status of assets and checking that the measures to protect their integrity are suitable.

« Verifying that rules, procedures and processes are in place to govern the main activities appropriately and allow for the correct measurement of their
economy and efficiency.

« Assessing the degree of compliance with the rules, instructions and procedures established within the Group. This includes verifying compliance with relevant
legislation and, specifically, the correct operation of compliance systems in place within the organisation, .g. the crime prevention system, the anti-corruption
system and the antitrust programme.

» Proposing the implementation, amendments, reviews or adaptations of processes and internal regulations that are necessary to improve operations.

» Reviewing OHLA Group's newly issued internal regulations or their amendments before their definitive approval.

= Maintaining coordinated relationships with the work performed by the external auditor as a complementary, and not a subsidiary or substitute, activity,

« Issuing recommendations to help correct anomalies or shortcomings detected in the course of the work and monitoring their implementation.

« Preparing and presenting the proposed Annual Internal Audit Plan and the internal audit activity report to the Audit and Compliance Committee.

* Performing any specific task entrusted to it by the Audit Committee.

= Keeping an up-to-date inventory of fraud risks and the associated controls and testing the effectiveness of those controls on a rotating annual review

basis,

= Conducting and coordinating Investigations into potential irregularities reported through the Ethics Channel or uncovered during audits.

« Attending as a guest to various internal Group committees” meetings to learn about the activities performed, monitaring recommendations and

contributing value.

All these functions are discharged exclusively by the members of the Internal Audit Department and not combined with other duties.

RISK AND INTERNAL CONTROL DEPARTMENT:

main functions are as follows:

* Coordinating, guiding and supporting the strategic, operational, organisational and regulatory actions related to risk management across the entire Group.

« Assisting the Board of Directors and defining the Group's risk appetite in its various categories and articulate it in the appropriate rules and

procedures,

« Laying down the methodologies and tools for preparing the Group's annual risk map and, through its preparation and updating, leading the process for
identifying and assessing the risks to which OHLA is exposed in carrying out its operations.

« Establishing the procedures, methodologies and tools to enable the first line to act at amy given time in accordance with the level of risk appetite determined,
offering the necessary support and overseeing their operation. This implies:

- Drawing up, implementing and updating, in conjunction with the various areas, the risk management procedures considered appropriate within the Group for
the operational management of its risks based on the best market standards.

- Performing ad hoc oversight of the analyses carried out by the various areas of the level of risk exposure associated with transactions identified as significant
exception, then preparing the appropriate reports on OHLA's risk position to be reported to the Chief Executive Officer, the Audit and Compliance Committes
and/for the Board of Directors of OHLA.

- Preparing action proposals that reduce the level of, or exposure to, certain types of risks and minimise thelr impact.

- Providing the necessary tools and methodologies for controlling and managing project and operational risks, and carrying out training and awareness
initiatives within the Group about risk management policies.

- Attending guarantee, procurement and investment committee meetings to ensure that the risk tolerance levels approved by the Group's Board of

Directors are not breached.
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- Proposing, disseminating, distributing and keeping up to date OHLA Group's red lines".

- Making available the necessary tools and methodology for conducting third-party due diligence (TPDD) to assess the risks the Group facing in its
relationships with third parties (e.g. customers, partners and suppliers/subcontractors).

- Classifying regularly the country risk used by the Group as a reference for camrying cut its operations and preparing related reports.

« Preparing, documenting and maintaining the Internal Control System, compliance with which by OHLA's various business areas ensures mitigation of the risks
inherent to operating and financial and non-financial reporting processes, and ensuring its continugus improvement.

« Periodically reporting to the Secretary of the Beard and the Audit and Compliance Committee on execution of the Annual Action Plan with regard to its
management and on the main risks identified and the monitoring of the mitigation measures put in place.

ACTIVITIES OF THE AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE IN 2022:

The Audit and Compliance Committee's main function is to serve as support to the Board of Directors in overseeing and supervising the functioning of the
Group. Its main duties are to: (i) Oversee, periodically, the financial information preparation and presentation process; (li) Oversee the effectiveness of internal
control, internal audit services and the risk management systems; and (jii) Guarantee the external auditor's independence and ascertain its opinion on the
significant weaknesses of the internal control system,

The Audit and Compliance Committee reviews all public financial information submitted by the Group to the CNMV before its approval by the Board of Directors
and after publication and gathers all the explanations it deems fit from the Group's General Economic and Financial Department or from any other responsible
party.

At its meetings, it reviews all the reports issued by the Internal Audit Department on the Group's subsidiaries regarding projects executed directly or with non-
controlling interests, on investigations of potential irregularities and fraud, and on compliance with internal regulations and any other issue covered by the
Annual Internal Auwdit Plan or requested by the Committee. It also receives and reviews reports issued by the Risk and Intemnal Control Department on the main
weaknesses identified and the proposed recommendations.

The content of the Internal Audit Department’s Annual Plan, which is approved annually by the Audit and Compliance Committee, is defined based on OHLA Group's
general and specific objectives and the risks that may threaten achievement of those objectives, prioritising matters that require particular attention in each
functional area. Therefore, it includes a selection from each area of processes or activities that:

= Are a priority in the Group's gy and risk g t

» Are associated with the possible existence of contingendcies or serious. breaches for the Group.
* Have previously given rise to a particular problem or indicate a potential anomaly.

« Form part of significant changes in the year or are newly implemented.

» Have not been audited within a reasonable period of time.

» Are of interest to the Group's Board of Directors or management.

In planning its activities, Internal Audit pays special attention to the Risk Map, considering the possible impact of those risks on the processes.
In 2022, audits were performed In the various divisions covering the following processes:

= Construction work and industrial projects and services
« Obtainment of indicators and alerts on specific parameters
» On-site purchases

» Claims and litigation with customers and suppliers.

» Procedures and policies in Pacadar

» Pacadar's statement of financial position

» Achievements of variable remuneration targets

» Customer service arrangements

= Internal Control over Financial Reporting (ICFR) system
» Anti-corruption Management System

» Antitrust System

» Crime Prevention System

» Anti-Money Laundering System

* Use of DBES in the US

» Review of internal rules and regulations

Althaugh organisation-wide work was also performed in several additional geographical areas, the review of construction/sarvices/ projects was performed in
the following countries: USA, Czech Republic, Chile, Spain, Colombla, Peru and Sweden.

As for oversight the ICFR system In accordance with the multi-year rotation plan, in 2022 the Implementation and effectiveness of controls was audited
through the review of a sample of controls at companies representing the majority of the Group’s revenue. Mo deficiencies were detected as a result of the
work by Internal Audit. Internal Audit, which has a specialised fraud prevention and investigation unit, also performed actions in this area on an ongoing basis
throughout the year.

In 2022, work continued to verify compliance with human rights matters and support for the significant environmental parameters used by the Group in
sustainability-refated reports.
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For all the weaknesses described in the reports prepared, the appropriate corrective measures were taken. Significant recommendations are regularly monitored at
Management Committee meetings.

The actions taken are included in the Annual Internal Audit Report submitted to the Audit and Compliance Committee.

Internal Audit also oversees the implementation of any new internal policy or regulation, as well as any amendment to existing regulations or policies, ensuring
consistency and compliance with pelicies established by management and the Board of Directors,

The Audit and Compliance Committee promotes improvement of the risk management system, which is one of OHLA's top pricrities. Therefore, in 2022, the
Corporate Intermal Risk and Control Department made inroads in several lines of action, including:

« Reviewing and drafting standards and procedures to reinforce control over the life cyde of projects, by standardising their management, and of risks in the
Company's operating process, by unifying criteria, approaches and tools among all areas involved.

* Laying the foundations for easier and more effective monitoring of ongoing projects.

* Preparing the centralised information repository environment to enhance business intelligence and allow adequate data analytics to identify underlying risks
and detect trends that could result in an early waming system to enhance control and management of the Group's risks.

» Updating the risk map.

» Permanently updating the country risk madel.

In 2023, OHLA will continue to assess the risks and opportunities it faces, proactively taking the necessary steps to mitigate their impact and/or probability of

occurrence and imp an early ing system to enhance the control and management of the Group's risks. It will be committed to data analytics to
assist the Company’s strategic decision-making based on historical data and future forecasts.

ADHERENCE TO THE CODE OF GOOD TAX PRACTICES.
The Company hereby states that by resolution of the Board of Directors on 12 May 2015, OHL Group adopted the Spanish Code of Good Tax Practices with the
Spanish Ministry of Economy and Finance, and endarses thase principles.

This Annual Corporate Govermnance Report was approved by the Board of Directors of the company in its meeting held
on;

28/03/2022

Indicate whether any director voted against or abstained from approving this report.

[] Yes
v No
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Ernst & Young, S.L

Calle de Raimundo Fernandez Villaverde, 65
28003 Madrid ey.com
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AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE "INFORMATION RELATING TO THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING (ICFR)"

To the directors of Obrascén Huarte Lain, S.A.

At the request of the Board of Directors of Obrascon Huarte Lain, S.A. (the "Entity") and in accordance
with our proposal dated 23 January 2023, we have applied certain procedures to the accompanying
“ICFR-related information” of Obrascén Huarte Lain, S.A. for 2022, which summarises the Entity’s
internal control procedures in respect of its annual financial reporting.

The Directors are responsible for adopting the appropriate measures in order to reasonably guarantee
the implementation, maintenance and supervision of an adequate internal control system, and for
making improvements to that system, and preparing and establishing the content of the
accompanying ICFR-related information.

It should be noted that irrespective of the quality of the design and effectiveness of the internal
control system adopted by the Entity in relation to its annual financial reporting, it can only provide
reasonable, rather than absolute assurance with respect to the objectives pursued, due to the
inherent limitations to any internal control system.

In the course of our financial statement audit work and in keeping with Spain's Technical Auditing
Standards, the sole purpose of our assessment of the Entity’s internal control system was to establish
the scope, nature, and timing of the Entity's financial statement audit procedures. Accordingly, our
internal contrel assessment, performed in connection with the financial statement audit, was not
sufficiently broad in scope to enable us to issue a specific opinion on the effectiveness of the internal
control over the regulated annual financial reporting.

For the purpose of issuing this report, we exclusively applied the specific procedures described below
and indicated in the Guidelines on the Auditors’ report relating to information on the Internal Control
over Financial Reporting in Listed Companies, published by the Spanish National Securities Market
Commission (CNMV) on its website, which establishes the work to be performed, the minimum scope
thereof and the content of this report. Given that the scope of the abovementioned procedures
performed was limited and substantially less than that of an audit or a review of the internal control
system, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness thereof, or its design or operating
effectiveness, in relation to the Entity’s annual financial reporting for 2022 described in the
accompanying ICFR-related information. As a result, had we applied additional procedures to those
established by the Guidelines mentioned above or had we performed an audit or a review of the
internal control over regulated annual financial reporting, other matters might have been come to our
attention that would have been reported to you.
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Furthermore, since this special engagement neither constitutes a financial statement audit nor is it
subject to prevailing audit regulations in Spain, we do not express an audit opinion in the terms
provided for in those regulations.

The procedures performed were as follows:

1.

Reading and understanding the ICFR-related information prepared by the Entity — disclosures
included in the Management Report — and assessing whether such information addresses all
the reporting requirements following the minimum content detailed in section F relating to
the description of the ICFR system in the Annual Corporate Governance Report template
established in CNMV Circular 5/2013 of 12 June 2013, and subsequent amendments, the most
recent of which is CNMV Circular 3/2021, of 28 September (the "CNMV Circulars").

Making inguiries of personnel responsible for preparing the information detailed in point 1
above to: (i) obtain an understanding of the process following in its preparation; (ii) obtain
information that allows us to assess whether the terminology used is adapted to the reference
framework definitions; and (iii) obtain information on whether the control procedures
described are in place and in use by the Entity.

Reviewing the explanatory documentation supporting the information detailed in point 1
above, including primarily documents directly made available to those responsible for
describing the ICFR system. This documentation includes reports prepared by the Internal
Audit Department, senior management, and other internal and external experts in their role
supporting the Audit and Compliance Committee.

Comparing the information detailed in point 1 above with our knowledge of the Entity’s ICFR
system obtained through the procedures applied during our audit of the annual financial
statements.

Reading the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors, the Audit and Compliance
Committee, and other Entity committees to evaluate the consistency between the ICFR system
matters addressed and the information detailed in point 1 above.

Obtaining a representation letter in connection with the work performed, duly signed by those
responsible for preparing and authorising for issue the information detailed in point 1 above.

Message from
the Chairman

We are Our We are About Appendices Non-financial
OHLA strategy sustainable this report statement (NFS)

EY

Building a better
working world

As a result of the procedures applied to the ICFR-related information, no inconsistencies or incidents
have come to our attention which might affect it.

This report was prepared exclusively within the framework of the requirements stipulated in article
540 of the consolidated text of the Spanish Corporate Enterprises Act (texto refundido la Ley de

Sociedades de Capital) and CNMVY Circulars on ICFR system description in Annual Corporate
Governance Reports.

ERNST & YOUNG, S.L.

(Signed on the original Spanish version)

José Enrique Quijada Casillas

27 April 2023

A meember firm of Emst & Young Global |
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ANNUAL REPORT CON DIRECTOR REMUNERATION
OF LISTED COMPANIES

ANMNUAL REPORT ON DIRECTOR REMUNERATION
OF LISTED COMPANIES

A. REMUNERATION POLICY OF THE COMPANY FOR THE CURRENT FINANCIAL YEAR

A.1.1 Explain the current director remuneration policy applicable to the year in progress. To
the extent that it is relevant, certain information may be included in relation to the
remuneration policy approved by the General Shareholders’' Meeting, provided that these

ISSUER IDENTIFICATICN DETAILS references are clear, specific and concrete.

. Such specific determinations for the current year as the board may have made in
Year end-date: 31, 2 | accordance with the contracts signed with the executive directors and with the
1= = remuneration policy approved by the General Shareholders’ Meeting must be described, as
regards directors' remuneration both in their capacity as such and for executive
‘ functions carried out.

TAX ID (CIF):

In any case, the following aspects must be reported, as a minimum:

Company name: a) Description of the procedures and company bodies involved in determining, approving
and applying the remuneration policy and its terms and conditions.
OBRASCON HUARTE LAIN, S.A.
) bh) Indicate and, where applicable, explain whether comparable companies have been taken
into account in order to establish the company's remuneration policy.
Registered office: : . . 3 i
L= c) Information on whether any external advisors took part in this process and, if so,
- their identity

W d) Procedures set forth in the current remuneration policy for directors in order to
apply temporary exceptions teo the policy, conditions under which those exceptions
can be used and components that may be subject to exceptions according to the
policy.

1@ establishment
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Based on the above, OHLA"s Remuneration Policy includes the principles and guidelines described above, which are
consistent with the Company’s corporate governance policy. Moreover, it complies with the Corporate Enterprises Act
to the extent that it is geared towards generating value for OHLA and aligning interests of shareholders with prudent
risk management and full respect for the good corporate governance r wendations ned

CONTINUES IN SECTION D OF THIS REPORT.

A.1.2 Relative importance of variable remuneration items vis-a-vis fixed remuneration
{remuneration mix) and the criteria and cbjectives taken into consideration in their
determination and to ensure an appropriate balance between the fixed and variable
components of the remuneration. In particular, indicate the actions taken by the company
in relation to the remuneration system to reduce exposure to excessive risks and to
align it with the long-term cbjectives, values and interests of the company, which will
include, as the case may be, mention of the measures taken to ensure that the long-term
results of the company are taken into account in the remuneration policy, the measures
adopted in relation to those categories of personnel whose professional activities have
a material impact on the risk profile of the company and measures in place to aveid
conflicts of interest.

Furthermore, indicate whether the company has established any period for the accrual or
vesting of certain variable remuneration items, in cash, shares or other financial
instruments, any deferral peried in the payment of amounts or delivery of accrued and
vested financial instruments, or whether any clause has been agreed reducing the
deferred remuneration not yet vested or obliging the director to return remuneration
received, when such remuneration has been based on figures that have since been clearly
shown to be inaccurate.

RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF VARIABLE REMUNERATION ITEMS VIS-A-VIS FIXED REMUNERATION (remuneration mix).

As provided for in the Remuneration Policy, the remuneration of External Directors (or Hon-executive Directors) does
not include any variable components. Therefore, only Executive Directors are eligible to participate in variable
remuneration schemes. This complies with Recommendation 57 of the Good Governance Code of Listed Companies ("GGCLC"™)
of the Spanish National Securities Market Commission (Comision Nacional del Mercado de Valores or "CHNMV"), as revised
in June 2020, which states that wvariable remuneration should be confined to executiwve directors.

Specifically, the Chief Executive Officer"s remuneration scheme has a wvariable component aimed at aligning
remuneration with OHLA's and its shareholders' cbjectives and encouraging performance in strategic terms.

The Company's aim is to design remuneration packages that are aligned with market trends so as to attract, motivate
and retain the best people, while linking remuneration to the Company's and the Group's results and targets.

In accordance with the Policy and the terms of his or her contract, the variable remuneration scheme of the Chief
Executive Officer may include three variable components: (i) annual variable remuneration, (ii) multi-year variable
remuneration, and (iii) extraordinary variable remuneration. This scheme has an appropriate and efficient balance
between fixed and varlable components based on responsibilitlies, dedicatlon and achlevement of strateglc targets.
However, the relative importance of the Chief Executive Officer's variable remuneration could, depending on the level
of achlevement of performance targets for the accrual of varlable remuneratlon, become relatively more important than
the fixed remuneration components.

The Chief Executive Cfficer's variable remuneration is linked to the achievement of a combination of specific
predetermined and guantifiable economic-financial, industrial and operaticnal targets of the Company, the related
division or business unit, which must be aligned with the interests of shareholders and the Company's strategic plan.
The Chief Executive Officer's individual performance may also be evaluated and a welghting assigned to other corporate
governance and corporate soclal resg ibilivy targets, which may be guantitative or gualitative.

Specifically, in determining the relative importance of variable components vis-a-vis fixed components [(“remuneration
mix”), the fellowing are taken into account:

xed cash remuneration for 2023 of EUR 1,200,000.

= Annual variable remuneration of EUR 1,200,000 for a level of achievement of 100% of the predetermined targets.
This amount may be increased to a maximam of 140% of the fixed remuneration for performance which ls exceptional and
above target. In this case, the maximum amount would be EUR 1,680,000,

According to the Remuneration Policy, OHLA's current Chief Executive Officer could earn the total remuneration shown
below. The possible cutcomes and assumptions are based on:

Chief Executive Officer

Fixed remuneration* EUR 1,200,000

Annual wariable remuneration 100% target: fixed remuneration

Maximum: 140% fixed remuneration

* Represzents the gross annual amount for 2023 (excluding potential increases in accordance with the Remuneration
Policyl . No fixed remuneration im kind is included for these purposes.
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Therefore, regarding the "Remuneration Mix", the Chief Executiwe Officer's annual "target™ wariable remuneration is
equal to half of his total annual remuneration (i.e. sum of annual fixed remuneration and short-term variable
remuneration, excluding amounts of remuneration in kind) and the "maximum annual® variable remuneration 58% of the Chief
Executive Officer's total annual remuneration.

The Chief Executive Officer may also receive multi-year variable remuneration, if approved by shareholders at the
General

Mesting. The related resolution at the Meeting must specify the maximum number of shares that the Chief Executive
Officer may receive for participation in that remuneration scheme. The scheme may include a deferral period for delivery
of the shares, 3o that the shares are received in instalmenta over time.

At the General Meeting held on 28 May 201%, shareholders approwved a multi=-year variable share-based remuneration plan
that included the possibility of granting the Chief Executive Officer wvariable remuneration linked to his minimum
contract term in the Company, and to the achievement of the targets set by the Board of Directors.

However, at its meeting held in November 2019, OHLA's Board of Directors agreed to suspend the multi-year variable
share-based remuneration plan. As at the date of preparation of this Report, the suspension was still in effect.
Therefore, as at the date of preparation of this report, the Chief Executive Officer did not participate in any multi-
year wariable remuneration system.

The Policy also states that the Chief Executiwe Officer may be eligible for extraordinary variable remuneration if, in
the opinion of the Board of Directors, he or she has played a decisiwve role in transacticns that are significant or
transformational for OHLA Group and the results of which have a major and positive impact on the Company and its
shareholders. According to the Remuneration Policy, it is up to the Board of Directors, based on a recommendation by the
HRC, to establish the terms and conditions of any such remuneraticn.

ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COMPANY IN RELATION TO THE REMUNERATION SYSTEM TO REDUCE EXPOSURE TO EXCESSIVE RISKS AND ALIGH IT
WITH THE LONG-TERM OBJECTIVES, VALUES AND INTERESTS OF THE COMPANY, ACCRUAL PERIOD AND DEFERRAL OF PAYMENT.

The Remuneration Policy's remuneration principles comply with the Corporate Enterprises Act and are aligned with the
principles and recommendations regarding director remuneration included in the GGCLC regarding the Company's size and
importance, economic situation, comparability, profitability and sustainability, and the avoidance of excessive risk-
taking and not rewarding poor performance.

In this respect, OHLA applies the following practices:

. Engage external advice where necessary.

. Review market trends pericdically.

. Establish clawback arrangements for variable remuneration.

. Link payment of a significant pertion of remuneration to the Company's economic-financial performance.

Measures to reduce exposure to excessive risk-taking and reinforce alignment with OHLA's long-term strategy,
interests, cbjectives and walues, and to provide sustainability to the Company's results are as follows:
. The NCR regularly reviews the Remuneraticn Pollicy, overseeing its compliance.

. The annual wariable remuneration is paid after the authorisation for issue of the relevant financial statements
and after having determined the lewvel of achievement of financial targets. In this respect, the portion of annual
variable remuneration linked to the results of the Company or one or more of its divisions should bear in mind any
gualifications stated in the external auditor’s report that reduce their amount.

. There ls no entitlement to guaranteed warlable remuneration, since there is a minimum threshold for achievement of
targets below which this remuneraticn is not pald.

. There iz a cap on annual variable remuneration.

= The amount of amnual variable remuneration 1s contingent on the level of achlevement of targets determined
annually based on & recommendation by the MWRC and approved by OHLA's Board of Directors.

. Included is a related clawback arrangement, which enables OHLA to demand reimbursement of the variable components

of remuneration when payment was not im accordance with the performance conditions or when payment was made cn the
basis of data that have subsequently been clearly shown to have been inaccurate.

. If exceptional events cccur, due to circumstances within or outside the Company, the HRC may submit a proposal to
the Board of Directors to adjust the varlable remuneration.

. The NRC is currently composed of five (5) members, two (2} of whom are alsc members of the Audit and Compliance
Commit The inter-related membership of directors of both committees ensures that risks related to remuneration

are taken into consideration in the committees’ discussions and the proposals submitted to the Board of Directors
for determining and evaluating the annual incentives.

MEASURES IN PLACE TO AVOID CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.

Article 31 of the Board Regulations establish, among others, as basic obligations arising from the directer's duty of
loyalty the adoption of the necessary measures to aveid situations in which their interests, either as independent
professicnals or as employees, may be in conflict with the corporate interests of, and their duties to, the Company.

Specifically, Article 32 of the Board Regulations lists the acts that directors must refrain from carrying out, in
compliance with the duty to avoid situations of conflict of interest. These provisions also apply if the beneficiary
of the acts or of the prohibited actiwvities is a person related to the director.

In any case, directors must notlify the Board of Directors of any direct or indirect conflict of interest that they or
persons related to them might have with the interests of the Company. Conflicts of interest in which directors might
be involved must be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
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A.1.3 Amount and nature of fixed components that are due to be accrued during the year by
directors in their capacity as such.

The General Shareholders' Meeting is responsible for determining the annual remuneration that may be paid by the
Company to all of directors in their capacity as such. The Board of Directors is responsible for distributing the
amount among the various directors as, when and in the proportion it sees fit, and may reduce the amount if and when
it consliders thls to be advisable.

At OHLA's General Shareheolders’ Meeting held on 2 June 2022, approval was given, through the Policy, for Maximum
Annual Remuneration of EUR 1,550,000,

The breakdown of the Maximum Annual Remuneration for 2023 is based on the criteria approved by the Board of Directors
at its meeting held on 15 June 2020 and is as follows:

al ‘or membership of the Board of Directors E 110,000 per year.

-] r membership of a Board committee: EUR 20,000 per year.

cl r chairmanship of the Audit and Compliance Committes: EUR 35,000 per year.

d) r chairmanship of the NRC: EUR 25,000 per year.

e} r chairmanship of the Guarantee Commit : EUR 25,000 per year.

f) For holding the post of Independent Coor ating Director: EUR 15,000 per year.

External Directors are also entitled to the remuneration in kind set out in sub-section A.1.5. of this report as fixed
components of thelr remuneraticn.

Lastly, External Directors residing outside the regicn where the Company's registered office i= located shall receiwve
travel allowances for expenses incurred in discharging their duties.

According to the Company's Bylaws, the remuneration received by External Directors is compatible with, and independent
of, the remuneration received by Executive rectors, during the term of the Policy, the Maximum Annuwal Remuneration
will only be distributed among External Directors who do not perform executive functions in the Company.

A.l.4 Amount and nature of fixed components that are due to be accrued during the year for the
performance of senior management functions of executive directors.

Executive Directors recelive fixed annual cash remuneration for performing executive functloms within the Company. The
amount of the Executive Director's fixed remuneration is determined by the Board of Directors on a recommendation by
the NRC, based om the level of responsibility and dedication the post demands, the ecutive Director’s experience and
career trajectory at OHLA, its alignment with the remuneration of the management team and its competitiveness in
comparison to equivalent functions in peer or comparable companies. It may be revised regularly by the Board of
Directors.

The Chief Executive Officer’s fixed annual cash remuneration remains unchanged during the period covered by the
Policy, unless the Board of Directors, on a recommendation by the WRC, resolves to update the amount in accordance
with the specific responsibility and characterlistics of the duti performed and the results of market studies and
research conducted by external advisors. This remuneration for 2023 amounts to EUR 1,200,000,

The Chief Executive OQfficer is also entitled te the benefits stipulated in sub-section A.1.5 below.

A.1.5 Amount and nature of any component of remuneration in kind that will accrue during the
year, including, but not limited to, insurance premiums paid in favour of the director.

The Remuneration Policy provides for certain remuneration in kind as follows:

+ For all director
— Third-party liability insurance:

In accordance with the Bylaws, the Company may take out insurance policles for all directors covering third-party
liability from the discharge of their duties under standard market terms and conditlons bearing in mind the Company's
owWn circumstances.

+ For all Executive Directors:

- Health insurance:

The Chief Executive Officer and family members are beneficiaries of a health insurance policy. The terms depend on the
policy taken out at any giwven time, with OHLA bearing the entire cost.

- Contributions to life and accident insurance:

The Chief Executive Officer is beneficlary of life and accident insurance as part of a mixed group insurance policy
taken out from an insurance company. The cost of the policy is borne by the Company.
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A.l.6 Amount and nature of variable components, differentiating between those established in
the short and long terms. Financial and non-financial, including social, environmental
and climate change parameters selected to determine wariable remuneration for the
current year, explaining the extent to which these parameters are related to
performance, both of the director and of the company, and to its risk profile, and the
methodology, necessary period and techniques envisaged to be able to determine the
effective degree of compliance, at the end of the year, with the parameters used in the
design of the variable remuneration, explaining the criteria and factors applied in
regard to the time required and methods of verifying that the performance or any other
conditions linked to the accrual and vesting of each component of variable remuneration
have effectively been met.

Indicate the range, in monetary terms, of the different wvariable compcnents according to
the degree of fulfilment of the objectives and parameters established, and whether any
maximum monetary amounts exist in absolute terms.

The Chief Executive Officer is the only director whose remuneration scheme includes a variable component.

Annual variable remuneration:

Az explained in sub-section A.1.2 above, as the at the date of preparatien of this report, the Chief Executive Officer
was part of an annual variable remuneration scheme linked to the achievement of spacific, predatermined and
gquantifiable targets aligned with the interests of CHLA shareholders and the Company's strategic plan. This does not
make him ineligible to participate in other wvariable remuneration systems included in the Poliey.

The Chief Executive Officer's annual variable remuneration represents a percentage of his fixed annual remuneration,
calculated based on the achievement of a combination of predetermined and quantifiable gquantitative and qualitative
targets. This remuneration may be paid in cash or shares.

The Board of Directors, on a recommendation by the NRC, sets the targets each year and evaluates the level of
achievement after che end of the year.

The parameters used by OHLA to calculate the annual variable remuneration for 2023 included certain specific,
previously determined and quantifiable economic-financial, industrial and operating targets for the Company, the
division or the business unit under the responsibility of the Chief Executive Officer. Individual performance may also
be evaluated and a weighting assigned to other corporate govermance and corporate s al responsibility targets, which
may be quantitative or qualitative.

The terms and conditions of the Chief Executive Officer's variable remuneration scheme are reviewed annually by the
HRC, taking into account the Company's strategy and business situation. This review is subsequently submitted for
approval by the Board of Directors.

The quantitative targets set for the Chief Executive Officer for 2023 are linked to order intake, cash generation,
debt and EBITDA, with a relative weight of 70%, and certain personal targets, with a relative weight of 30%.

The level of achievement of the targets will be determined according to the weightings that at any given time are
established by the Board of Directors om a recommendation by the NRC.

Bayment of the annual variable remuneration deferred for one year. Therefore, annual variable remuneration for 2023
will be paid, if applicable, in 2024.

If exceptional events occur, due either to circumstances withinm or outside the Company, the NRC may submit a propeosal
te the Board of Directors te adjust the variable remuneration.

The portion of annual variable remuneration whose payment is linked to results of the Company or ocne or more of its
divisions should bear in mind any gualifications stated in the external auwditor®s report that reduce their amount.

Lastly, the annual variable remuneration scheme includes a clawback arrangement, which enables QHLA to demand
mhursement of the variable components of remuneration when payment was net in accordance with the performance
conditions or when payment was made on the basis of data subseguently shown to have been inaccurate.
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The Board of Directors; based on a report by the NRC, shall determine whether or not such circumstances have occurred
and any variable remuneration that must be returned.

Multi-year variable remuneratiecn:

hecording to the Policy, the Chief Executive Officer may be included in any multi-year variable remuneration systems
approved by the Board of Directors and linked to his or her continued employment and the achiewement of certain
strategic objectives.

The Chief Executive Officer’s inclusion in this type of scheme will require, for remuneration that entails the
delivery of shares or share options or is linked to the share price, approval by the General Shareholders’ Meeting, as
provided for in Article 219 of the Corporate Enterprises Act and in the Company's Bylaws.

As at the date of preparation of this report, the Chief Executive Officer did not participate in any multi-year
variable remuneration system as provided for in sub-section A.1.2.

rdinary variable remuneration:

Executives Directors may receivable extrasordinary wvariable remuneration if, in the opinion of the Board of Directors,
they have played a decisive rcle in transactions that are significant or transformational for OHLA Group and the
results of which have a major and peositive impact on the Company and its shareholders. It is up to the Board of
Directors, based on a recommendation by the WRC, to establish the terms and conditions of any such remuneration.

The ¢lawback arrangement for annual variable remuneration described shall not apply to the extracrdimary variable
remuneration under the terms of the Policy.

A.1.7 Main characteristics of long-term savings systems. Among other information, indicate -
the contingencies covered by the scheme, whether it is a defined contribution or a
defined benefit scheme, the annual contribution that has to be made to defined
contribution schemes, the benefits to which directors are entitled in the case of
defined benefit schemes, the vesting conditions of the economic rights of directors and
their compatibility with any other type of payment or indemnification for early
termination or dismissal, or deriving from the termination of the contractual
relationship, in the terms provided, between the company and the director.

Indicate whether the accrual or vesting of any of the long-term savings plans is linked
to the attainment of certain objectives or parameters relating to the director's short-
or long-term performance.

As at the date of preparation of this report, the Company did not have any long-term savings plans for directors. :

A.1.8 Any type of payment or severance pay for early termination or dismissal of the director,
or deriving from the termination of the contractual relation, in the terms provided,
between the company and the director, whether voluntary resignation by the director or
dismissal of the director by the company, as well as any type of agreement reached, such
as exclusivity, post-contractual non-competition, permanence or loyalty, which entitle
the director to any type of remuneration.

The Remuneration Poliey does not previde for any indemnifications for External Directors for termination of their
duties as director.

According to the Chief Executive Officer's contract, the Company or the Chief Executive Officer may unilaterally
terminate the Chief Executive Officer's contract by giving at least three (3) months' notice in writing te the other
party. In the event of full or partial breach of the notice pericd, the party that has taken the decision to terminate
the contract shall pay the other party an amount egual to EUR 100,000 for each month of notice not given, or the
proportional part thereof in the event of incomplete months.

The Chief Executive Officer shall be entitled to additional severance pay for an amount equal to two (2) years of
fixed remuneration at the date of termimation of his contract, if the termination is decided by the Company without
just cause, or breach by the Chief Executive Officer of his obligations and duties in the discharge of his functions,
including those provided for spe fically in his contract.

PACTS OR AGREEMENT ON EXCLUSIVITY, POST-CONTRACTUAL NON-COMPETITION AND MINIMUM CONTRACT TERMS OR LOYALTY THAT ENTITLE
THE DIRECTOR TO ANY TYPE OF REMUNERATION.

The Chief Executive Officer's contract includes such pacts, as explained in sub-section A.l.% of this report.
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A.1.9 Indicate the conditions that the contracts of executive directors performing senier
management functions should contain. Bmong other things, information must be provided on
the duratien, limits on amounts of indemnification, minimum contract term clauses,
notice pericds and payment in lieu of these notice periods, and any other clauses
relating to signing bonuses, as well as compensation or golden parachute clauses for
early termination of the contractual relationship between the company and the executive
director. Include, among others, the pacts or agreement on non-competition, exclusivity,
minimum contract terms and loyalty, and post=-contractual non-competition, unless these
have been explained in the previous section.

CONDITICHS THAT THE CONTRACTS OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS FERFORMING SENIOR MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS SHOULD CONTAIN.
According te the Corporate Enterprises Act and the Company's intermal rules and regulatioms, the Board of Directors
on a8 recommendation by the NRC, shall approve the basic terms of Executive Directors' contracts (including any
remuneration or severance pay in the event of dismiss for perfeorming executive duties.

The main terms and, especially, remuneration, rights and economic compensation of each Executive Director, are (i)
specified in their respective contracts, (ii) within the remuneration components specified in OHLA's Bylaws, and (iii
in accordance with the Remuneration Policy in force.

The basic terms and conditions of the Chief Executiwve Officer's contract, which are standard for this type of

contract, are as follows:

. Duration: the duration of the Chief Executive Officer's contract is tied to his tenure as director.

. Exelusivity: the Chief Executive Cfficer shall provide services on a full-time basis to OHLA and may not provide
services to any third parties, whethar or not they are compatiters of CHLA, during the term of the contract.

In this regard, without previcus and express authorisation by the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer

shall refrain from engaging, directly or indirectly, in any professiocnal activity outside the scope of the OHLA Group,

for third parties or for his own account, even if such activity does not compete with those of any Group company.

« Confidentiality: the Chief Executive Cfficer undertakes not to disclose, and toe prevent unauthorised third parties

from learning abeout, any of the business plans, procedures, methods, information, commercial or industrial data, know-

how and technical documents belonging to the Group relating te its operatiens that, by their nature, are considered

confidential either because they are in his possession or because he has had access to them by reason of his post.

To this end, the Chief Executive Officer shall exercise this diligence both while rendering his services and after his

relationship with the Company ends.

. Hotice pericd: there is a three-month notice period under the terms explained in sub-sectiocn A.1.8 above.

. Severance pay: the contract provides for entitlement to the severance pay provided for in sub-section A.1.8
above .

. Post-contractual non-competition: a post-contractual non-competition agreement may be triggered upon cessation of

the post of Chief Executive Officer for a period of up to one (1) year.

The Chief Executive Officer's contract provides for the possibility that the Beard of Directors may impose on the
Chief Executive COfficer the obligation of comply with a post-contractual non-competition obligation when stepping down
from or leaving office, for a stipulated pericd of one (1] year as of that date. If the Board of Directors decides to
activate this post-contractual non-competition obligation, the Chief Executive Officer will be entitled te receive,
upon termination of the contract, an amount of EUR 2,880,000 (equal to one (1) year of total maximum remuneration
provided for in his contract for performance above the targets established in the variable remuneration system).

1f the Chief Executive Officer breaches the post-contractual non-competition obligation, the contract requires him to
relmburse the Company for amounts receiwed under the post-contractual non-competition arrangement and to indemnify the
Company an amount equal to twenty-five (25) per cent of the remuneration received, without prejudice to the right to
claim any damages that may arise directly or indirectly from the breach of this clause.

In any event, the Board of Directors shall review the termsz and conditions of Company*'s Executive Director contracts
fiodically and make the changes it deems necessary, LIf any, within the framework of the Company’'s Remurneration
Policy and its internal rules and regulations

A.1.10.The nature and estimated amount of any other supplementary remuneration that will be
accrued by directors in the current year in ceonsideration for services rendered other
than those inherent in their position.

There is no provision for OHLA directors to accrue any other supplementary remuneraticon. :

A.1.11 Other items of remuneration such as any deriving from the company's granting the
director advances, loans or guarantees or any other remuneration.

There is no provision for granting advances, leans, guarantees or any other remuneration, although the Chief Executive
Officer's contract includes the possibility of requesting advances on his variable remuneration.
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A.1.12 The nature and estimated amount of any other planned supplementary remuneration to
be accrued by directors in the current year that is not included in the foregoing
sections, whether paid by the company or by another group company.

|: There is no provision by any Group company to remunerate any members of the Board of Directors.

A.2. Explain any significant change in the remuneration policy applicable in the current year
resulting from:

a}l A new policy or an amendment to a policy already approved by the General Meeting.

b} Significant changes in the specific determinations established by the board for the
current year regarding the remuneration policy in force with respect to those applied
in the previous year.

c} Proposals that the Board of Directors has agreed to submit to the general shareholders’
meeting to which this annual report will be submitted and for which it is proposed that
they be applicable to the current year.

[ No significant changes are expected to be made to the Remuneration Policy for the current year. ]

A.3. Identify the direct link to the document containing the company's current remuneration
policy, which must be available on the company's website.

[ https://media.ohla-group.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/06/14124837/Politica~de-Remuneraciones-de-Consejeros_

A.4.Explain, taking inte account the data provided in Section B.4, how account has been taken
of the voting of shareholders at the General Shareholders’ Meeting to which the annual
report on remuneration for the previous year was submitted on a consultative basis.

Of wotes cast at the General Sharehoclders” Meeting held on 2 June 2022 on the resoclution regarding the annual report
on director remuneration for the previocus year, under the terms provided for in section B.4 of this report, 93.8141%
of share capital represented were in fawour.

In the Board of Directors’ cpinien, the remuneration practices in that report have the approval of a large number of

shareholders and are in line with practices of the companies in the industry in which the Company oparates. Therefore,
it decided to uphold the same practices.

B. OVERALL SUMMARY OF HOW REMUNERATICN POLICY WAS APPLIED DURING THE YEAR LAST ENDED

B.1.1 Explain the process followed to apply the remuneration policy and determine the
individual remuneration contained in Section C of this report. This information will
include the role played by the remuneration committee, the decisions taken by the Board of
Directors and

the identity and role of any external adwvisors whose services may have been used in the
process of applying the remuneration policy in the year last ended.
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: following director remuneration policies (the “Remuneration Polic " or the “Policies”) were

applicabl

= The previcus remuneration policy approved at the General Shareholders’ Meeting held on 15 June 2020 and amended
at the General Shareholders’ Meeting held on 29 June 2021 (the *2020-22 Peliey”), which was applicable frem 1
January 2022 to 1 June 20

- The Eemuneration Folicy approved at the Genesral Shareholders’ Meeting held on 2 Jume 2022, with effect from the
date of approval (i.e., the 2022-25 Policyl.

Specifically, the process followed to apply the Policles applicable in 2022 and determine the individual remuneration
contained in Section € of this report was as follows:

] External Directors: the individual remuneration of Executive Directors is detailed in section B.5 of this
report.
. Executive Directors: as provided for in the Chief tiwve Officer's contract and the Remuneraticn Policies,

the Chief Executive Officer accrued the remuneration deta

ed in section B.6 of this report in 202Z.

The main actions, business transacted and decisions taken by the MRC and the Board of Directors in exercise of the
authority described in section A.l1.l1 were as follows:

for the 2022 annual variable re
, and the scale applicable to

: Chief Execut

ch. All

ive Offi based on
e approved by the

ation of

ing

Board of Directors at its meeting held on 31 March 2022, based on a favourable report by the NR

. The NRC agreed to report favourably to the Director on the proposals for the 2021 annual wvariable remuneration
of the senior management team.

. The NRC assessed, and issued a favourable repert on, the 2021 Annual Report on Director Remuneration, which was

subsequently approved by the Board of Directors.

The NRC held five (5} meetings in 2022
the Company engaged Garrigues to pros

at which it adopted those decisions, along with others. In addition, im 2022,
de external advice on matters i ring remuneration.

B.1.2 Explain any deviation from the procedure established for the application of the
remuneraticn policy that has occcurred during the year.

There was no deviation from the procedure established for the application of the Remuneration Policies in 2022,

E.l1.3 Indicate whether any temporary exception has been applied to the remuneration policy
and, if so, explain the exceptional circumstances that have led to the application of
these exceptions, the specific components of the remuneration peolicy affected and the
reasons why the entity believes that these exceptions have been necessary to serve the
long-term interests and sustainability of the company as a whole or ensure its viability
Similarly, guantify the impact that the application of these exceptions has had on the
remuneration of each director over the year.

[ No temporary exceptions were applied to the Remuneraticn Policies in force im 2022.

B.2 Explain the different actions taken by the company in relation to the remuneration system

and how they have contributed to reducing exposure to excessive risks, aligning it with
the long-term cbjectives, values and interests of the company, including a reference to
the measures adopted to ensure that the long-term results of the company have been taken
into consideraticon in the remuneration accrued. Ensure that an appropriate balance has

been attained between the fixed and wvariable components of the remuneration, the measures
adopted in relation to those categories of personnel whose professional activities have a

material effect on the company’s risk profile and the measures in place to avoid any
possible conflicts of interest.

As explained in section A.l.1l. of this Report HLA applies the following practices to reduce exposure to excessive
risk-taking and reinforce alignment with OHLA's long-term strategy, interests, objectives and values, and to provide
sustainability to the Company's results:
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. The NCR regularly reviews the Remuneration Policy,; overseeing its compliance.

. The annual variable remuneration is paid after the authorisation for issue of the relevant financial statements
and after having determined the lewvel of achievement of financial targ In this respect, the portion of annual
wariable remuneraticn linked to the results of the Company or one or more of its divisions should bear in mind
any qualifications stated in the external auditor's report that reduce their amount.

L There is no entitlement to guaranteed variable remuneration, since there is a minimum threshold for achievement
of targets below which this remuneration is not paid.

. There is a cap on annual variable remuneration.

. The amount of annual variable remuneration is contingent on the level of achievement of targets determined
annually based on a recommendation by the NRC and approved by OHLRA's Board of Directors.

. Included is a related clawback arrangement, which enables OHLA to demand reimbursement of the variable components

of remuneration when payment was not in accordance with the performance conditions or when payment was made on
the basis of data that have subsequently beemn clearly shown to hawve been inaccurate.

- 1f exceptional events cccur, due to clrcumstances within or outside the Company, the NRC may submit a proposal ko
the Board of Directors to adjust the variable remuneration
. The NRC is currently composed of five (5} members, two (2} of whom are alsc members of the Audit and Compliance

f directors of both committees ensures that risks related to remuneration are

taken into consideraticn in the committe discussions and the proposals submitted to the Board of Directors for

determining and evaluating the annual in ives.

Meanwhi taken to ensure that the long-term results of OHLA are taken into account ar

ion Policy that is coherent and aligned with the Company's strategy and gears towards the

o] erm results, such that the remuneration of the Company's Executive Directors is commensurate
with the dedication, eff and responsibility assumed:

o the components of the C {f Executive icer's remuneration imclude: (1) fixed remuneration (cash and in kind),

ii} annual variable remuneration and (iii) multi-year variable remuneration (currently suspended]). The Chief

Executive Officer is also entitled to receive extraordinary variable remuneration in certain situations.

o Annual wariable remuneration is tied to certain performance indicators, including achievement of specific,

predetermined and quantifiable economic-financial, industrial and operating targets for the Company, division or

related business unit under the responsibility of the Chief Executive Officer, where applicable. These targets are

aligned with the interests of OHLA shareholders and the Company's strategic plan.

o According to the Company®s Bylaws, directors may be remunerated through the delivery of shares, share options or

remuneration linked te the share price provided that application of any of these remuneration schemes is first

approved at the General Shareholders' Meeting.

. RBppropriate balance between the fixed and wvariable components of the remuneration. The Chief Executive Officer

y has system of annual variable remuneration where the “target” wvariable remuneration is 100 per cent of

=d Remuneraticon for achievement of 100 per cent of the cbhjectiwves.

Regarding the necessary measures to aveoid situations of conflict of interest by directors, the 2022-25 Policy makes

reference to the Regulations of the Board of Directors, which set out certain obligations arising from directors®' duty

of loyalty related to avoiding situations of conflict of interest. The Board Regulations alse include, among the NRC's

responsibilities, ensuring that potential conflicts of interest do not compromise the independence of external advice

provided to the NRC. =

Committee. The inter-related membership o

measures

B.3 Explain how the remuneration accrued and consolidated over the financial the year complies
with the provisions of the current remuneration policy and, in particular, how it contributes
to the company’s long-term and sustainable performance.

Furthermore, report on the relationship between the remuneration obtained by the
directors and the results or other performance measures of the company in the short and
long term, explaining, if applicable, how variations in the company's performance have
influenced changes in directors' remuneration, including any accrued remuneration payment
of which has been deferred, and how such remuneration contributes to the short- and long-
term results of the company.

In compliance with OHLA'S Remuneration Policles applicable in 2022, the remuneration accrued by directors in 2022 was
as follows:

External Directors:
The amounts stipulated in the 2022-25 Remuneration Policy and described in section B.5 of this report for membership
andfor chairmanship of the Board of Directors and Board committees.

The total amount accrued to External Directors in 2022 was EUR 1,295,000 and the amount of travel allowances accrued
by External Directors incurred in the performance of their duties was EUR 47,821.2. These amounts are below the
Maximum Annual Remuneration provided for in both the 2020-22 Policy (i.e., EUR 1,440,000} and the 2022-25 Policy
{i.e., EUR 1,550,000).
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Under the 2022-25 Policy, the increase in the Maximum Annual Remuneration may be used to offset to excess fixed
remuneration paid to External Directors in 20Z1.

Chief Executive Officer:

. A fixed component of EUR 1,200,000.

& A cash amount for annual variable remuneration, detailed in section B.7, which will be paid im 2023,

- The life and accident insurance premium, the health insurance premium and other benefits paid by OHLA as
describad in section B.14 of this report.

Variable remuneration systems include measures that take into account the Company's results, such as:

- It includes scales of achlevement defined for each target based on the Company results. Any deviation in the
Company's performance will affect the level of achievement of targets and directly affect the amount of variable
remuneration, if any, to which the Chief ecutive Officer is entitled. Section A 2 provides more detalls on
the thresholds for achievement of targets established by the Company for the varliable remuneration systems.

. There is no guaranteed variable remuneration, since there is a2 minimum threshold for achievement of targets below
which this remuneration 1s not paild.

L Variable remuneration shall only accrue when the Board of Directors, on a recommendation by the NRC, has
evaluated the level of achievement of the financial targets and after the authorisation for issue of the
financial statements.

. The Chief Executive Officer's wariable remuneration is subje an arrangement which, 1f triggered, would
enable the HRC to demand reimbursement of the wvariable compon of remuneration when payment was not in
accordance with the perf ance conditions or when payment was made based on data subseguently shown to have been

inaccurate.

. If exceptional events occur, due to circumstances within or outside the Company, the NRC may submit a proposal to
the Board of Directors to apply certain adjustments to the wvariable remuneration.

. The portion of wariable remuneration linked to results of the Company or one or more of its divisions should bear

in mind any qualifications stated in the external auditor’s report that reduce their amount.

B.4. Report on the result of the consultative vote at the General Shareholders’ Meeting on
remuneration in the previous year, indicating the number of votes in favour, votes
against, abstentions and blank ballots:

Number % of total

Votes cast 217,911,636 36.86

Number % of votes cast
Votes against 13,479,596 6.19
Wotes in favour 204,431,791 93.81
Blank ballots 0.00
Abstentions 249 0.00

[ Observations

12 /

35
Obrascén Huarte Lain, S.A. and subsidiaries - 2022 Consolidated Management Report

355



Management report 2022

Integrated annual report

356

— 95 > N

ANNUAL EEPORT CON DIRECTOR REMUNERATION
OF LISTED COMPANIES
|

B.5. Explain how the fixed components accrued and vested during the year by the directors in
their capacity as such were determined, their relative proportion with regard to each
director and how they changed with respect to the previous year.

The amount of individual remuneration accrued by External Directors in 2022, cluding remuneration for membership
and/or chairmanship of the Board of Directors and Board committees, was distributed in accordance with following
criteria agreed by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 15 June 2020 and set out in the 2022-25 Policy
currently in force:

membership of the Board of Directors: EUR 114, 000.
membership of a committee: EUR 20,000.

chairmanship of the Audit Committee: EUR 35,000.
chairmanship of the NRC: EUR 25,000.

chalsmanship of the Guarantee Committee: EUR 25,000,
the Independent Coordinating Director: EUR 15,000.

In accordance with the above, the total amcunt accrued by all External Directors in 2022 in thelr capacity as such
amounted to EUR 1,295 thousand, including EUR 48 thousand of travel allowances for expenses incurred by External
Directors residing cutside the region where the Company's registered office is located.

The proportion of remuneration of each
2022 is as follows:

ernal Director in their capacity as such to their total remuneration in

Director Fixed annual remuneration / / (EUR) / Proportion vis=-a=-vis total remuneraticn (%)

LUIS FERNANDO MARTIN AMODIO HERRERA // 152 / 11.39
JULIO MAURICIC MARTIN AMODIO HERRERA // 150 / 11.17
JUAN VILLAR-MIR DE FUENTES f/ 130 / 9.68

JOSE ANTONIO FERMANDEZ GALLAR // 0 / 0

CRARM DE ANDRES COMDE // 155 / 11.55

CE CAREDO-ARGUELLES TORREJON // 130 / 9.68
FRANCISCO JOSE GARCIA MARTIN // 185 f 13.77

JUAN ANTONIO SANTAMERA SANCHEZ // 130 / 9.68

LUIS FERNANDO AMODIO GIOMBINI f/ 135 / 10.05

REYES CALDERON CUADRADO // 175 / 13.03

Total // 1,343 / 100

Total remuneration pald in 2022 amcunted to EUR 1,3
1,546 thousand paid in 2021.

3 thousand, marking a decrease of EUR 203 thousand from the EUR

The difference between remuneration of Extermal Directors in 2022 and 2021 is due primarily to the change in the
Bemuneration Policy, which resulted in a change in the amounts of remuneration.

B.6. Explain how the salaries accrued and vested by each of the executive directors owver the
past financial year for the performance of management duties were determined, and how
they changed with respect to the previous year.

The Chief Executive Officer's fixed annual remuneration was EUR 1,200 thousand in cash.

In 2022, the Chief Executive Officer was entitled to certaln corporate benefits: payment of health and life insurance
premiums. For these Ltems, an amount of EUR 21 thousand was attributed to the Chief Executive Officer in 2022.

As in 2021, OHLA did not make any contributions to a pension scheme on behalf of the Chief Executive Officer in 2022.
This did not imply an increase in Fixed Remuneration relative to 2021.
Moreowver, in accordance the Corporate Bylaws, the Company took out an insurance policy for the Chief Executive Officer

covering third-party liability from the discharge of hiz or her duties under standard market terms and conditions
baaring in mind the Company's own circumstances.
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B.7. Explain the nature and the main characteristics of the variable components of the
remuneration systems accrued and vested in the year last ended.

In particular:

a) Identify each of the remuneration plans that determined the different types of
variable remuneraticn accrued by each of the directors in the year last ended,
including information on their scope, date of approval, date of implementation, any
vesting conditions that apply, periods of accrual and wvalidity, criteria used to
evaluate performance and how this affected the establishment of the variable amount
accrued, as well as the measurement criteria used and the time needed to be able to
adegquately measure all the conditiens and eriteria stipulated, explaining the
criteria and factors applied in regard to the time required and the methods of
verifying that the performance or any other kind of conditions linked to the accrual
and vesting of each component of variable remuneration have effectively been met.

b) In the case of share options and other financial instruments, the general
characteristics of each plan must include information on the conditions both for
acquiring unconditional ownership (vesting) of these options or financial instruments
and for exercising them, including the exercise price and period.

c) Each directeor that is a beneficiary of remuneration systems or plans that include
variable remuneration, and his or her category (executive director, external
proprietary director, external independent director or other external director).

d) Information is to be provided on any periods for accrual, vesting or deferment of
payment of vested amounts applied and/or the pericds for retention/unavailability of
shares or other financial instruments, if any.

Explain the short-term variable components of the remuneration systems:

As stipulated in the Remuneration Policies applicable in 2022, only the Chief Executive Officer may be included in the
Company's variable remuneration schemes.

The Chief Executive Officer's wvariable remuneration includes the following variable components:
(i) Annual variable remuneration.
[ii}) Multi-year variable remuneration.

The Board of Directors, on a recommendation by the NRC, according to remunerate the Chief Executive Director am amount of
EUR 982 thousand for annual variable remuperation, as provided for in his contract, for 73.53% achlevement of the targets
established by the Board of Directers for 2022, with a weighting of 60% for quantitative targets and 40% for gqualitative
targets which, in turn, had the following welghtings:

. Order intake target, 15% weighting.
3 . 20% weighting.
. Cash generation target, 25% welghting.

Explain the long-term wvariable components of the remuneration systems:

Az explained in the previous section, the Chief Executive Officer may be included in any multi=-year varlable remuneration
systems appreoved by the Company's Board of Directers.

At the General Meeting held on 28 May 201%, shareholders approved a multi-year variable share-based remuneration plan
that included the possibility of granting the Chief Executive Officer wariable remuneraticon linked to his minimum
contract term in the Company, and to the achievement of the targets set by the Board of Directors.

Howewver, at its meeting held in November 2013, OHLA's Board of
2022, the Chief Executive Qfficer did not receiwve any remunerat

irectors agreed to suspend the system. Therefore, in
n or earn any rights in respect of this system.

14 7/
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B.8. Indicate whether certain wariable components have been reduced or clawed back when, in
the former case, payment of non-vested amounts has been deferred or, in the latter case,
they have wvested and been paid, on the basis of data that have subsequently been clearly
shown to be inaccurate. Describe the amounts reduced or clawed back through the
application of the "malus" (reduction) or clawback clauses, why they were implemented and
the years to which they refer.

Although the Chief Executiwe Officer's wariable remuneration iz subject to clawback arrangements, there was no demand
for the return of wariable components im 2022 since no variable remumeration was accrued or paid based on data that
had subsequently be clearly wn to be inaccurate and no payment had been made that was mot in accordance with
certain performance conditions.

B.9. Explain the main characteristics of the long-term savings schemes where the amount or
equivalent annual cost appears in the tables in Section C, including retirement and any
other survivor benefit, whether financed in whole or in part by the company or through
internal or external contributions, indicating the type of plan, whether it is a defined
contribution or defined benefit plan, the contingencies covered, the conditions on which
the economic rights vest in favour of the directors and their compatibility with any type
of indemnificatien for early termination or cessation of the centractual relatienship

between the company and the director.

B.10. Explain, where applicable, the indemnification or any other type of payment deriving from
the early cessation, whether at the company's or the director's initiative, or from the
termination of the contract in the terms provided therein, accrued and/or received by
directors during the year last ended.

No indemnification or

severance pay or any other type of payment deriving from early cessation or termination of
contracts was pald durd

g the year last ended.

Indicate whether there have been any significant changes in the contracts of persons
exercising senior management functions, such as executive directors, and, if so, explain
them. In addition, explain the main conditions of the new contracts signed with executive
directors during the year, unless these have already been explained in Section A.l.

[ There were no changes in the Chief Executive Officer’s contract in 2022, :

B.12, Explain any supplementary remuneration accrued by directors in consideration of the

provision of services other than those inherent in their position.

Ho supplementary remu
inherent in their pos

sration was accrued by directors in consideration of the provision of services other than those
ion.

B.13. Explain any remuneration deriving from advances, loans or guarantees granted, indicating
the interest rate, their key characteristics and any amounts returned, as well as the
obligations assumed on their behalf by way of guarantee.

( Mo remuneration accrued deriving from advances, loans or guarantees. )

B.14. Itemise the remuneration in kind accrued by the directors during the year, briefly
explaining the nature of the various salary components.

The Chief Executive Officer is beneficlary of life and accident
taken out from an insura company. The annual premium in 2022
the current coverage of the sum insured is EUR 2,400,000. During 2022,
with=-profits life insurance policy for little or no claims.

urance as part of a mixed group insurance policy
0. Thi=s cost is borne by the Company and
“ompany was relmbursed EUR 3,000 on its

In addition, health insurance premiums p. on behalf of the Chief ive Officer in : amounted to
Moreover, in accorda the Corporate Bylaws, the Company took ocut an insurance policy for the Chief Exec
covering third-party liability from the discharge of his duties as part of a policy taken to cover the liabilities of
the Group's directors and managers, under standard market terms and coenditions bearing in mind the Company"s own
circumstances.
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B.15. Explain the remuneration acecrued by any director by wvirtue of payments made by the listed
company to a third company in which the director provides services when these payments
seek to remunerate the director’s services to the company.

[ No remuneration was paid to any member of the Board of Director for providing services to a third company.

B.l6, Explain and detail the amounts accrued in the year in relation to any other remuneration
concept other than that set forth above, whatever its nature or the group entity that
pays it, including all benefits in any form, such as when it is considered a related-
party transaction or, especially, when it significantly affects the true image of the
total remuneration accrued by the director. Explain the amount granted or pending
payment, the nature of the consideration received and the reasons for those that would
have been considered, if applicable, that do not constitute remuneration to the director
or in consideration for the performance of their executive functions and whether or not
has been considered appropriate to be included among the amounts accrued under the “Other
concepts” heading in Section C.

Ho other remuneration components than those described in this report were paid to members of the Board of Directors in
the year ended 31 December 2022.
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C. ITEMISED INDIVIDUAL REMUNERATION ACCRUED BY EACH DIRECTOR
Name Type Period of accrual in 2022
LUIS FERNANDO MARTIN AMODIO Chairperson Proprietary From 01/01/2022 to 31/12/2022
JULIO MAURICIC MARTIN AMODIO Deputy chairperson Proprietary From 01/01/2022 to 31/12/2022
JUAN VILLAR-MIR DE FUENTES Deputy chairperson Proprietary From 01/01/2022 to 31/12/202
JOSE ANTONIO FERNANDEZ GALLAR Chief Executive Officer From 01/01/2022 to 31/12/2022
CAEMEN DE ANDRES CONDE Independent Director From 01/01/2022 to 31/12/2022
CESAR CANEDO-ARGUELLES TORREJOM Independent Director From 01/01/2022 to 31/12/2022
FRANCISCO JOSE GARCIA MARTIN Independent Director From 01/01/2022 to 31/12/2022
JUAN ANTONIC SANTAMERA SANCHEZ Independent Director From 01/01/2022 to 31/12/2022
LUIS FERNANDO AMODIO GIOMBINI Proprietary Director From 01/01/2022 to 31/12/2022
REYES CALDERON CUADRADO Independent Director From 01/01/2022 to 31/12/2022
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C.1 Complete the following tables regarding the individual remuneration of each director (including remuneration received for performing
executive duties) accrued during the year.
a) Remuneration from the reporting company:
i) Remuneration accruing in cash (thousands of euros)
Remuneration
5 for Short-term Long-term :
t : ; ; e : ; Total in
Name remuillszidtion 5 t;e:zceiince membership Salary variable variable Indemnification| Other items 2022 Totz:aélm
= of board remuneration|remuneration
committees

LUIS FERNANDO MARTIN AMODIO 130 23 153
JULIO MAURICIO MARTIN AMODIO 130 20 150 209
JUAN VILLAR-MIR DE FUENTES 130 130 130
JOSE ANTONIO FERNANDEZ GALLAR 1,200 882 2] 2,103 2,613
CARMEN DE ANDRES CONDE 155 155 167
CESAR CAREDO-ARGUELLES TORREJON 130 130 130
FRANCISCO JOSE GARCIA MARTIN 185 185 77
JUAN ANTONIO SANTAMERA SANCHEZ 130 130 130
LUIS FERNANDO AMODIO GIOMBINI 130 5 135 54
REYES CALDERON CUADRADO 175 175 175
| Observations
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ii) Table of changes in share-based remuneration schemes and gross profit from vested shares or financial instruments.

Financial instruments Instruments
Financial instruments at granted during 2022 - matured but Financial instruments at
start of 2022 s = not end of 2022
exercised
Name Name of plan EBITDA from
Mo ok eqﬁ?;raclhént Heohoo eqﬁci)\.rai;nt HooNok ezzivzfewtx’vested P:;;::egf V:I:‘Stfeidnasnzairfls ikl oot eqﬂ?;afgrt
instruments T instruments S instruments SIS shares instruments instruments instruments shares
(EUR thousand)

LUIS FERNANDC MARTIN| i
AMODIO sean
JULIO MAURICIO — e
MARTIN AMODIO Plan -0
Flan 0.00

RANTONIO =
FERNANDEZ GALLAR Plan g-00
CARMEN DE ANDRES o
CONDE Plan 0.00
CESAR CANEDO- o
ARGUELLES TORREJON Plan 4=
FRANCISCO JOSE S Hare
GARCIA MARTIN i v
JUAN ANTONIC o 0 a0
SANTAMERA SANCHEZ ol i
LUIS FERMNANDO AMODIO Pl 5.00
GIOMBINI Ean Mk
REYES CALDERCN e 4
CUADRADC Blan 0.00

Observations
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1ii) Long-term savings schemes.

Hame

Remuneration from westing of rights to
savings schemes

LUIS FERNANDO MARTIN AMODIO

JULIC MAURICIC MARTIN AMODIO

JUAN VILLAR-MIR DE FUENTES

JOSE ANTONIO FERNANDEZ GRALLAR

CARMEN DE ANDRES CONDE

CESAR CANEDO-ARGUELLES TORREJOM

FRANCISCO JOSE GARCIA MARTIN

JUAN ANTONIO SANTAMERA SANCHEZ

LUIS FEENANDO AMODIO GIOMBINI

REYES CALDERON C JRADO

Obrascon Huarte Lain, S.A. and subsidiaries - 2022 Consolidated Management Report

20 /35

Appendices

Non-financial
statement (NFS)

367



Management report 2022

Integrated annual report

368

About
this report

¢ N R 2 Message from We are Our We are
b O [EI K N the Chairman OHLA strategy sustainable

ANNUAL REPORT ON DIRECTOR REMUNERATION

OF LISTED COMPANIES

]

Contribution for the year by the company (thousands of Rmount of accrued funds (thousands of eurcs)
euros)
Savings schemes with Savings schemes with non- Savings schemes with vested Savings schemes with non-vested economic rights
vested economic rights vested economic rights economic rights
Name
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
LUIS FERNANDO MARTIN
AMODIO
JULIO MAURICIO MARTIN
AMODIO
JLAR-MIR DE

JOSE ANTONIO FERNANDEZ
GALLAR
CARMEN DE ANDRES CCONDE
CESRR CANEDO-RRGUELLES
TORREJON
FRANCISCO JOSE GARCIA
MARTIN
JUAN ANTONIO SANTAMERA
SANCHEZ
LUIS FERNANDO AMODIO
GIOMBINI
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Contribution for the year by the company (thousands of

Amount of accrued funds (thousands of euros)

euros)
Savings schemes with Savings schemes with non- Savings schemes with vested Savings schemes with non-vested economic rights
vested economic rights vested economic rights economic rights
Name
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
REYES CALDERON
CUADRADO
Observations
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iv) Details of other items
Name Item Amount of remuneration
LUIS FERNANDO MARTIN AMODIO Travel and accommodation allowances for expenses incurred in the 23
discharge of duties
JULIO MAURICIO MARTIN AMODIO Travel and accommodation allowances for expenses incurred in the 20
discharge of duties
JUAN VILLAR-MIR DE FUENTES Item
JOSE ANTONICQ FERNANDEZ GALLAR Life and health insurance 21
CARMEN DE ANDRES CONDE Item
CESAR CARNEDO-ARGUELLES TORREJON Item
FRANCISCO JOSE GARCIA MARTIN Item
JUAN ANTONIO SANTAMERA SENCHEZ Item
LUIS FERNANDO AMODIO GIOMBINI Travel and accommodation allowances for expenses incurred in the 5
discharge of duties
REYES CALDERON CUADRADO Item
| Observations |
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b) Remuneration of directors of the listed company for seats on the boards of other subsidiary companies:
i) Remuneration accruing in cash (thousands of euros)
Remuneration
for
. ~ membership Short-term Long-term Total in ]
Name r]“i:ffi. o A.tzndance of board Salary variable variable |Indemnification| Other items To;;élln
SRR ) S committees remuneration|remuneration 2022
LUIS FERNANDO MARTIN AMODIO
JULIC MAURICIC MARTIN AMODIO
JUAN VILLAR-MIR DE FUENTES
JOSE ANTONIO FERNANDEZ GALLAR
CARMEN DE ANDRES CONDE
CESAR CARNEDO-ARGUELLES TORREJOM
FRANCISCO JOSE GARCIA MARTIN
JUAN ANTONIO SANTAMERA SRANCHEZ
LUIS FERNANDO AMODIO GIOMBINI
REYES CALDERON CUADRADO
Observations |
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ii) Table of changes in share-based remuneration schemes and gross profit from vested shares or financial instruments.
Financial Instruments
= G . instruments granted matured but - Fat .
ilnanclia instruments at during 2022 £ £ = " : not ilnanclia instruments
start of 2022 Financial instruments wvested during the year S hean St end af sooo
Name Name of plan EBITDA from
vested
& i shares or .
No. of Nc_). e No. of NC.J' E= No. of NO. Og Blenee e ; i No. of No. of N(? £
rot & equivalent inst t equivalent e & equivalent/vested vested financial inat £ inst & equivalent
instruments harae instruments o instruments | .o i instruments | instruments [ instruments Thas
(thousands
of euros)
LUIS FERNANDO
MARTIN AMODIC Blan 0.00
Lal e W
JULIO MAURICIO
MARTIN AMODIO plan 0.00
Plan 0.00
JOSE ANTONIO
FERNANDEZ GARALLAR Plan 0.00
CARMEN DE ANDRES
CONDE Plan 0.00
CAREDO-
RRGUELLES
TORREJON Plan 0.00
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Financial Instruments
Fi P2l instruments granted matured but o FaT 2
inancial instruments at during 2022 : . . e : not inancial instruments
start of 2022 Financial instruments wvested during the year e at end of 2022
Name Name of plan EBITDA from
vested
No. of No. of No. of Price of shares or No. of
No. of 5 No. of ; No. of i 5 : No. of No. of i
financial
instruments squivalent instruments squivalent instruments equivalent/vested vested : instruments | instruments equivalent
shares shares shares shares instruments shares
(thousands
of euros)
FRANCISCO JOSE
GARCIA MARTIN
Plan 0.00
JUAN ANTONIO
SANTRMERA SRNCHEZ
Plan 0.00
LUIS FERNANDO
AMODIO GIOMBINI plan 0.00
REYES CALDERON
CUADRADO
Plan 0.00
Observations |
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iii) Long-term saving schemes

Name

Remuneration from vesting of
rights to savings schemes

LUIS FERNANDO MARTIN AMODIO

JULIC MAURICIC MARTIN AMODIO

JUAN VILLAR-MIR DE FUENTES

JOSE ANTCNIO FERNANDEZ GRLLAR

CARMEN DE ANDRES CONDE

CESAR CANEDO-ARGUELLES TORREJON

FRANCISCO JOSE GARCIA MARTIN

JUAN ANTONIC SANTAMERA SANCHEZ

LUIS FERNANDO AMODIO GIOMBINI

REYES CALDERON CUADRADO

Contribution for the year by the company
(thousands of eurcs)

Amount of accrued funds (thousands of euros)

Savings schemes with
vested economic rights

Savings schemes
with non-vested

Savings schemes with wested economic rights

Savings schemes with non-vested
economic rights

Name economic rights

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
LUIS FERNANDO MARTIN
AMODIO
JULIO MAURICIO MARTIN
AMODIO
JUAN VILLAR-MIR DE
FUENTES
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Contribution for the year by the company Bmount of accrued funds (thousands of euros
(thousands of euros)
Savings schemes with Savings schemes Savings schemes with vested economic rights Savings schemes with non-vested
vested economic rights with non-vested economic rights
Name economic rights
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
JOSE ANTONIO FERMANDEZ
GALLAR
CARMEN DE ANDRES CONDE
CESAR CARNEDO-ARGUELLES
TORREJON
FRANCISCO JOSE GARCIA
MARTIN
JUAN ANTONIO SANTAMERA
SANCHEZ
LUIS FERNANDO AMODIO
GIOMBINT
REYES CALDERON
| Observations |
iv) Details of other items
Name Item Amount of remuneration
LUIS FERNANDO MARTIN AMODIO Item
JULIO MAURICIO MARTIN AMODIO Item
JUAN VILLAR-MIR DE FUENTES Item
JOSE ANTONIO FERNANDEZ GALLAR Item
CARMEN DE ANDRES CONDE Item
CESAR CANEDO-ARGUELLES TORREJON Item
Obrascon Huarte Lain, S.A. and subsidiaries - 2022 Consolidated Management Report
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Name Item Amount of remuneration

FRANCISCQ JOSE GARCIA MARTIN Item
JUAN ANTONIO SANTAMERA SANCHEZ Item
LUIS FERNANDO AMODIO GIOMBINI Item
REYES CALDERON CUADRADO Item

Observations

C) Summary of remuneration (thousands of euros):
This summary must include the amounts corresponding to all the remuneration items included in this report that have accrued to each
director, in thousands of euros,
Remuneration accruing in the Remuneration accruing in group companies
Company
EBITDA from EBITDA from
vested vested
shares or : shares or :
- i Remuneration - Total in & : Remuneration : ;
Total cash | financial by way of S S 2022 Total cash  financial by way of ehexiiteu=RliTo oy Total in 2022, company
Name remuneration | instruments saving remunzfation comp;ny remuneration | instruments saving 'emungﬁation 2022, group + group
systems i systems 5
LUIS FERNANDO MARTIN
aronIo 153 153 153
JULIO MAURICIQ MARTIN
AHODIC 150 150 150
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Remuneration accruing in the Company

Remuneration accruing in group companies

EBITDA from

EBITDA from

vested vested
shares or ; shares or ;
Total i il Remuneration - ) Total : ; Remuneration < .
e _financial By ey OF Other fJ.tems Total in i financial Byinay BE Other f_tems Total in Total in 2022, company
ame Total cash instruments saving o ! 2020 crmrary Total cash instruments saving =] : 2022, group + group
remuneration systems remuneration | remuneration systems remuneration :
JUAN VILLAR-MIR DE
FUENTES 130 30 130
JOSE ANTONIO FERNANDEZ
GALLAR 2,103 2,103 2,103
CARMEN DE ANDRES CONDE
155 155 155
CESAR CANEDO-ARGUELLES
TORREJON 130 130 130
FRANCISCO JOSE GARCIA
HRRTLE 185 185 185
JUAN ANTONIO SANTAMERA
SANCHEZ 130 130 130
LUIS FERMNANDO AMODIO
GIOMBINI 135 135 135
REYES CALDERON CUADRADO
175 175 175
TOTAL 3,446 3,446 3,446
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Observations

C.2 Indicate the evolution in the last five years of the amount and percentage variation of the remuneration accrued by each of the

directors of the listed company who have held this position during the year,
remuneration on an equivalent basis with regard to full-time employees of the company and its subsidiaries that are not directors of

the listed company.

Total amounts accrued and % annual variation
% variation % wvariation % wvariation % variation
2022 2022/2021 2021 2021/2020 2020 2020/2019 2019 2019/2018 2018
Executive directors
JOSE ANTONIO FERNANDEZ GALLAR
2,103 -19.52 2,613 16.97 2,234 -15.25 2,636 99.85 1,319

External directors
LUIS FERNANDO MARTIN RMODIC

153 -32.30 226 145,65 92 - 0 - 0
JULIO MAURICIC MARTIN AMODIO

150 -28.23 209 198.57 70 - 0 - 0
JUAN VILLAR-MIR DE FUENTES

30 0.00 130 4.00 125 -3.85 130 0.00 130
CARMEN DE ANDRES COMDE

155 -7.19 167 12.84 148 =1.33 0 100.00 75
CESAR CAREDO-ARGUELLES
TURBEJON 130 0.00 130 4.00 125 -3.85 130 100.00 65
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Total amounts accrued and % annual
variation
% wvariation % variation % wvariation % variation
2022 2022/2021 2021 2021/2020 2020 2020/2019 2019 2019/2018 2018
3C0 JOSE GARCIA MARTIN
185 140.26 77 - 0 - 0 - 0
JUAN ANTONIO SANTAMERA
SANCHES 130 0.00 130 4.00 125 -3.85 130 0.00 30
LUIS FERMANDO AMODIO GIOMBINI
135 150.00 54 - 0 - 0 = 0
REYES CALDERON CUADRADO
175 0.00 175 15504 52 8.57 140 -40.43 235
Consolidated results of
the company
-96, 840 = 42,384 - =121 =19.,32 -106,534 89.01 -
969,548
Average employee
remuneration
26 =3.70 27 =3.57 28 =3.45 29 26.09 23
Observations |
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D. OTHER INFORMATION OF INTEREST

If there are any significant issues relating to directors' remuneration that it has not been
possikle to include in the foregoing sections of this report, but which it is necessary to
include in order to provide more comprehensive and reasoned information on the remuneration
structure and practices of the company with regard to its directors, list them briefly.

Al
SPECIFIC DETERMINATIONS FOR THE CURRENT YERR AS REGARDS DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION BOTH IN THEIR CAPACITY AS SUCH AND FOR
EXECUTION FUNCTIONS CARRIED QUT.

In accordance with OHLA'S Bylaws (the “Bylaws™) and the Requlations of the Board of Directors of OHLA (the
"Regulations of the Board™) in force, the Remuneration Policy makes a distinction between (i) remuneration for the
performance of general director duties, i.e., these inherent to the position of director, excluding any remuneration
that may correspond to the performance of executive duties {i.e. proprietary, indeéependent and other eéxternal
directors, the “External Directors"), (ii) remuneration for directors who perform executive duties (the "Executive
Directors™) and ({iii) remunsration for membarship of a Board committees (“Committees” or “Board Committess®).

As for such specific determinations, remuneration of External Directors for performing executive duties, the
Homination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) and the Board of Directors intend to apply the following remuneration
scheme for OHLA directors in 2023 and fellowing years, in line with the general principles explained previously:

* For External Directors in their capacity as such:

According to Article 28 of the OHLA Regulations of the Board of Directors, both the Board of Directors and the HRC
shall take such measures as within their power to ensure that the remuneration of External Directors is sufficient to
compensate them for, and encourage, their dedication, but ne so high as te compromise their independent judgement.
Specifically, the remuneration system for External Directors is as follows:

(i) External Directors shall be pald @ fixed annual amount for membership on the Board of Directors and, where
applicable, additional fixed remuneration for membership of or chairing Beard Committees, including the payment of
expenses incurred by External Directors who are not residents in the region where the Company's reglstered office is
located.

Lastly, the independent coordinating director (the "Ceoordinating Director™), one is appeinted, shall receive an
additional cash amount to compensate him or her for the extra dedication reg ed for the position.

(i1) According to the Peolicy and Article 24 () of the Bylaws, External Directors may be remunerated through
the delivery of shares, share cptionzs or remuneration linked to the share price provided that application of any of
these remuneration schemes is first approved at the General Shareholders' Meeting.

No remuneration of this kind has been approved for External Directors by shareholders at a General Meeting.

(1i1) In accordance with the Bylaws, the Company may take ocut insurance pelicies for all directors covering third-
party liability from the discharge of their duties under standard market terms and conditions bearing in mind the
Company's own clrcumstances. Under the Remuneration Policy, according to Article 24 of CHLA's Bylaws, the maximum
remuneration payable by the Company to External Directors (the "Maximum Annual Remuneration”) approved at the
General Shareholders' Meeting wia the Remuneration Policy currently in force is EUR 1,550,000. This amount shall
remain in effect until the Board of Directors submits a proposal for a change to the General Sharehglders' Meeting
and such proposal is approved.

In any event, this remuneration shall only be distributed among OHLA External Directors, irrespective of the
remuneration of members of the Board of Directors who perform executive duties.

* For Executive Directors:

As at the date of preparation of this report (the “Report®), José Antonio Fernadndez Gallar (the "Chief Executive
Officer™) was the Company's sole Executive Director, appointed to this position on 28 June 2018 under the follewing
terms and conditions of his contract.

Remuneration of the Company's Chief Executive Officer includes the following remuneration items: (i) fixed
remuneration in cash, (ii) fixed remuneration in kind, (iii) annual and multi-year variable remuneration, (iv)
extraordinary remuneration and [v) severance and post=-contractual non-competition arrangements. The Chief Executive
Officer shall not be entitled to recelive remuneration applicable to the other directors or fees for attending the
meetings of the Board of Directors. Therefore, his remuneration shall be limited to the aforementioned items.
According to the Policy and Ar le 24 of the Bylaws, Executive Directors may be remunerated through the delivery of
shares, share options or remuneration linked to the share price provided that application of any of these
remuneration schemes is first approved at the General Shareholders' Meeting.

The Executive Director's contract shall state the remuneration items finally included in his remuneration scheme and
they shall be those outlined in the Remuneration Policy.
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The Executive Director's remuneration is regulated in detail in his contract approved by the Board of Directors in
accordance with Articles 249 and 529 octodecies of the Corporate Enterprises Act on his appointment. His contract is
in compliance with the Remuneration Policy, which states there must be a maximum annual remuneration, which shall be
increased by the wariable remuneration in shares that; where applicable, the Company's Executive Directors may be
entitled to receive for participation in multi-year variable remuneration schemes subject to approval at the
Company's General Shareholders' Meeting, and any severance to which he may be entitled in certain cases of
termination, under the terms set out in his contract.

DESCRIPTION OF THE FROCCEDURES AND COMPANY BODIES INVOLVED IN DETERMINING, AFFROVING AND APFLYING THE REMUNERATION
POLICY AND ITS TERMS AND CONDITIONS.
The Company's maim bodies involved in determining, reviewing and applying the Remuneration Policy are as follows:

- General Shareholders' Meeting

According to Article 24 of the Company's Bylaws and Article 25 of the Regulations of the General Shareholders' Meeting,
cthe Remuneration Policy shall ke approved by the General Shareholders"' Meeting and applied for a maximum peried of
three (3) years, with approval included as a separate item on the meeting agenda. However, propesals for new director
remuneration policles must be submitted to the General Shareheolders' Meeting prior to the end of the final year of
application of the previous policy. The General Shareholders' Meeting may decide that the new policy shall be
applicable from the date of approval and for the ensuing three years.

Approval of the Remuneration Policy, unless given wia an ad doc resolution at the General Shareholders' Meeting, shall
serve as means of establishing the annual maximom remuneration of directoers for performing their general duties
[Maximum Annual Remuneration] and for performing executive duties.

Approval of director remuneration must alsoc be given by the General Sharcholders' Meeting when it includes the delivery
of shares, share options or remuneration linked to the share price.

- Board of Directors

According te Article 24 of the Company's Bylaws, Article 25 of the Regulations of the General Shareholders' Meeting and
Articles 5, 27 and 28 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors, the Board shall:

{i}propose the Remuneration Policy to the General Shareholders' Meeting:

(ii)take decisions regarding director remuneration, within the framework of the Bylaws and, where applicable, the
Remuneration

Policy approved by the General Shareholders' Meeting;

fifi)distribute the amount of remuneration it sees fit te directors in their capacity as such, individually, within the
annual maximum remuneration approved by the General Shareholders' Meeting, based on a report by the KRC;

(iv)take, together with the HNRC, all measures to ensure that remuneration of external directors is sufficient to
compensate them for, and encourage, their dedication, but no so high as to compromise their independent judgement;
(v}approve, where executive functions are attributed to a member of the Board of Directors, the contract between the
director and the Company. This contract, which must be in compliance with the Remuneration Policy and the Bylaws, shall
detail all items for which the director may receive remuneration for performing executive duties;

(vi)determine the individual remuneration of each director for performing executive duties within the framework of the
Remuneration Policy

and as provided for in their contract, based on a repert from the NRC:

(viilprepare and publish an annual report on director remuneration, which shall be submitted to a consultative wote at
the General Shareholders” Meeting as a separate item on the agenda.

* Hominaticon and Remuneraticon Committes

According to Article 16 of the Board Regulations, the NRC's duties shall include: (i) proposing to the Board of
Directors the remuneration policy for directors and general managers or those who carry cut their senior management
functions reporting directly to the Board, Executive Committees or Chief Executive Officers, as well as the

individual remuneration and other contractual conditions of executive directors and the criteria for the rest of

the Group’s senior management, ensuring that they are cbserved;

(ii) reviewing, pericdically, the remuneration programmes, assessing their

appropriateness and performance;

(iil) menitoring remuneration transparency;

tiv) reviewing, periodically, the remuneration policy applied to directors and senior executives, including share-based
remuneration schemes and their implementation, as well as ensuring that individual remuneration is proportionate te
amounts paid to other of the Company's directors and senior executives;

(v} wverifying the information on director and senior executive remuneration contained in the various corporate
documents, including the Annual Report on Director Remuneration.

The WRC shall comprise no fewer than three and no more than seven External Directors, of whom at least two shall be
independent, appointed based on their knowledge, skills and experience for discharging their responsibilities

As at the date of preparation of this Report, the RNC was composed of the following:

Director Position Type

keyes Calderdn Cuadrade Chairman Independent

Francisco Jose Garcia Martin Member Independent

Luis Fernando Martin Bmodio Herrera Member Proprietary
Juan Antonio Santamera Sanchez Member Independent

Juan Villar-Mir de Fuentes Member Proprietary

The secretary of the Board of Directors, and in his or her absence the deputy secretary of the Board of Directors, will
act as secretary of the NRC.
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MANAGEMENT REPORT

The directors hereby state that, to the best of their knowledge, the consolidated financial
statements and management report for the year ended 31 December 2022 have been prepared
in accordance with the applicable accounting principles and give a true and fair view of the
equity, financial position and results of Obrascén Huarte Lain, S.A. and Subsidiaries.

The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on 28 March 2023, authorised for issue these
consolidated financial statements and management report with a view to their assurance by the
auditors and subsequent approval at the General Shareholders' Meeting.

These consolidated financial statements (comprising the consolidated statement of financial
position, statement of profit or loss, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows,
notes to the consolidated financial statements and appendices thereto) and the consolidated
management report are signed by the directors.

This annual remuneration report has been approved by the Board of Directors of the company on:
28/03/72023

Indicate whether any director voted against or abstained from approving this report. Luis Fernando Martin Amodio Julio Mauricio Martin Juan Villar-Mir de Fuentes
Herrera Amodio Herrera
[ ] Yes

José Antenio Fernandez Carmen de Andrés Conde César Cafiedo-Arguelles
Gallar Torrejon

Francisco José Garcia Martin Juan Antonio Santamera Luis Fernando Amodio
Sdnchez Giombini

Reyes Calderdn Cuadrado
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